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Disclaimer: This document contains statements about expected future events and financials of

Shyam Century Ferrous Limited (the Company), which are forward-looking. By their nature, forward-
looking statements require the Company to make assumptions and are subject to inherent risks and
uncertainties. There is a significant risk that the assumptions, predictions, and other forward-looking
statements may not prove to be accurate. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-
looking statements as several factors could cause assumptions, actual future results and events to differ
materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements. Accordingly, this document is
subject to the disclaimer and qualified in its entirety by the assumptions, qualifications and risk factors
referred to in the Management Discussion and Analysis section of this Annual Report.
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=esilient through
challenges

Despite the challenges we faced at Shyam
Century Ferrous Limited, we have mitigated them
effectively.

In a challenging market scenario for the Indian
ferro-alloys market, the Company gained

a competitive edge by building long-term
relationships.

Despite a decline in turnover and operating
margins, the Company registered a cash profit, an
uncommon phenomenon among its sector peers.

The Company is optimistic about growth
during the upcoming fiscal year, with a quick
commissioning of a third furnace plant.




(CORPORATE SNAPSHOT)

Shyam Century Ferrous Limited

The Company is involved in the manufacturing of
ferro-alloys and power generation.

As a manufacturer of ferro-alloys, the Company is
expected to contribute to nation-building through a
resource presence in the steel industry.

@ Pedigree

Manufacturing facilities

b)) Talent

Incorporated in 2011, Shyam
Century Ferrous Limited is

an Indian company, which
manufactures ferro-alloys. The
Company sells its products across
the nation.

Listing

The Company's manufacturing unit
is located at Byrnihat, Meghalaya.
This unit possesses a manufacturing
capacity of ~21,600 MT of ferro-
sillicon and power generation
capacity of 13.8 MWh.

Credit rating

The Company is listed on the
National Stock of Exchange (NSE)
and Bombay Stock of Exchange
(BSE) with a market capitalisation of
3375.92 Crore as of 31t March, 2024.

During the year under review, the
Company received a credit rating
of BBB+ (Stable) by credit rating
agency ICRA for its long-term
borrowings and A2+ for its short-
term borrowings.
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The Company possesses a talent
base of 125 employees as of 31
March, 2024, which consists of

72 workers associated with the
Company for more than five years
and 0.8% of the workers being
female.



Our operational
snapshot, FY 2

138.09 5.04 0.73

Z Crore, Revenue from operations I Crore, EBITDA Z Crore, Profit after tax

4.75 4% 13 8

Z Crore, Cash profit EBITDA margin MWh, power gen acity

21 600 125 375.92

MTPA, ferro-alloys plant capaci Work of 31s*March, 2024 Z Crore, Market capitalisation as
of 31stMarch, 2024




( MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REVIEW )

How we survivedina
challenging FY 23-24

Dear shareholders,

[ am pleased to present our annual
report for the fiscal year 2023-24,
which represented a challenging year
for the Company. We faced numerous
hindrances along the way but were
able to overcome these hurdles and
prepare ourselves for an optimistic
future.

Economic overview

The Indian economy grew 8.2% in

FY 23-24, compared to 7.2% in FY 22-
23, primarily driven by improved
performance in mining and quarrying,
manufacturing, and certain segments
of the services sector. Along with
being one of the fastest-growing
economies in the world, India ranked
fifth in the world in terms of nominal
GDP for 2023. Our nation overtook
the UK to become the fifth-largest
economy in the world in 2022 and
has maintained its position since. In
terms of purchasing power parity,
India is the third-largest economy in
the world, after China and the United
States.

(Source: RBI projections)

Principal message

While the industry and commodity
cycle across the country continued
from 2021 to 2023, the fiscal year
2023-24 served as a reality check for
us. The Company faced hindrances

in operations with oversupply and
elections contributing to a challenging
FY 23-24. Moreover, a rise in the cost
of freight and lack of power availability
in the North-East region during the
year under review led to an increase
in costs and deterioration of quality

of silicon, thus making the first nine
months challenging for the fiscal year
2024-25.

Our financial
performance

The Company's turnover for FY 23-
24 registered a decline of 22% from
%188.19 Crore in FY 22-23 t0 %146.71

Crore in FY 23-24. This was a result

of an overall decline in the ferroalloys
market. Moreover, this decline was
also evident in the Company’s EBITDA
levels, which dropped from 340.36
Crore in FY 22-23 10 %5.04 Crore

in FY 23-24; profit after tax of the
Company declined from ¥36.66 Crore
inFY 22-231t0%0.73 Crore in FY 23-24;
cash profit declined from ¥40.02 Crore
to%4.75 Crore during the year under
review. As the Company looks forward
to FY 24-25, its focus will be on
avoiding a cash loss, a phenomenon
common among competitors.

Sectorial context

India’s fossil fuel-based power
generation capacity increased by
2.44% 10 243.22 GW In FY 23-24 from
237.27 GW in FY 22-23, of which

coal accounted for 47.73% of the total
power generation in the country. The
Country will focus on setting up a
greater number of coal-fired power
projects in addition to increasing
renewable energy capacities. (Source:
The Hindu)

Despite a decline faced across the
market in India, the robust demand
from construction, railways, and
capital goods is expected to contribute
tremendously to the growth of

steel and ferro alloys in India. The
rise in government spending for
infrastructure and the increase in
metal prices are further boosting the
metal industry in India. However, this
growing demand for steel in India
has led to a major gap in the demand
and supply of ferroalloys in the
country. This gap is being addressed
by imports, even though many new
domestic manufacturing units are
being set up. (Source: epcworld.in)

Our key differentiators

One of our key differentiators that
helped us survive FY 23-24 was our
long-term understanding and trust
with the customers. Your Company
focused on building relationships
with customers who buy larger,
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regular quantities compared to the
smaller ones, ensuring some amount
of safety in the business. This helps
the Company survive despite an
oversupply and provides a major
competitive edge in the market.

This relationship was also evident

in our pricing strategies where the
average price of our ferro alloys stood
at93,000-94,000 PMT as opposed

to the average of 387,000 PMT in

the market. This rise in pricing is

a representation of our marketing
function building strong relations with
the consumers.

The delivery of transformers required
for the commissioning of a third
furnace in our manufacturing facility
took no more than four to five
months, a process that generally takes
one and a half years.

Optimism

Our key focus for the upcoming
fiscal 2024-25 will continue to be

on the cost of manufacturing and
larger consumer segments. From

an industry perspective, we do not
anticipate any major improvement
in performance by the end of the
third quarter. However, the Company
expects optimism post January

2025, when we anticipate a demand
upcycle, a phenomenon highly
dependent on the US elections to be
conducted in November 2024. We
seek to expand our manufacturing
capacities by starting of our third
furnace during the year under review,
which will be operational from
September 2024. This will result in a
decline in our fixed overhead costs
and increase profitability, helping the
Company navigate and enhance its
profitability in these challenging times.

Aditya Agrawal
Managing Director
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Directors Report & Management

Discussion Analysis

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Thirteenth Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2024 and the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended on that date.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The highlights of the financial performance of the Company for the financial year ended 315 March, 2024 as compared

to the previous financial year are as under: -

% in Lakhs)

Particulars FY 22-23*
Total Income 14,670.66 18,819.23
Profit before Depreciation, Interest, Tax and exceptional item 504.29 4,036.29
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 343.95 335.30
Finance Costs 28.80 34.58
Exceptional items = -
Profit Before Tax 131.54 3,666.41
Tax Expenses:

- Current Tax 68.96 1,012.77
- Income Tax for earlier years (4.71) 0.85
- Deferred Tax (5.37) (10.98)
Profit for the period 72.66 2,663.77
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax (6.40) (0.91)
Total comprehensive income for the period 66.26 2,662.86

*Previous year's figures were rearranged and regrouped wherever necessary.

FERRO ALLOYS BUSINESS - INDUSTRY AT
A GLANCE

Ferro alloys are indeed crucial components in the steel
industry, playing a significant role in the production of
high-quality steel. These alloys are composed primarily of
iron and one or more other elements such as manganese,
silicon, chromium, or vanadium, among others. They are
added to molten steel during the steel making process to
impart specific properties to the final product. Ferro alloys
is one of the vital component for production of steel.

Given the critical role, the availability and quality of
ferro alloys significantly influence steel production
efficiency and the properties of the final steel products.
As a cornerstone of modern civilization, the steel industry
heavily relies on ferro alloys to produce a wide range
of materials vital for construction, infrastructure and
manufacturing etc.

Country's ferro alloy market is poised for substantial
growth due to rapid wurbanization, infrastructure
development and industrialization across the country,
which is increasing the need for steel in various
construction and manufacturing applications.

The Government's focus on infrastructure development
through various initiatives like making building bridges,
airports, roads, and other construction projects 1is
expected to further boost the demand for ferro-alloys.
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These projects not only require substantial amounts of
steel but also rely on ferro-alloys for enhancing strength
and corrosion resistance properties.

The convergence of factors such as increasing steel
demand sets a favorable stage for the growth of the ferro
alloys market in India. This growth trajectory is likely to
persist in the forecast period, driven by both domestic
demand and potentially by export opportunities,
especially if Indian ferro alloy producers can maintain
competitive pricing and quality standards on the global
stage.

Furthermore, as the global focus on sustainability
intensifies, the demand for environmentally friendly
steel production methods will likely continue to rise. This
trend could further bolster the demand for high-quality
ferro alloys, as they play a vital role in enabling cleaner
and more sustainable steel manufacturing processes.

In view of continuing Russian Ukraine war, Indian steel
industry have been facing challenges since 2022, price
of coking coal increased therefore, for meeting the
requirements the Indian producers’ imported coal from
Australia, Indonesia, Canada and South Africa etc., which
has led to increase of cost of production. Increase of cost
of other raw materials also affected the cost of production.
Country's identification of new coal reserves will help to
reduce costs. However, in other hand various Policies of
the Govt of India helping to boost steel demand.



Business overview

The global ferroalloys market is expected to reach around
USD 92.7 billion by 2033 from USD 45 .8 billion recorded in
2023, growing at a CAGR of 7.3% during the period from
2023 to 2033. Apart from China other major markets in
the region include India, Japan, South Korea, and Taiwan.

The Indian government's increased investment in
domestic construction and infrastructure sectors and
to develop sustainable cities, is expected to have a
significant impact on the steel market. The development
of sustainable cities requires extensive construction
activities, including building residential and commercial
structures, bridges, roads, and other infrastructure
components, all of which rely heavily on steel.

During the year under review, your Company has sold
12,565 MT. of Ferro Silicon as against 14,981 MT. recorded
in previous year. Your Company produced 13,196 MT.
of Ferro Silicon during the year under review as against
14,967 MT. recorded in the Financial Year 2022-23. During
the year there was an instance of furnace breakdown for
a limited period of time for which the production was
affected, however in the fourth quarter the production
increased considerably due to functionality of the 2n¢
furnace. Global steel demand for the year under review
was down which also affected domestic market. Fall
in market price affected bottom line of the Companies.
Import from Bhutan at competitive prices challenged the
industries. Therefore, Country's steel industry is facing
challenges in all corner. While your Company constantly
strivestoincrease stakeholder'svalue, emphasis continues
to be on delivering value to customers and strengthening
processes while driving sustainable practices, resulting
into expanding customer base.

POWER BUSINESS

During the year under review, your Company focused on
purchasing power from MPDCL & [EX.

OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS, RISKS AND
CONCERNS

Ferro silicon market depends on demand from steel
and stainless steel market. Continuous support from the
Government by way of introducing various policies like
National Steel Policy, ‘Make in India’ and other budgetary
support for development of infrastructure sectors helped
the ferro alloys industry to grow.

Performance of the Company depends on the continued
demand of our products in the steel and stainless-steel
industry. Ferro Silicon market in India is subdued for quite
a period of time. Highest consumption of Ferro Silicon
seen in Stainless Steel Sector followed by Mild Steel Sector.
Government's various initiatives to liberalise industrial
policy, approval of National Steel policy and policy on
'‘Make in India’ and other infrastructural initiatives taken
are expected to push the demand of ferro silicon.

Challenges being faced by the domestic companies due
to short availability of raw materials, high raw material
prices and very high-power cost, lack of infrastructural
facilities for easy transportation of raw materials to the
location affects the sector. Volatile raw material prices
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having an impact on final price charged by companies
which is affecting the profitability margins. Policy of
the Government, regulatory changes and force majeure
events may also affect the development of domestic
industry. Your Company is taking various cost effective
measures to curb on the cost and side by side also
working for alternate fuel solution.

Despite all threats, Indian Ferro alloys industry has
tremendous growth prospect due to low per capital
steel production, rapid industrialization, urbanization,
infrastructural development, thriving automobile and
railway sectors and other Government initiatives. The
Company has evolved a risk management framework
to identify, assess and mitigate the key risk factors of the
business. The Board of the Company is kept informed
about the risk management of the Company.

PERFORMANCE AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

During the year under review, on a full year basis, the
Company has posted total revenue of 314,670.66 Lakhs
and Profit before Tax of ¥131.54 Lakhs in FY 2023-24 as
against?18,819.23 Lakhs and ¥3,666.41 Lakhs respectively
during the previous financial year. Your Company
produced 13,196 MT of Ferro Silicon during the year
under review as against 14,967 MT. recorded in the
Financial Year 2022-23.

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid-up Equity Capital as on 31 March, 2024 was
%21,21,72,990 divided into 21,21,72,990 equity shares of ¥1
each. The Company has neither issued any shares with
differential voting rights nor granted stock options or
sweat equity shares.

SHARES IN SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

Disclosures of the shares lying in Company's Unclaimed
Shares Suspense Account are given in the Report of
Corporate Governance.

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION
FUND

As per Companies Act, dividends that are unclaimed/
unpaid for a period of seven (7) years from the date of
their transfer are required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (TEPF') administered by
the Central Government.

The tentative date for transfer of unclaimed and unpaid
dividends to the IEPF, declared by the Company are as
under:

Financial Year Date of Tentative Date for
Declaration transfer to IEPF
2022-23 (Interim) | 11.08.2022 17.09.2029

Members who have not encashed their dividend so far
in respect of the aforesaid periods are requested to make
their claims to Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited,
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company (RTA’)
or to the Company Secretary of the Company, at the
Company's Registered Office/ Corporate Office, well in
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advance of the above due dates. Pursuant to the provisions
of IEPF Authority (IEPF) (Accounting, Audit, Transfer
and Refund) Rules, 2016 (TEPF Rules), the Company has
uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts
lying with the Company as on September 28, 2023 (date
of the last AGM) on the website of the Company at https://
www.shyamcenturyferrous.com/ and also on the website
of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs at www.mca.gov.in.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the
Act, read with the relevant Rules made thereunder, shares
on which dividend has not been paid or claimed for
seven (7) consecutive years or more shall be transferred to
the IEPF Authority as notified by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs.

ANNUAL RETURN

In terms of requirement of section 134 (3) (a) read with
Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made thereunder, the Annual return of the Company
has been placed on the Company's website and can be
accessed at the web link at https://shyamcenturyferrous.
com/php/pdf_viewer php?pdf_path=../Annual_Return/
MGT-7_Upload.pdf

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the year, Four (4) Board Meetings and Four (4)
Audit Committee meetings were convened and held
on 19" May, 2023, 08" August, 2023, 9" November, 2023
and 07" February, 2024. The intervening gap between
the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013. The details of the Board Meeting
are provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

MEETINGS OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

During the year under review, meeting of Independent
Directors was held on 28" March, 2024 wherein the
performance of the Non-Independent Directors and
the Board as a whole was reviewed. The Independent
Directors at their meeting also, inter alia, assessed the
quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information
between the Company management and the Board of
Directors of the Company.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The composition and terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Stakeholders
Relationship Committee and Finance Committee
have been furnished in the Corporate Governance
Report forming part of this Annual Report. There has
been no instance where the Board has not accepted
the recommendations of the Audit Committee and
Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

WHISTLE

MECHANISM
The Company has formed a Whistle Blower Policy/
Vigil Mechanism as required under Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and

BLOWER POLICY/  VIGIL
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Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. A Vigil
(Whistle Blower) mechanism provides a channel to the
employees and Directors to report to the management
concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected
fraud or violation of the Codes of conduct or policy. The
mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against
victimization of employees and Directors to avail of the
mechanism and also provide for direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases.
The said policy may be referred to at the Company's
website at http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/php/policies.
php?pdi=Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf.

POLICY ON APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES

The Board has framed a Remuneration Policy for
selection, appointment and remuneration of Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
Employees. The remuneration policy aims to enable
the Company to attract, retain and motivate highly
qualified members for the Board and at other executive
levels. The remuneration policy seeks to enable the
Company to provide a well-balanced and performance-
related compensation package, taking into account
shareholders’ interests, industry standards and relevant
Indian corporate regulations. The details on the same
are given in the Corporate Governance Report. The said
policy may be referred to at the Company's website at
the web link at http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/php/
policies.php?pdf=Remuneration-policy.pdf.

CODE OF CONDUCT

With intent to enhance integrity, ethics & transparency in
governance of the Company your Company had adopted
a Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management
Personnel. The Code has been displayed on the
Company's website at http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/
php/policies.php?pdf=Code-of-Conduct-for-Senior-
Management.pdf.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECRETARIAL
STANDARD AND INDIAN ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

The Company has complied with the applicable
Secretarial Standards as recommended by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India. The Company has also
complied with all relevant Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) referred to in section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 while preparing the financial statements.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to requirement of Section 134 (3) (c) read with
section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors
hereby confirm and state that:
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Business overview

e Inthe preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable
Accounting Standards have been followed along with
the proper explanation relating to material departures,
if any.

» The Directors have selected such accounting policies
and have applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company as at 315 March, 2024 and of
the profit of the Company for the year under review.

e The Directors have taken proper and sufficient
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities.

« The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on
going concern basis.

+ The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

« The Directors have laid down internal financial
controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and
were operating effectively.

AUDITORS & AUDITORS' REPORT

M/s. DX Chhajer & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration Number: 304138E) Statutory Auditors of the
Company, have been appointed by the members at the
Tenth Annual General Meeting and shall hold office for a
period of 5 years from the date of such meeting held on
30" September, 2021.

The Statutory Auditors’ Report "with an unmodified
opinion”, given by M/s. D K Chhajer & Co., on the Financial
Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended
315t March, 2024, is appended in the Financial Statements
forming part of this Annual Report.

The notes to the accounts referred to in the Auditors’
Report are self-explanatory and, therefore, do not call for
any further comments.

COST AUDITORS

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014, the cost audit
records maintained by the Company in respect of its
manufacturing activity is required to be audited. Your
Directors have, on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, appointed M/s. B. G. Chowdhury & Co., Cost
Accountants, (Firm Registration Number: 000064) as Cost
Auditors of the Company for the financial year ended
31 March, 2024 in the Board Meeting held on 19" May,
2023. The remuneration proposed to be paid to them for
the financial year 2023-24, as recommended by audit
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committee, was ratified in the meeting of shareholders
held on 28" September, 2023.

The Board of Directors of the Company on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, appointed
M/s. B. G. Chowdhury & Co., Cost Accountants, (Firm
Registration Number: 000064), as the Cost Auditors of the
Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 under section
148 of the Companies Act, 2013. M/s. B. G. Chowdhury
& Co. have confirmed that their appointment is within
the limits of Section 141(3)(g) of the Companies Act,
2013 and have also certified that they are free from any
disqualifications specified under section 141(3). The Audit
Committee has also received a Certificate from the Cost
Auditors certifying their independence and arm's length
relationship with the Company.

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is required to be
placed before the Members in a General Meeting for their
ratification. Accordingly, a Resolution seeking Members'
ratification for the remuneration payable to M/s. B. G.
Chowdhury & Co., Cost Auditors for the financial year
2024-25 is included in the Notice convening the Annual
General Meeting.

The cost audit report for the Financial Year 2022-23
was filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 06"
September, 2023.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
the Company has appointed M/s. MKB & Associates
(Firm Registration Number: P2010WB042700), a firm
of Company Secretaries in Practice to undertake the
Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Secretarial Audit
Report is annexed herewith marked Annexure-1. The
report is self-explanatory and do not call for any further
comments.

REPORTING OF FRAUD

The Auditors of the Company have notreported any fraud
as specified under section 143(12) of the Companies Act,
2013.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES
OR INVESTMENTS

During the year under review, your Company has not
made any investment or provided guarantee or security
in connection with a loan to any person exceeding the
limit specified in Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Details of Investments covered under the provisions of
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the
notes to the Financial Statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions are entered on arm's
length basis, in the ordinary course of business and
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are in compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. There are no materially significant
related party transactions made by the Company with
Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other
designated persons which may have a potential conflict
with the interest of the Company at large. In terms of
Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, there were no material contract or
arrangement entered into by the Company with related
parties as referred to in Section 188. Therefore, disclosure
in Form AOC-2 is not applicable. However, the details of
the transactions with the Related Party are provided in the
Company's financial statements in accordance with the
Accounting Standards.

All Related Party Transactions are presented to the
Audit Committee and the Board. Omnibus approval has
been obtained for the transactions which are foreseen
and repetitive in nature. A statement of all related party
transactions is presented before the Audit Committee on
a quarterly basis, specifying the nature, value and terms
and conditions of the transactions. A policy on 'Related
Party Transactions’ has been devised by the Company
which may be referred to at the Company's website at
the web link at http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/php/
policies.php?pdf=Related-Party-Policy.pdf.

RESERVES

During the year under review no amount was transferred
to reserves.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of your Company after considering
holistically the relevant circumstances and in order to
conserve resources for future plans has decided that
it would be prudent, not to recommend any Dividend
for the Financial Year 2023-24 (Previous Year: Interim
Dividend 30% i.e.0.30 each per equity share of face value
of %1 each).

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information on conservation of energy, technology
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo
as stipulated in section 134 (3) (m) of the Act and rules
framed there under is mentioned below:

(A) Steps taken toward Conservation of energy:

e 132KV 11MVA,33KV old Furnace transformer
replaced by new 33KV/98-44/-162V 11MVA
furnace transformer resulted reduction in no load
loss, furnaces with 100% loading capacity and
increase the production quantity.

(B) Steps taken toward Technical Absorption:

e Furnace # 1 shell new bricks and paste lining
work has been done resulted to leakage arrest
in tap hole side, reduce shutdown period & also
improve the production quantity.
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e Pump house old water pipe line replaced and
new spare pump installed resulting water leakage
arrested and to avoid shut down

e Furmnace # 1 and Furnace #3 RCC bed casting
done for Fesi hot metal in place of cast iron pan
casting, resulted more thin cake to avoid dusting
also less under size generation.

o TFurnace # 2 telfer car track modification done,
resulted increasing of Nos of batches quantity
and reducing feeding problem.

e Ground hopper No # 1 modification done,
resulted increase of volume of raw material
feeding quantity and reduce raw material feeding
timing.

The Company has developed a Research &
Development cell for carrying out R&D Projects in
the plant with specific objective of development of
advanced systems for quality improvement. The
company has been taking advice from outside expert
agency with the objective of improvement in quality
and Research & Development. Revenue Expenditure
for quality improvement paid ¥13.5 Lakhs (P.Y. NIL).

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings And Outgo
During the period under review, Foreign Exchange
Earning was NIL (Previous Year NIL) and Foreign
Exchange Outgo was NIL (Previous Year NIL).

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
INITIATIVES (CSR)
HEALTH CARE:

The initiatives were undertaken for distribution of
medicines under the Pradhan Mantri TB Mukt yojana.

Contributions also made to the Hospitals.

EDUCATION:

Contributions made towards promoting education and
development of school.

The Committee is headed by Mr. Rajesh Kumar Agarwal,
Director of your Company and consists of Members as
stated below:

Name Category Chairman/
Members

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Non- Chairman

Agarwal Independent

Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar Non- Member

Agrawal Independent

Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah  Independent Member

Annual Report on CSR as required to be annexed in terms
of requirement of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013
and rules framed thereunder is annexed herewith and
marked Annexure - 2.

The CSR Policy of the Company is available on
the Company's website under the weblink: at


http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/php/policies.php?pdf=Related-Party-Policy.pdf
http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/php/policies.php?pdf=Related-Party-Policy.pdf
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http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/php/policies.
php?pdf=SCFL-%20CSR%20policy.pdf

EVALUATION OF
PERFORMANCE

In compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and as
per Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements
Regulations formulated by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (SEBI), the Company has adopted a policy
for evaluation of performance of the Board of Directors.
The Board follows a formal mechanism for the evaluation
of the performance of the Board as well as Committee.

THE BOARD'S

A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking
into consideration inputs received from the Directors,
covering various aspects of the Board's functioning such
as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its
Committees, Board culture, execution and performance
of specific duties, obligations and governance.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its
meeting established the criteria based on which the
Board will evaluate the performance of the Directors.

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the
performance of individual Directors including the
Chairman of the Board on parameters such as level
of engagement and contribution, independence of
judgment, safeguarding the interest of the Company
and its minority shareholders, etc. The performance
evaluation of the Non-Independent Directors and Board
as a whole was also carried out by the Independent
Directors.

The Directors expressed their satisfaction over the
evaluation process and results thereof.

DIRECTORS
PERSONNEL

Mr. Sumanta Kumar Patra resigned as Whole-time
Director & Chief Executive Officer of the Company w.e 1.
close of business hours of 31 March, 2024. The Board
places on record its appreciation for the services rendered
by Mr. Patra during his tenure.

AND KEY MANAGERIAL

On the recommendation of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on 22" May, 2024, appointed Mr. Venkata
Krishna Nageswara Rao Majji (DIN: 07035891) as the Non-
Executive Director of the Company with effect from 22¢
May, 2024. In terms of Regulation 17(1C) of the Listing
Regulations, the listed entity is required to obtain approval
of the shareholders for the appointment of new Director
at the next General Meeting or within a time period of
three months from the date of appointment, whichever
is earlier. Accordingly, the shareholders of the Company
need to approve the appointment of Mr. Venkata Krishna
Nageswara Rao Majji as a Non-Executive Director of the
Company, by way of special resolution through postal
ballot by way of voting through electronic means or by
the next General Meeting whichever is earlier.
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Mr. Venkata Krishna Nageswara Rao Majji, aged about 72
years, is a Science graduate having more than 48 years of
rich experience in the fields of Administration, Planning,
Technical and Commercial etc. He is having expertise in
production and operation of high carbon ferro chrome,
low carbon ferro chrome, ferro manganese, ferro silicon,
silico manganese, silico chrome etc., He was recipient of
National Energy Conservation Award from Govt of India,
Ministry of Power.

Mr. Venkata Krishna Nageswara Rao Majji has given his
consent for appointment and has confirmed that he does
not suffer from any disqualifications for appointment.

In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act,
2013 and In terms of the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company, Mr. Rajesh Kumar
Agarwal (DIN: 00223718) will retire by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. In view of his
considerable experience, your Directors recommend his
re- appointment as Director of the Company.

DECLARATION BY
DIRECTORS

All Independent Directors have given declarations that
they meet the criteria of independence as laid down
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and they
have complied with the Code for Independent Directors
prescribed in Schedule IV to the Act and the Listing
Regulations.

INDEPENDENT

Mr. Nirmalya Bhattacharyya, Mrs. Plistina Dkhar and
Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah are Independent Directors on the
Board of your Company. In the opinion of the Board and
as confirmed by these Directors, they fulfill the conditions
specified in section 149 of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder and the Listing Regulations about their status
as Independent Director of the Company.

Your Board of Directors formed opinion that the
Independent Directors of the Company are maintaining
highest standard of integrity and possessing expertise,
requisite qualifications and relevant experience in the
fields of Administration, General management, Accounts
& Finance, Audit, Internal Audit, Taxation, Risk, Board
procedures, Governance etc, for performing their role
as Independent Directors of the Company. Regarding
proficiency, all Independent Directors have registered
themselves in the Data Bank maintained with the Indian
Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA), Manesar. In terms of
Section 150 of the Actread with Rule 6(4) of the Companies
(Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the
Independent Directors are required to undertake online
proficiency self- assessment test conducted by the IICA
within a period of 2 (two) year from the date of inclusion
of their names in the data bank. Mrs. Plistina Dkhar,
Independent Directors is exempted from qualifying
‘online proficiency test’ due to her relevant experience in
listed companies and the Companies with Paid up equity
Capital is 10 Crore and more. Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah
and Mr. Nirmalya Bhattacharyya were appeared in ‘online
proficiency test’ within the period of 1 (one) year and 2
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(two) years from the date of inclusion of their name in the
data bank and has successfully qualified the test.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME
UNDERTAKEN FOR INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS

In order to enable the Independent Directors to
perform their duties optimally, the Board has devised
a familiarisation programme for the Independent
Directors to familiarise them with the Company, their
roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of
the industry in which the Company operates, business
model of the Company, etc. They are periodically
updated about the development which takes place in
the Company. The Independent Directors have been
issued Letter of Appointment setting out in detail, the
terms of appointment, duties, responsibilities and
commitments etc. The familiarisation program 1is
available on the Company's website under the weblink:
at http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/php/policies.
php?pdf=familiarization_programme_for_independent_
directors.pdf

SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT
VENTURE

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate
and joint venture.

CHANGES IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

There has not been any change in the nature of business.

DEPOSITS

During the year under report, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from public or from any of the
Directors of the Company or their relatives falling under
ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013.

SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED
BY THE COURTS OR REGULATORS

In respect of demand notice dated 19% February, 2020
received by the Company from Director of Mineral
Resources, Meghalaya, for payment of royalty, MEPRF,
VAT/GST for 1,739 Lacs (approx) in pursuance to the
National Green Tribunal (NGT) Order dated 17" January,
2020 passed in O.A. No. 110(TCH)/2012 for alleged illegal
coal procurement. By passing the said order NGT has
accepted the Recommendation of the 5% Interim Report
of the Independent Committee set up by NGT, which has
suggested imposition of penalty on Cement Companjies
and Thermal Power Plants in Meghalaya.

The Company has not purchased any illegal coal and has
complied with all disclosure requirements of the various
Government Departments. The Report of NGT Committee
has been founded on the basis of assumptions and views
of the Committee and not on hard facts. Further to note
that the Company has neither been issued a show-
cause nor any opportunity of being heard was given to
the Company before submitting the Interim reports by
the Independent Committee to NGT. Even NGT has not
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served any notice on the Company before passing the
impugned order dated 17" January, 2020 which is clear
violation of principles of natural justice. In addition, the
Committee also recommended that an amount of Rs.
400/MT of coal to be utilized by the Company (and other
plants) on or after the date of the order shall be directed to
be deposited in the MEPRF, which comes to Rs. 446 Lakhs
(approx).

Accordingly, the Company had preferred an appeal,
being C.A. No.4144 of 2020, before the Apex Court. The
Apex court vide it's order dated 02.05.2023 restored the
proceeding in relation to the Company back to the file
of the NGT, at the stage, at which they stood prior to the
passing of the judgement dated 17.01.2020.

On 27 Nov, 2023, the Company filed an application for
impleadment which was allowed by the NGT, Eastern
Zone Bench, Kolkata. Further, the Company has also filed
a counter affidavit before the NGT, Eastern Zone Bench
which was taken on record on 9™ Feb, 2024 and the said
case is now listed for hearing before the NGT, Kolkata on
02.08.2024. And hence , no provision has been made in
the books of account.

(Refer Note no. 42(a) of Notes to Accounts).

Other than the aforesaid, there have been no significant
and material order passed by the Courts/Regulators
impacting the going concern status and future operations
of the Company

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

No material changes or commitments have occurred
between the end of the financial year and the date of
this Report which affect the financial statements of the
Company in respect of the reporting year.

CREDIT RATINGS

Your Company enjoys a sound reputation for its prudent
financial management and its ability to meet financial
obligations. ICRA Limited has assigned the long term
rating of ICRA BBB+ (Stable) (Pronounced as ICRA triple B
Plus) and the short term rating of ICRA A2+ (Pronounced
as ICRA A two plus).

ADEQUACY OF
CONTROL

The Company maintains comprehensive internal control
systerm, commensurate with the size of its operations
and monitoring procedure for all the major processes
to ensure reliability of financial reporting, timely
feedback on achievement of operational and strategic
goals, compliance with policies, procedures, laws and
regulations, safeguarding of assets and economical and
efficient use of resources.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL

The Board of Directors of the Company on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, re-appointed
M/s. K. Baldawa & Co., Chartered Accountants, as the
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Internal Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year
2024-25 under section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013.
M/s. K. Baldawa & Co., have confirmed about their re-
appointment. The Internal Auditors periodically reviews
the effectiveness and efficacy of Internal Control Systems
and procedures. Audits are finalised and conducted based
on internal risk assessments. Significant deviations from
the standard procedures are brought to the notice of
the Audit Committee/Board periodically and corrective
measures are recommended for implementation. All
these steps facilitate timely detection of any irregularities,
frauds and errors and early remedial measures to be
undertaken so that no monetary losses are sustained.
Significant audit observations, if any, and corrective
actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of
the Board.
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INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Company has in place adequate internal financial
controls commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations. During the year, such
controls were tested and no reportable material weakness
in the design or operations were observed. The Company
has policies and procedures in place for ensuring proper
and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES (I.E., CHANGES OF 25% OR MORE) IN KEY FINANCIAL
RATIO AND CHANGE IN RETURN ON NETWORTH ALONGWITH DETAILED EXPLANATIONS

Key Financial Ratios FY 2022-23 | % change | Explanation for significant changes

Debtors Turnover ratio 8.44 5.68 485 Higher inventory turnover ratio due to
decreased sale price.

Inventory Turnover ratio 418 6.31 (33.7) |Higher inventory turnover ratio due to
decreased sale and average inventory.

Interest Coverage ratio 6.87 59.64 (88.5) | Decrease in Debt service coverage ratio is
because of decrease in profit.

Current ratio 8.82 8.23 7.2 'NA

Debt Equity ratio 0.009 0.013 (28.5) | Lower Debt Equity ratio is because of reduction
in debt.

Operating Profit Margin (%) 0.0 0.16 (97.2) | This Change in ratio is due to decrease in
profit after tax.

Net Profit Margin 0.05 0.147 (96.4) This change in ratio is due to decrease in
revenue from operation and corresponding
profit after tax.

Return on Net Worth 0.01 0.226 (95.7) | Decline in ratio is primarily due to decrease in
equity arising on account of decrease in EBIT.

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION AND DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE IN VALUATION

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The disclosures with respect to the remuneration of
Directors and employees as required under Section 197 of
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 along with a statement containing
particulars of employees as required under Section 197
of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (2) and (3) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith
and marked Annexure- 3 and forms part of this report.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR
ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER
THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY
CODE, 2016

There was no application made or proceeding pending
against the Company under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016, during the year under review.

The requirement to disclose the details of difference
between amount of the valuation done at the time of
onetime settlement and the valuation done while taking
loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with
the reasons thereof, is not applicable.

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL
HARASSMENT

The Company values the integrity and dignity of its
employees. The Company has put in place a 'Policy
on Prevention of Sexual Harassment' as per the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 ("Sexual Harassment
Act’) and has constituted the Committee with internal
and external members. We affirm that adequate access
has been provided to any complainants who wish to
register a complaint under the policy. No complaint was
received during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the corporate
governance requirements as stipulated under the Listing
Obligations and Disclosures Requirements Regulations
formulated by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI). A separate section on corporate governance,
along with a certificate from the auditors confirming the
compliance, is annexed and forms part of the Annual
Report. This certificate will be forwarded to the Stock
Exchanges along with the Annual Report of the Company.

MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF
FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION

As required under Regulation 17(8) of the Listing
Obligations and Disclosures Requirements Regulations
formulated by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI), the Managing Director and CFO certification
has been submitted to the Board and a copy thereof is
contained in this Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management refers to the practice of identifying
potential risks in advance, analysing them and taking
precautionary steps to reduce the risk. The Company
has evolved a risk management framework to identify,
assess and mitigate the key risk factors of the business.
The Board of the Company is kept informed about the
risk management of the Company.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT &
INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company has always provided a congenial
atmosphere for work to all sections of society. It has
provided equal opportunities of employment to all
irrespective to their caste, religion, color, marital status
and sex. The Company believes that human capital of
the Company is its most valuable assets and its human
resource policies are aligned towards this objective.

The Company focuses on enhancing organisational
performance by focusing on quick grievance resolution
mechanisms and maintaining cordial relations with
employees and workmen across all levels. The relation
amongst its employees remained harmonious and the
year under review remained free from any labor unrest.

During the year under review, there has not been any
material changes in human resources and industrial
relations.

Rajesh Kumar Agarwal

Place: Kolkata
Date: 22" May, 2024

14 1 SHYAM CENTURY FERROUS LIMITED

GREEN INITIATIVES
GOVERNANCE

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has permitted Companies to
send copies of Annual report, Notices, etc., electronically
to the email IDs of shareholders. Your Company has
arranged to send the soft copies of these documents to
the registered email IDs of the shareholders, wherever
applicable. In case, any shareholder would like to receive
physical copies of these documents, the same shall be
forwarded upon receipt of written request in this respect.

IN CORPORATE

The Ministry of Corporate Affairshastaken 'Green Initiative
in the Corporate Governance' by allowing paperless
compliances by the Companies and has issued circulars
stating that service of notice/documents including
Annual Report can be sent by e-mail to its members
for the financial year 31t March, 2024. A newspaper
advertisement in this regard is being published.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this report describing the Company's
objectives, expectations or predictions, may be forward
looking within the meaning of applicable securities laws
and regulations. Actual results may differ materially from
those expressed in the statement. Important factors that
could influence the Company's operations include: global
and domestic demand and supply conditions affecting
selling prices, new capacity additions, availability of
critical materials and their cost, changes in government
policies and tax laws, economic development of the
country, our business, the businesses of our customers,
vendors and partners and other factors which are material
to the business operations of the Company.
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Your Directors take this opportunity to express their
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal
Managing Director
(DIN: 03330313)

Director
(DIN: 00223718)



Business overview

Statutory reports Financial statements

Annexure -1
FORM NO. MR-3

Secretarial Audit Report

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members,
SHYAM CENTURY FERROUS LIMITED

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by SHYAM
CENTURY FERROUS LIMITED (hereinafter called "the
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

The Company's Management is responsible for
preparation and maintenance of secretarial and other
records and for devising proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of applicable laws and
Regulations.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit and considering the relaxations granted
by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and
Exchange Board of India due to COVID-19 pandemic,
we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company
has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 315 March, 2024 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company for the financial year ended on 31t March,
2024, to the extent applicable, according to the provisions
of:

i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules
made thereunder;

ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and
Rules made thereunder;

iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and Regulations and Bye-
laws framed thereunder;

iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and
the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

V)

Vi)

The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the
Securities & Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI
Act’) or by SEBI, to the extent applicable:

a) The Securities & Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover)
Regulations, 2011

b) The Securities & Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations 2015

c) The Securities & Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018

d) The Securitiesand Exchange Board of India (Share
Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021

e) The Securities & Exchange Board of India (Issue
and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008

f) The Securities & Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018

i) The Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

Other than fiscal, labour and environmental laws
which are generally applicable to all manufacturing
companies, the following laws/acts are also, inter alia,
applicable to the Company:

a) The Boilers Act, 1923
b) The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

c) The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution)
Act, 1974

d) The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution)
Act, 1981

e) The Meghalaya Forest Act, 1973
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable
clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute
of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has
complied withthe provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that

b) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with proper balance of Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors.There has
been no change in the composition of the Board of
Directors during the period under review.Adequate
notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information

Date: 22" May, 2024
Place: Kolkata
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and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

c) None of the directors in any meeting dissented on
any resolution and hence there was no instance
of recording any dissenting member's view in the
minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and
processes in the Company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which
is annexed as Annexure — I which forms an integral part
of this report.

For MKB & Associates
Company Secretaries
Firm Reg No: P2010WB042700

Raj Kumar Banthia

Partner

Membership no. 17190

COP no. 18428

Peer Review Certificate No.:1663/2022
UDIN: A017190F000421726
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Annexure - |

The Members,
SHYAM CENTURY FERROUS LIMITED

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Itis management's responsibility to identify the Laws,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and Directions which
are applicable to the Company depending upon the
industry in which it operates and to comply and
maintain those records with same in letter and in
spirit. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
those records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and process
as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial

Date: 22" May, 2024
Place: Kolkata

records. We believe that the process and practices we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and
appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the
Management's Representation about the compliance
of Laws, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and Directions
and happening events, etc.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For MKB & Associates
Company Secretaries
Firm Reg No: P2010WB042700

Raj Kumar Banthia

Partner

Membership no. 17190

COPno. 18428

Peer Review Certificate No.:1663/2022
UDIN: A017190F000421726
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Annexure - 2

Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Activities/ Initiatives

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Act & Rules made thereunder]

1. A brief outline on the Company’s CSR policy:

The Company has framed a CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per
The Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as and when amended. The main objective of
the policy is to establish the basic principles and the general framework of action for management to undertake and
fulfil its Corporate Social Responsibility.

2. The composition of the CSR Committee:

Sl. | Name of Director Designation / Nature of Number of Number of

No. Directorship meetings of CSR = meetings of CSR
Committee held Committee attended
during the year during the year

1 Mr. Rajesh Kumar Agarwal | Chairman (Non-Executive Director) 2 2

Mr. Aditya VimalKumar Member (Managing Director) 2 2
...... Agrawal
3 Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah | Member (Independent Director) 2 2

3. Providethe web-link(s) where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the company:

The Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects as approved by the Board are available on the
Company's website under the following web-link:

CSR Committee | https://shyamcenturyferrous.com/php/board_committe_structure.php?pdf=Composition_
of_Board_Committee_Structure pdf

CSR Policy https://shyamcenturyferrous.com/code_policies/SCFL-%20CSR%20policy.pdf
CSR Projects

4. Provide the executive summary along with the web-link(s) of Impact assessment of CSR
projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended, if applicable (attach the report):
Not Applicable

5. (a) Average Net Profit of the Company for last 3 financial year as per section 135(5):
73,814.51 Lakhs

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): 776.29 Lakhs

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial year: NIL

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (b+c-d): 37629 Lakhs

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project):
376.83 Lakhs

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (a+b+c): 376.83 Lakhs

18 1 SHYAM CENTURY FERROUS LIMITED
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(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Unspent (in %)
Amount  Total Amount transferred to Unspent, Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Spent for the CSR Account as per section 135(6) | Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 135(5)

Financial Amount Date of transfer | Name of the Fund | Amount Date of transfer
Year (in3)
376.83 Lakhs NIL

(f) Excess amount for set off, if any

Sl Particular Amount

No. (% in Lakhs)

(1) (2) (3)

(i) | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 76.29

(ii) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 76.83

(111) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(1)] 0.54

(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous Nil
financial year, if any

(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial year [(iii)- (iv)] 0.54

7. (a) Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three

financial years:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sl. | Preceding Amount Balance Amount | Amount transferred | Amount | Deficiency,
No.  Financial | transferred Amount in spent to any fund remaining if any
Year(s) to Unspent Unspent in the specified under to be
CSR Account | CSR Account Financial | Schedule VII as per spent in
under under Year (in %) | section 135(5), if any succeeding
section 135 section Amount @ Date of financial
(6) (in?3) 135(6) (in %) (ing) transfer | years. (ing)
NIL
Total

Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: Not Applicable

1 v [

If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired | Not Applicable |

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount
spent in the financial year:

Sl. | Short particulars of the | Pincode Dateof @ Amount Details of entity/Authority/beneficiary of
No. property or asset (s) ofthe Creation of CSR the registered owner
(including complete property amount
address and location of or spent
the property) asset(s)
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)
CSR Registration Name | Registered

Number, if applicable address

(Note: All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no., house no., Municipal Office/
Municipal Corporation/Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable property as well as
boundaries)

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two percent of the average net
profit as per section 135(5): Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajesh Kumar Agarwal Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal

Director Managing Director

Place: Kolkata (DIN: 00223718) (DIN: 03330313)
Date: 2274 May, 2024 Chairman — CSR Committee
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Annexure -3

Particulars of Managerial Remuneration

Statement pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the
employees and percentage increase in remuneration of the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company for the financial year:

Name of Directors & Key Designation Increase in Ratio of remuneration of
Managerial Personnel Remuneration | each director to median
in the financial remuneration of all
year (%) employees*
Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal | Managing Director NIL 18.96:1
Mr. Sumanta Kumar Patra* Whole-Time Director & Chief 9.59 10.12:1

Executive Officer

(Resigned w.e.f close of business

hours of 315 March, 2024)
Mr. Uday Bahadur Chetri Chief Financial Officer 9.58 4731
Mrs. Ritu Agarwal Company Secretary *x 3.53:1

*  None of the Non-Executive Directors receive any remuneration from the Company and the Independent
Directors are paid only sitting fees for attending the meeting of the Board or Committee thereof.

**  Since this information is for the part of the financial year 2022-23, the same is not comparable.

(ii) Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year: 9%
(iii) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company: 125

(iv)Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there
are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

The average percentile increase in the salaries of non-managerial employees in the Financial Year 2022-23 was 9%
while the average percentile increase of Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal is NIL.

(v) Itis hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year is as per the Remuneration
Policy of the Company.
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Report on Corporate Governance for the Year 2023-24

The Directors present the Company's Report on
Corporate Governance

Company's on

Governance

Philosophy Corporate

The Company's philosophy on Corporate Governanceisto
enhance the long-term economic value of the Company
atlarge and its stakeholders. [t emphasizes the need for full
transparency, accountability and compliances with laws
and regulations in allits transactions and interactions with
its stakeholders, employees, lenders and the Government
etc., without compromising the environment and health
of society at large. Your Company has complied with
the requirements of Corporate Governance as laid down
under SEBI Regulations.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

As on the date of this report, the Board consists of Six
Directors out of which one is Executive Director, two
are Non-Executive Directors and three are Independent
Directors out of which one is a woman Director. The
Board members are expert in different disciplines of
corporate working. The Independent Directors are
expert professionals with high credentials and actively
contribute in the deliberations of the Board.

None of the Directors is a member of the Board of more
than twenty Companies or a Member of more than ten
Board-level Committees or a Chairman of more than

five such Committees. Further, none of the Directors is
a member of the Board in more than seven listed entities
and Independent Directors of the Company are not
serving as an Independent Director in more than seven
listed entities. None of the Managing Directors of the
Company are serving as an Independent Director in not
more than three listed entities.

Mr. Sumanta Kumar Patra, Chief Executive Officer and
Wholetime Director of the Company has resigned from
the post w.e.f. close of business hours of 315 March, 2024.

Mr. Uday Bahadur Chetri is the Chief Financial Officer of
the Company.

The Composition as on date is as provided below:

Name of the Directors Designation Category
Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar Managing Executive
Agrawal Director

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Director Non-
Agarwal Executive
Mrs. Plistina Dkhar Director Independent
Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah | Director Independent
Mr. Nirmalya Director Independent
Bhattacharyya

Mr. Venkata Krishna Additional Non-
Nageswara Rao Majji* Director Executive

* Appointed as Non-Executive Director of the

Company w.e f. 2274 May, 2024.

Directorship, Committee membership and Chairmanship

The details as at 315 March, 2024 of each member of the Board along with the number of Directorship(s)/Committee
Membership(s) and Committee Chairmanship/ name of listed entities where he/she is a Director and category of
Directorship as on date of this report are provided herein below:

Public Limited
Companies *

Name of the Director Number of Number of Name of listed entities where he/she is a
Directorship of Membership Director and category of Directorship
other Unlisted including

Chairmanship of
Board Committee(s) **

Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar 3 3 -

Agrawal

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Agarwal 10 3 (1 as Chairman) Century Plyboards (India) Limited -
Whole-time Director

Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah 8 7 (3 as Chairman) Skipper Limited - Independent Director

Mrs. Plistina Dkhar 1 - Star Cement Limited — Independent Director

Mr. Nirmalya Bhattacharyya 4 5 (3 as Chairman) Star Cement Limited - Independent Director

Mr. Sumanta Kumar Patra -

* Includes Private Companies which are subsidiaries of Public Limited Companies, Unlimited Liability Companies,
Companies registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013, Membership of Managing Committees of
Chambers of Commerce/Professional Bodies but excludes Foreign Companies.

**

22 1 SHYAM CENTURY FERROUS LIMITED
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The list of core skills/ expertise/competencies as identified by the Board of Directors as required in the
context of business and sector for it to function effectively and those actually available with the Board

of Directors

Industry, Leadership, Accounts & Finance, Taxes, Production, Technical, Logistics, Legal, Sales, Marketing, Branding,
Risks, Administration, General Management, Board procedures and Governance.

List of Directors possessing the aforesaid skills/expertise and competencies:

Name of Directors

Skills/Expertise and Competencies

Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal

Administration and General Management, Industry, Accounts &
Finance, Production, Technical, Logistics, Sales, Marketing, Board
procedures and Governance

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Agarwal

Industry , Accounts & Finance and Audit & Internal Audit, Taxation,
Risk, Board procedures and Governance etc.

Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah

Accounts & Finance and Audit & Internal Audit, Taxation, Risk, Board
procedures, Governance etc.

Mrs. Plistina Dkhar

Administration and General
Governance etc.

management, Board procedures,

Mr. Nirmalya Bhattacharyya

Administration, Banking, Personality Development, Human Behaviours

Mr. Sumanta Kumar Patra*
Aspects

Administration, Planning, Co-Ordination, Technical And Commercial

Mr. Venkata Krishna Nageswara Rao Majji**

Industry, Administration, Planning, Technical and Commercial etc.

*  Resigned w.e.f. close of business hours of 31 March, 2024.

**  Appointed w.e.f. from 2274 May, 2024

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Independent
Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the listing
regulations and are independent of the management.

Board Meetings and Procedures

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide
on the policies and strategies with respect to the business
of the Company apart from normal business. The Board
generally meets at least once in every quarter to review
the Quarterly results. Additional meetings are held as and
when necessary.

Allthe meetings are scheduled wellin advance and notices
are sent to all the Directors at their address registered with
the Company. The agenda of the meeting are backed
by necessary supporting information and documents
to enable the Board to take informed decisions. Agenda
also includes minutes of the meetings of all the Board
Committees for the information of the Board. Additional
agenda items in the form of "Other Business” are included
with the permission of the Chairman and consent of
the members. Drafts minutes of the proceedings of the
Board/Committee Meetings are circulated in advance
and comments, if any, received from the Directors are
incorporated in the minutes in consultation with the
Chairman. The Board periodically reviews compliance
reports of all laws applicable to the Company. Information
about major events/items is placed before the Board
and approval of the Board is taken on all such matters
wherever such approval is required. Senior executives of
the Company are invited as and when required to provide
additional inputs or clarifications required on agenda
items being discussed in the Board Meeting.

Number and dates of Board Meetings held during
the year

Four (4) Board Meetings were held during the Financial
Year 2023-24 and the gap between two meetings did not
exceed four months. The Meetings were held on 19%
May, 2023; 8" August, 2023; 9" November, 2023 and 7%
February, 2024. Attendance at the Board Meetings during
the Financial Year 2023-24 and at the previous Annual
General Meeting is as under:

Name of Director No. of Board | Last AGM
Meeting Attended
Attended

Mrs. Plistina Dkhar 1 No

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Agarwal 4 Yes

Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar 4 Yes

Agrawal

Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah 4 Yes

Mr. Nirmalya Bhattacharyya 4 Yes

Mr. Sumanta Kumar Patra 4 Yes

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors

As stipulated by the Code for Independent Directors under
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations,
separate meetings of the Independent Directors of
the Company were held on 28" March, 2024, to review
the performance of Non-Independent Directors and
the Board as a whole. The Independent Directors also
reviewed the quality, content and timeliness of the flow
of information between the Management and the Board
and Committees, which is necessary to effectively and
reasonably perform and discharge their duties.
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Induction and Familiarization Program for
Directors

As per the Listing Regulations, the Company shall
provide suitable training to the Directors to familiarize
them with the Company, nature of the industry in
which the Company operates etc. The members of the
Board of Directors are well acquainted with the industry
and are provided necessary reports, documents and
other presentations including interactive session with
Managing Director and other heads of the Company.
Efforts are made to familiarize the Directors about their
roles, rights, andresponsibilities. The Directorsareregularly
updated on the changes in policies, laws and regulations
and other developments in the business. The details of the
Director's induction and familiarization are available on
the Company's website at http://shyamcenturyferrous.
com/php/policies. php?pdf=familiarization_programme_
for_independent_directors.pdf

Performance Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the SEBI
Regulations, the Board has carried out the annual
performance evaluation of its own performance, as well
as the evaluation of the working of its Committees. A
structured questionnaire for evaluation was prepared
after taking into consideration inputs received from
the Directors, covering various aspects of the Board's
functioning such as adequacy of the composition of
the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution
and performance of specific duties, obligations and
governance.

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the
performance of individual Directors on parameters such
as attendance, contribution and independent judgement.
The performance evaluation of the Non-Independent
Directors and Board as a whole was also carried out by
the Independent Directors.

The results of the Evaluation were shared with the Board,
Chairman of respective Committees and individual
Directors. The Directors expressed their satisfaction over
the evaluation process.

Resume of Directors proposed to be re-appointed/
appointed:

The brief resume of Directors retiring by rotation and
seeking re-appointment/appointment is appended in the
notice convening the Annual General Meeting.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Currently, the Board has five Committees: Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee and Finance Committee. The
terms of reference of these Committees are determined
by the Board and subject to be reviewed from time to time.
Meetings of each of these Committees are convened by
the respective Chairman of the Committee, who also
informs the Board about the summary of discussions

24 1 SHYAM CENTURY FERROUS LIMITED

held in the Committee Meetings. The Minutes of
the Committee Meetings are sent to all members of
Committee individually and tabled at the Board Meetings.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is governed by a Charter which is
in line with the regulatory requirements mandated by the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations. The
Committee is responsible for the effective supervision
of the financial reporting processes to ensure accurate,
timely, and proper disclosures and transparency, integrity
and quality of financial reporting.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
broadly inter alia as follows:

i Oversight of the company's financial reporting
process and the disclosure of its financial information
to ensure that the financial statement is correct,
sufficient and credible;

ii. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration
and terms of appointment of auditors of the company;

iii. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any
other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

iv. Reviewing, with the management, the annual
financial statements and auditor's report thereon
before submission to the board for approval, with
particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the Director's
Responsibility Statement to be included in the
Board's Report;

b. Changes, if any, In accounting policies and
practices and reasons for the same;

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates
based on the exercise of judgment by
management;

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial
statements arising out of audit findings;

e. Compliance with listing and other legal
requirements relating to financial statements;

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions;
g. modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report

v. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly
financial statements before submission to the board
for approval;

vi. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of
uses /application of funds raised through an issue
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the
statement of funds utilized for purposes other than
those stated in the offer document / prospectus /
notice and the report submitted by the monitoring
agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of
a public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in
this matter;
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vil. Review and monitor the auditor's independence and
performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

viil. Approval or any subsequent modification of
transactions of the company with related parties;

ix. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

x. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company,
wherever it is necessary;

x1. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk
management systems;

xii. Reviewing, with the management, performance
of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the
internal control systems;

xiii. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function,
if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official
heading the department, reporting structure coverage
and frequency of internal audit;

xiv. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant
findings and follow up there on;

xv. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations
by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal

Composition, number of Meetings and Attendance

Statutory reports Financial statements

control systems of a material nature and reporting the
matter to the board;

xvi. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit
commences, about the nature and scope of audit,
audit observations as well as post-audit discussion to
ascertain any area of concern;

xvii.To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in
the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared
dividends) and creditors;

xviiiTo review the functioning of the Whistle Blower
mechanism;

xix. Approval of appointment of CFO (ie, the whole-
time Finance Director or any other person heading
the finance function or discharging that function)
after assessing the qualifications, experience and
background, etc. of the candidate;

xx. To review utilization of loans and/ or advances by
holding company in subsidiary companies exceeding
3100 croresor 10% of asset size of subsidiary whichever
is lower.

[

xx1. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in

the terms of reference of the audit committee.

The Audit Committee met four (4) times during the Financial Year 2023-24. The Audit Committee's composition
meets the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Regulations. The Members of the Audit
Committee possess financial/ accounting expertise/ exposure. The meetings were held on 19" May, 2023, 8" August,

2023, 9" November, 2023 and 7% February, 2024.

The Audit Committee comprises of the following members and the details of meetings attended by the Directors are

asunder:
Name Category Designation No. of Committee Meetings
attended
Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah Non-Executive Independent Chairman 4
Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal | Executive Director Member 4
Mr. Nirmalya Bhattacharyya Non-Executive Independent Member 4

Audit Committee meetings are attended by the Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer of the Company
and Representatives of Statutory Auditors and Internal
Auditors are invitees for the relevant meetings. The
Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit
Committee.

NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
determines on behalf of the Board and shareholders as
per agreed terms of reference, the Company's policy on
specific remuneration packages for Executive Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and other employees. The
Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director
and the Members of the Committee are Non- Executive
Directors.

AND REMUNERATION

The broad terms of reference of the Committee inter alia
are as follows:

i.  Formulation of the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy,
relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and other employees;

ii. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance
of Directors

iii. Devising a policy on Board diversity;

iv. Identifying persons who are qualified to become
directors and who may be appointed in senior
management Iin accordance with the criteria
laid down, and recommend to the Board their
appointment and removal,
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v. Recommending/reviewing remuneration of the
Managing Director(s) and Whole-time Director(s)
based on their performance and defined assessment
criteria.

vi. To recommend all remuneration payable to Senior
Management in whatever form.

Remuneration Policy

The Company has formulated a remuneration policy with
a focus on attracting talent and rewarding performance
based on review of achievements.

The remuneration policy provides a framework for
remuneration paid to the members of the Board of
Directors ("Board’), Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP")
and the Senior Management Personnel ("SMP’) of the
Company (collectively referred to as "Executives’). The
expression “senior management” shall mean officers/
personnel of the listed entity who are members of its
core management team excluding board of directors and
normally this shall comprise all members of management
one level below the Chief Executive Officer/Managing
Director/Whole time Director/Manager (including Chief
Executive Officer/Manager, in case they are not part of the
board) and shall specifically include Company Secretary
and Chief Financial Officer.

The remuneration to be paid to the Executive Directors,
if any, shall be recommended by the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee based on the Net Profits of
the Company which are then approved by the Board of

Composition, number of Meetings and Attendance

Directors of the Company and the Shareholders of the
Company in their respective meetings. The remuneration
to be paid to the Executive Directors was determined and
based on the industry benchmark, performance of the
Company to the industry performance. Independent
Non-Executive Directors are appointed for their
performance expertise in their individual capacity
as individual  Professionals/Business  Executives.
Independent Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting
fees for attending Board/Committee Meetings.

The appointment of the Executive Directors, if any is
governed by the resolutions passed by the Board and
shareholders. The service agreement is entered into with
them. There is no provision for payment of severance fee
undertheresolutions governing appointmentof Executive
Directors. A notice period of three months is required
to be given by the Executive Director seeking to vacate
the office. The Company has no stock option plans and
such option is not included in the remuneration package.
During the year under review, none of the Directors was
paid any bonus, pension or performance bonus. Formal
appointment letter is issued to the Independent Directors
and the terms and conditions of the appointment of
Independent Directors is available on the web site of the
Company. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee
to recommend all remuneration payable to the Senior
Management.

The Remuneration Policy of the Company is available on
the Company's website at http://shyamcenturyferrous.
com/php/policies.php?pdf=Remuneration-policy.pdf

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is in accordance with the regulatory requirements
specified by Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations. The Company Secretary acts as
Secretary to the Committee. The Remuneration Committee meetings was held on 19" May, 2023 during the Financial

Year 2023-24.

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the details of meetings attended by the

Directors are as under:

No. of Committee

Name of the Member Category Designation Meetings Attended
Mr. Nirmalya Bhattacharyya Independent, Non-Executive Chairman

Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah Independent, Non-Executive Member

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Agarwal Non - Independent, Non-Executive Member 1

Remuneration of Directors

The details of remuneration paid to Directors for the Financial Year 2023-24 are provided below:

IS\ILo. Name of the Director Designation Salary () 1?::;?% I\;:':rfl Zl‘llag;sél(;;d
1 Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal | Managing Director 50,00,000 Nil 1,06,630

2 Mr. Rajesh Kumar Agarwal Non - Executive Director Nil Nil 29,53,562

3 Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah Independent Director Nil 1,95,000 Nil

4 Mrs. Plistina Dkhar Independent Director Nil 25,000 750

5 Mr. Nirmalya Bhattacharyya Independent Director Nil 1,85,000 Nil

6 Mr. Sumanta Kumar Patra Whole-time Director & CEO 24,35,698 - Nil
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STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP
COMMITTEE

In compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Regulations, the Board
has constituted “Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee”.

The Committee’'s responsibility is to oversee Share
Transfers and addressing to and redressal of shareholders’
grievances etc. The Committee also evaluates
performance and service standards of the Registrar and
Share Transfer Agents of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Committee includes:

I.  Review the process and mechanism of redressal
of investor grievance and suggest measures of
improving the system of redressal of investor
grievances.

ii. Consider and approve all requests from shareholders
regarding transfer & transmission of shares, issue of
duplicate share certificate, consolidation of shares,
demat, remat, split & folio consolidation etc.
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iii. Review and resolve the pending investors complaints,
if any, relating to transfer of shares, non-receipt of
share certificate(s), non-receipt of interest dividend
warrants, non-receipt of annual report and any other
grievance/complaints with Company or any officer
of the Company arising out in discharge of his duties.

iv. Oversee the performance of the Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent and also review and take note of
complaints directly received and resolve them.

v. To review measures for effective voting rights,
adherence to service standards adopted by the
Registrars & Share Transfer Agent and measures
undertaken for reducing quantum of unclaimed
dividend.

The Composition of the Stakeholders Relationship
Committee and the details of the meeting attended by the
members are given below:

No. of Committee

Name of the Member Category Designation Meetings Attended
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Agarwal Non-Executive, Non - Independent Chairman 2

Mr. Aditya VimalKumar Agrawal | Managing Director Member 2

Mr. Nirmalya Bhattacharyya Non-Executive, Independent Member

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the
Committee.

Meetings and Attendance
During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Stakeholders

Relationship Committee met two times on 19" May, 2023
and 27% June, 2023.

Status of Pending Complaints

The Company has received 3 (Three) Complaints during
the Financial Year 2023-24, which was duly addressed.
Hence, there were no complaints pending at the
beginning and at the end of the Financial Year. However,
during the year under review letters on various matters
were received and were duly addressed.

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

COMMITTEE

The Company has
Responsibility Committee

SOCIAL

constituted Corporate Social
(CSR) as required under

section 135 of the Companies Act 2013. The Committee
consists of three Directors out of which one Director is an
Independent Director.

The terms of reference of the Committee are as follows:

i.  To formulate and recommend to the Board a CSR
policy which shall indicate the activities to be
undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule
VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

ii. Toformulate and recommend to the Board an annual
action plan in pursuance of CSR Policy.

iii. To recommend the amount of expenditure to be
incurred on CSR activities

iv. To oversee that Company's CSR Implementing
Agencies are registered with the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs.
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The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of the following three members and details of the meeting

attended by them are given below:

No. of Committee

Name of the Member Category Designation Meetings Attended
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Agarwal Non-Executive, Non-Independent Chairman 2
Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah Non-Executive, Independent Member 2
Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal | Managing Director Member 2

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the
Committee.

Meetings and Attendance

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee met
twice on 19" May, 2023 and 7" February, 2024 during the
Financial Year 2023-24. Allthe Members of the Committee
attended the meeting.

The CSR Policy of the Company is available on the
Company's website at http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/
php/policies php?pdf=SCFL-%20CSR%20policy.pdf

There was no instances where recommendations of the
Committee not accepted by the Board of Directors.

FINANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted a Finance Committee. The
Finance Committee deals within the terms of reference
defined by the Board and ensures their expeditious
implementation.

The terms of reference of the Committee are as follows:

i. To approve the opening of and modification in
operation of bank accounts, including -closure
thereof.

ii. Borrow money by way of loan for the purpose of
financing new projects, refinancing the existing

debt, capital expenditure, general corporate purposes
including working capital requirements and possible
strategic investments and take necessary actions
connected therewith.

iii. Provide corporate guarantee/performance guarantee
from the Company for credit facilities availed by its
subsidiaries or by any other entity.

iv. Opening, modification and closure of trading and
demat accounts required for securities, derivatives
and all other Options.

v. Monitoring of loans and advances granted by the
Company as approved by the Board of Directors from
time to time.

vi. Approve availing of online banking facilities in all
forms including but not limited to viewing rights,
transaction rights, application for Letters of Credit,
Bank Guarantees, Buyers Credit and carry out all trade
related transactions through internet.

vii. Take decisions in connection with any arrangement,
document or matter necessary, ancillary, incidental or
desirable to give effect to all its powers and authority.

viil. Any other financial issues or other matters, whether
out of and incidental to these functions or not, as
may be assigned by the Board.

The Finance Committee comprises of the following three members and details of the meeting attended by them are

given below:

No. of Committee

Name of the Member Category Designation Meetings Attended
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Agarwal Non-Executive, Non-Independent Member -
Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal | Non - Executive, Non-Independent Member -
Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah Non-Executive, Independent Member -

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the
Committee.

Meetings and Attendance

During the year under review no meeting of finance
committee was held.

CYBER SECURITY

The Company is dedicated to fostering a culture of
heightened risk awareness across all organizational levels.
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We are steadfast in our commitment to continuously
enhancing our cyber security measures to address the
ever-evolving landscape of cyber threats.

Our comprehensive Cyber Security Risk Management
Framework is aligned with industry-standard
methodologies and control frameworks, ensuring a
robust and proactive approach to cyber security. We
employ advanced network firewall protections and utilize
[PSEC tunnels for secure data exchange between our
cloud servers.
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We have implemented endpoint detection and response
systems for all users, further strengthening our defenses.
Our cyber security measures are subject to regular reviews
and updates, ensuring their effectiveness and relevance
in mitigating risks associated with cyber threats. We
regularly partner with industry experts to evaluate and re-
evaluate our security posture, addressing any identified
lapses promptly.

Through these ongoing efforts, we aim to safeguard our
assets, data, and systems, maintaining a resilient security
posture.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Particulars of last three Annual General Meetings
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VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER
POLICY

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted a
Vigil Mechanism Policy. This mechanism provides a tool
in the hands of Employees and Directors to report to the
Management, concerns about unethical behavior, actual
or suspected fraud or violation of the Codes of conduct or
policy, leakage of unpublished price sensitive information
etc.,, The mechanism provides for adequate safeguards
against victimization of employees and Directors to avail
of the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases.

Financial |Venue Date and time
Year
FY 22-23 | Through Video Conferencing, Deemed Venue: Village: Lumshnong, | 28" September, 2023 at 2:00 p.m.

P.O. Khaliehriat, Dist.: East Jaintia Hills, Meghalaya-793 210

FY 21-22 | Through Video Conferencing, Deemed Venue: Village: Lumshnong, 27" September, 2022 at 02.00 p.m.
P.O. Khaliehriat, Dist.: East Jaintia Hills, Meghalaya-793 210
FY 20-21 | Through Video Conferencing, Deemed Venue: Village: Lumshnong, | 30* September, 2021 at 2:00 p.m.

P.O. Khaliehriat, Dist.: East Jaintia Hills, Meghalaya-793 210

Details of Special Resolution passed in the last three Annual General Meeting

AGM Date Matter
10m 30" September, 2021 | 1. Appointment of Mr. Nirmalya Bhattacharyya as an Independent Director.
2. Place for keeping register of Members and copies of annual return etc., other
than Registered Office of the Company.
3. Giving Loans/ Guarantees or providing securities forand onbehalf of Companies
and / or making investments in Companies.
4. Enhancement of Borrowing Power.
5. Creation of charges or mortgages and hypothecations.
11t 27" September, 2022 | NIL
120 28" September, 2023 | NIL

Details of Special Resolution passed through
Postal Ballot

During the year under review the Company has not
passed any special resolution through Postal Ballot.

Details of Special Resolution proposed to be
conducted through Postal Ballot and procedure

The details of special resolutions which are proposed to
be transacted through postal ballot are as follows:

1. Appointment of Mr. Venkata Krishna Nageswara Rao
Majji (DIN: 07035891) as a Director of the Company.

2. Approval for Professional fees paid/to be paid to
Mr. Venkata Krishna Nageswara Rao Majji (DIN:
07035891), Non-Executive Director of the Company.

Procedure for Postal Ballot:

« In terms of the requirements specified in the MCA
Circulars, the Company will send the Postal Ballot
Notice in electronic form only to those Members
whose e-mail addresses will be registered with the
Company/ Depositories/ Registrar and Share Transfer
Agents unless otherwise specified. Accordingly,
physical copy of the Notice along with Postal Ballot
Form and pre-paid business reply envelope will not
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be sent to the Members for this Postal Ballot. The
members will have the option to vote only through
remote e-voting and voting through physical ballot
will not available. The communication of the assent
or dissent of the Members will also take place through
the remote e-voting system.

The Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Managing
Director of the Company, who on the basis of the
report will announce the results, and

The Company need to engage the services of any of
the Depositories for providing e-voting facility to its
shareholders.

No Extra-Ordinary General meeting of the
Shareholders was held during the year.

DISCLOSURES

No materially significant related party transactions
took place between the Company and its subsidiaries,
its Promoters, Directors or the Management and their
relatives which have a bearing on interests of the
Company at large. Other Related Party transactions
as per requirements of Accounting Standard 18
have been reported in Notes to Accounts annexed
to the financial statements. The policy on related
party transaction has been placed on the Company's
website at http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/php/
policies.php?pdf=Related-Party-Policy.pdf

There has been no instance of non-compliance by
the Company on any matter related to capital markets
and hence no penalties or strictures have been
imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges,
SEBI or other statutory authorities relating to the
above.

There has been no instance where the Board of
Directors had not accepted any recommendation of
any Committee of the Board which is mandatorily
required in the relevant financial year.

The Company has a well-defined risk management
framework and the Board is kept informed about
the risk assessment and minimization procedures.
The risk policy provides for identification of risk, its
assessments and procedures to minimize risk. The
risk management policy is reviewed periodically to
ensure that the executive management controls the
risk as per decided policy.

The Company's policy on Vigil mechanism
is placed on the Company's website at http://
shyamcenturyferrous.com/php/policies.
php?pdi=Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf =~ We  hereby
affirm that no personnel have been denied access to
the Audit Committee.

The Directors of the Company are notrelated inter-se.
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The Financial statements of the Company are
prepared in accordance with the Accounting
Standards (IND AS) stipulated under the Companies
Act.

During the year under review, the Company has not
raised any money through public issue.

During the year under review no instances of sexual
harassment reported.

The Company's policy on “material subsidiary”
is placed on the Company's website at http://
shyamcenturyferrous.com/php/policies.
php?pdf=Policy-on-Material-subsidiary.pdf

A Certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice
confirming that none of the Directors on the Board
of your Company have been debarred or disqualified
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of
companies by the Securities and Exchange Board
of India/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such
Statutory Authority forms part of this Annual Report.

Total consolidated fees paid for all services rendered
by the Statutory Auditors to the Company during the
year under review was ¥3.85 Lakhs.

The status of compliance with discretionary
requirements specified in Part E of Schedule 1I of the
Listing Regulations is provided below:

a) Non-Executive Chairman’'s Office: The
Company does not have regular Non- Executive
chairperson.

b) Shareholders’' Rights: As the quarterly, half yearly
and annual results of the Company along with
significant events, if any, are published in the
newspapers and also posted on the Company's
website and Stock Exchanges where shares of the
Company are listed, the same are not being sent
individually to the shareholders.

c) Modified Opinion in Audit Report: The
Company's financial statement for the year
ended 31t March, 2024 does not contain any
modified audit opinion.

d) Separate posts of Chairman and CEO: The
positions of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) were separate.

e) Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal
Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee.

f) Policy on Board Diversity: This Policy aims to
set out the approach to achieving diversity for the
Board of Directors of the Company. The Company
believes that benefits of a professional board that
possesses a balance of skills, experience, expertise
will enhance the decision-making power of the
Board which in turn will benefit the stakeholders
of the Company.


http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/php/policies.php?pdf=Related-Party-Policy.pdf
http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/php/policies.php?pdf=Related-Party-Policy.pdf
http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/php/policies.php?pdf=Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf
http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/php/policies.php?pdf=Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf
http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/php/policies.php?pdf=Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf
http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/php/policies.php?pdf=Policy-on-Material-subsidiary.pdf
http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/php/policies.php?pdf=Policy-on-Material-subsidiary.pdf
http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/php/policies.php?pdf=Policy-on-Material-subsidiary.pdf

Business overview

g) The Company has advanced a loan of ¥30 Lakhs
to M/s Suhag Overseas Trading Private Limited
in which Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal,
the Managing Director of your Company was
interested and the entire amount of the said loan
of %30 Lakhs is outstanding as on 315 March,
2024.

Apart from above mentioned loan, your company
has not given any loans & advances to any company
where Directors are interested.

« The Company has complied with the requirements
specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and Clauses (b) to (i)
of sub regulation (2) of regulation 46 of the LODR.

CREDIT RATINGS

Your Company enjoys a sound reputation for its prudent
financial management and its ability to meet financial
obligations. ICRA Limited has assigned the long term
rating of ICRA BBB+ (Stable) (Pronounced as ICRA triple B
Plus) and the short term rating of ICRA A2+ (Pronounced
as ICRA A two plus).

CODE OF CONDUCT

In pursuance of the SEBI Regulations, the Board
has approved the ‘Code of Conduct for Board of
Directors and Senior Management’ and same has been
circulated and posted on the Company's website http://
shyamcenturyferrous.com/index.php The Directors and
Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance
with the provisions of above Code of Conduct. The
declaration by the Managing Director to this effect is also
attached to this Report.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company's quarterly financial results, after their
approval by the Board of Directors, are promptly issued
to all the Stock Exchanges with whom the Company
has listing arrangements. These financial results, in the
prescribed format, as per SEBI Regulations, are published
in prominent English and Khasi (Regional language)
newspapers usually in ‘Financial Express’ and 'Hima'
The quarterly financial results and official news are
also posted on the website of the Company at http://
shyamcenturyferrous.com/index.php

The audited financial statements form a part of the Annual
Report which is sent to the Members well in advance of
the Annual General Meeting. The Annual Report of the
Company, the quarterly / half yearly and the annual
results of the Company are also placed on the Company's
website: http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/index.php and
can be downloaded.

All periodical compliance filings like shareholding pattern,
corporate governance report, investor presentations,
media releases, among others are filed electronically on
NSE Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS),
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NSE Digital Exchange Portal and BSE's Listing Centre
which are web-based applications designed by NSE and
BSE respectively for corporates and are displayed on the
Company's website.

The Company has designated the following email
id exclusively for investor serving: investors@
shyamcenturyferrous.com

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A Management Discussion and Analysis Report, forms a
part of the Directors' Report.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
Annual General Meeting
Date and Time | 26™ September, 2024 at 02:00 P.M.

Venue Annual General Meeting be conducted
through Video Conferencing / other
Audio-Visual means facility. [Deemed
venue of Meeting at Registered office
at Village: Lumshnong, PO: Khaliehriat,
Dist. East Jaintia Hills, Meghalaya -
793210

Dates of Book
Closure

20" September, 2024 to 26" Sepetmber,
2024 (both days inclusive)

Financial Calendar (for the year 2024-25)

The Company follows financial year starting from 1% of
April of the financial year and ending on 315 March of the
following year.

Proposed date for approval of financial results

First Quarter ended 30" Within 45 days from the
June, 2024 end of quarter

Second Quarter ended 30" | Within 45 days from the
September, 2024 end of quarter

Third Quarter ended 31 Within 45 days from the
December, 2024 end of quarter

Fourth/Last Quarter ended |Within 60 days from the
31t March, 2025 end of quarter

Listing on Stock Exchanges

The Shares of the Company are presently listed on the
following Stock Exchanges: -

a) National Stock Exchange of India Ltd (NSE)
Exchange Plaza, Bandra —Kurla Complex, Bandra (E)
Mumbai- 400 051
Stock Code - SHYAMCENT

b) BSE Ltd. (BSE)
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street, Fort,
Mumbai - 400 001
Stock Code - 539252

The Company has paid listing fees to NSE and BSE for the
Financial Year 2024-25.

Annual Report 2023-24 1 31


http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/index.php
http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/index.php
http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/index.php
http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/index.php
http://shyamcenturyferrous.com/index.php
mailto:investors@shyamcenturyferrous.com
mailto:investors@shyamcenturyferrous.com

Annual Custody/Issuer fee for the year 2023-24 & 2024-
25 has been paid by the Company to NSDL and CDSL.

ISIN Allotted to the Company by the Depositories

The Company has signed Depository agreement with
both National Securities Depository Limited and Central

Market Information

Depository Services (India) Limited. The ISIN allotted to
the Company is INES79R01011.

Corporate Identity Number (CIN)
L27310ML2011PLCO0O8578

Market Price Data: High, Low (based on the closing prices) and volume of shares traded at BSE and NSE, for the financial

year 2023-24 are as follows:

Month Bombay Stock Exchange National Stock Exchange

High () Low (3) Volume High () Low () Volume
April, 2023 18.64 16.61 6,11,523 18.65 16.90 21,14,989
May, 2023 20.00 17.00 7,38,299 19.60 17.10 35,37,051
June, 2023 21.50 17.05 12,03,245 21.50 17.15 75,70,436
July, 2023 21.84 19.00 11,58,299 21.80 1895 65,94,689
August, 2023 2173 17.50 18,15,714 21.70 17.65 1,05,77,830
September, 2023 22.88 1893 31,82,328 22.85 18.90 1,63,18,941
October, 2023 22.58 1831 13,81,502 22.75 18.30 1,03,18,917
November, 2023 22.37 18.87 14,69,679 22.35 19.20 1,09,72,362
December, 2023 2143 19.11 15,42,673 21.90 19.50 93,62,665
January, 2024 32.29 20.17 95,05,149 32.40 20.15 5,63,05,968
February, 2024 26.64 21.00 16,30,862 26.50 20.70 70,19,559
March, 2024 22.10 16.70 7,95,643 22.00 16.60 57,17,447
Performance of the Shares of the Company in comparison to BSE Sensex is as under
Month BSE Sensex Company's Share

Closing % Change Closing % Change

April, 2023 61,209.46 3.76 18.19 10.11
May, 2023 63,036.12 2.98 17.42 (4.23)
June, 2023 64,768.58 2.75 19.57 12.34
July, 2023 67,619.17 4.40 19.74 0.87
August, 2023 06,658.12 (1.42) 18.96 (3.95)
September, 2023 67,927.23 1.90 20.84 992
October, 2023 66,592.16 (1.97) 19.58 (6.05)
November, 2023 67,069.89 0.72 20.23 3.32
December, 2023 72,484.34 8.07 20.59 1.78
January, 2024 73,427.59 1.30 26.17 27.10
February, 2024 73,413.93 (0.02) 21.52 (17.77)
March, 2024 74,245.17 1.13 16.92 (21.38)

Registrars and Share Transfer Agents

M/s Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited
23, R. N. Mukherjee Road,

5% floor, Kolkata- 700001

Phone: 033 22435029/22482248

Fax - 033 22484787

Email - mdpldc@yahoo.com

Share Transfer System

Requests for transfer of shares can be lodged either at the
office of the Company or at the office of the Registrar.
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The transfers are normally processed within a maximum
period of 15 days from the receipt of documents, complete
in all respect.

Transfer of Shares in dematerialized form is duly
processed by NSDL/CDSL in electronic form through the
respective Depository participants. Dematerialisation is
required to be done within a period of 15 days from the
date of lodgment of Dematerialisation request, complete
in all respect, with the Depository Participant of the
Shareholder.
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Distribution of Shareholding of Ordinary Shares as on 31t March, 2024

Shareholding Total No. of % No. of Shares %
Shareholders

1- 500 59,192 82.19 62,61,043 295
501-1000 5,795 8.05 48,33,572 2.28
1001-5000 5,666 7.87 1,30,88,198 6.17
5001-10000 757 1.05 57,90,432 2.73
10001 - 20000 350 0.49 51,20,713 241
20001 and above 257 0.35 17,70,79,032 83.46
Total 72,017 100 21,21,72,990 100

Shareholding Pattern as on 31t March, 2024

0.05%

| /0.04%

26.03%

0.47%
0.11%

21.76%

51.54%

Promoter and Promoter Group

Bodies Corporate

Clearing Member

NRIs

Individual

Category Number of Number of Shares % of total Share
Shareholders* Capital
Promoter and Promoter Group 21 10,93,49,680 51.54
Bodies Corporate 174 4,61,71,743 2176
Clearing Member 17 2,23,186 0.11
NRIs 501 9,97,556 0.47
Individual 70,052 5,52,34,796 26.03
Trusts 2 5,001 0.00
Foreign Portfolio Investors 3 97,448 0.05
Domestic Corporate Unclaimed Shares 1 93,580 0.04
TOTAL 70771 212172990 100.00

*Note: In terms of SEBI Circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2017/128 dated 19.12.2017 shareholding of the promoter
and promoter group, public shareholder and non-public non-promoter shareholder has been consolidated on the

basis of the PAN and folio number.

Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity

The Company's shares are compulsorily traded in
dematerialised form and are available for trading on both
the Depositories in India — National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India)
Ltd. (CDSL).

21,18,33,768 Ordinary Shares of the Company
representing 99.84% of the Company's share capital are
dematerialised as on 31 March, 2024.

The Company has never issued any GDR/ADR/ warrants
or any convertible instruments.
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RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL
AUDIT:

i, Pursuant to Regulation 40(9) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, certificates on annual basis, have
been issued by a Company Secretary-in-Practice for
due compliance of share transfer formalities by the
Company.

ii. A Practicing Company Secretary carries out the
reconciliation of Share Capital of the Company for
every Quarter to reconcile the total capital admitted
with National Securities Depository Limited and
Central Depository  Services (India) Limited(’
Depositories’) and the total issued and listed capital of
the Company. The Audit confirms that the total issued
/paid up Capital is in agreement with the aggregate of
the total number of shares in physical form and the
total number of shares in dematerialized form.

DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO UNCLAIMED SHARES SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

Details as required under Schedule V of the Listing Regulations in respect of unclaimed shares transferred to the demat
account "Shyam Century Ferrous Limited — Unclaimed Suspense Account” is as follows:

the Unclaimed Suspense Account as on 31.03.2024

Particulars No. of shareholders No. of shares
Aggregate number of Shareholders and outstanding shares held in 52 93580
the Unclaimed Suspense Account as on 01.04.2023

Aggregate number of Shareholders and outstanding shares transferred NIL NIL

to Unclaimed Suspense Account

Number of shareholders who approached the Company for transfer NIL NIL

of shares from Unclaimed Suspense Account

Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from NIL NIL
Suspense Account to IEPF during the year

Aggregate number of Shareholders and outstanding shares held in 52 93580

Voting rights in respect of the aforesaid shares held in Unclaimed Suspense Account will remain frozen till the time
such shares are transferred from the Unclaimed Suspense Account to the concerned shareholders/legal heirs.

DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO
UNCLAIMED/UNPAID DIVIDEND ACCOUNT

Dividend drafts in respect of Interim Dividend declared for
the FY 2022-23 have been dispatched to the shareholders
at the addresses registered with the Company. Those
shareholders who have not yet received the same
may please write to the Company or its RTA for further
information on this behalf. Shareholders who have not
encashed the drafts are requested to do so by getting
them revalidated from the company or its RTA.

The tentative date for transfer of unclaimed and unpaid
dividends to the IEPF for the aforesaid financial years
declared by the Company has been provided in the
Director's Report.

COMMODITY PRICE RISK OR FOREIGN
EXCHANGERISKAND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Commodities form a major part of the raw materials
required for Company's products and hence, commodity
price risk is one of the important market risk for the
Company. The Company has mechanism to ensure that

Rajesh Kumar Agarwal

Place: Kolkata
Date: 22" May, 2024
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the organization is protected from market volatility in
terms of price and availability of raw materials and prefers
long term arrangement with the suppliers. The Company
does not hedge its exposure to commodity price risks.

The Company also does not hedge foreign exchange
risks.

Plant location:

Ferro Alloy & Power Plant, EPIP, Rajabagan, Byrnihat,
District-Ri-Bhoi, Meghalaya - 793101

Address for Correspondence:

a) Corporate Office: The Compliance Officer, Shyam
Century Ferrous Limited,
2 floor, P-15/1, Taratala Road, Kolkata-700 088
Phone: 033 2401-5555
Email: investors@shyamcenturyferrous.com
Website: www.shyamcenturyferrous.com

b) Registered Office: Village: Lumshnong, PO.
Khaliehriat, Dist. East Jaintia Hills, Meghalaya -
793210.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal
Managing Director
(DIN: 03330313)

Director
(DIN: 00223718)


mailto:investors@shyamcenturyferrous.com
http://www.shyamcenturyferrous.com
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Compliance with Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

As provided under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015, as amended it is hereby declared that all Board members and Senior Management Personnel of the
Company have affirmed the compliance of the Code of Conduct for the year ended 315 March, 2024.

Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal
Place: Kolkata Managing Director
Dated: 22" May, 2024 (DIN: 03330313)

Certificate by Managing Director (MD) and
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

To,
The Board of Directors
Shyam Century Ferrous Limited

We the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of Shyam Century
Ferrous Limited (‘the Company”), to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that:

A. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the Financial year ended 315 March,
2024 and based on our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(1) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading;

(2) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations;

B. Tothebestof our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year are fraudulent,
illegal or violative of the Company's code of conduct.

C. Weacceptresponsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting. We have evaluated
the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting. Deficiencies in
the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware, have been disclosed to the Auditors
and the Audit Committee and steps have been taken to rectify these deficiencies.

D. We have indicated, based on our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and Audit Committee:
(1) significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(2) significant changes, if any, in accounting policies made during the year and that the same has been disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements; and

(3) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or any employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system over financial

reporting.
Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal Uday Bahadur Chetri
Place: Kolkata Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
Date: 22" May, 2024 (DIN: 03330313)
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Certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To

The Members

Shyam Century Ferrous Limited
Vill: Lumshnong, P.O.: Khaliehriat
Dist- East Jaintia Hills — 793 210
Meghalaya

We have examined the relevant disclosures received from the Directors and registers, records, forms, returns maintained
by Shyam Century Ferrous Limited (CIN: L27310ML2011PLC008578) having its Registered office at Vill: Lumshnong,
P.O.: Khaliehriat, Dist - East Jaintia Hills — 793 210, Meghalaya (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company’), produced
before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with
Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications [including Directors Identification
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in] as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the
Company and its officers, we certify that following are the Directors on the Board of the Company as on 31 March 2024:

Sl. DIN Name Designation Date of appointment
No.

1 00343256 | Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah Independent Director 01.04.2020

2 03330313 | Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal Managing Director 01.04.2015

3 01375361 | Mrs. Plistina Dkhar Independent Director 01.03.2013

4 00223718 | Mr. Rajesh Kumar Agarwal Non-Executive Director 08.02.2021

5 09037566 | Mr. Nirmalya Bhattacharyya Independent Director 01.04.2021

6 09607152 |Mr. Sumanta Kumar Patra CEO & Wholetime Director 17.05.2022

We further certify that none of the aforesaid Directors on the Board of the Company for the financial year ended on
315t March 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by
the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For MKB & Associates
Company Secretaries
Firm Reg No: P2010WB042700

Raj Kumar Banthia

Partner

Membership no. 17190

COP no. 18428

Date: 227 May, 2024 Peer Review Certificate No.:1663/2022
Place: Kolkata UDIN: A017190F000421715
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AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To

The Members of
Shyam Century Ferrous Limited

The Corporate Governance Report prepared by Shyam Century Ferrous Limited (hereinafter the "Company”),
contains details as specified in regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub — regulation (2) of regulation 46
and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“the Listing Regulations”’) (‘Applicable criteria’) for the year ended
March 31, 2024, and the said Report will be submitted by the Company to the Stock Exchanges as part of the Annual
Report.

Management's Responsibility

2.

The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report is the responsibility of the Management of the Company
including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility
also includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Corporate Governance Report.

The Management along with the Board of Directors are also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India

Auditor's Responsibility

4.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, our responsibility is to provide a reasonable assurance
in the form of an opinion whether, the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
specified in the Listing Regulations.

We conducted our examination of the Corporate Governance Report in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes and the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). The Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for
Special Purposes requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by ICAIL

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality
Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and
Related Services Engagements.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks associated in
compliance of the Corporate Governance Report with the applicable criteria. Summary of procedures performed
include:

I.  Read and understood the information prepared by the Company and included in its Corporate Governance
Report;

ii. Obtained and verified that the composition of the Board of Directors with respect to executive and non-
executive directors has been met throughout the reporting period,

iii. Obtained and read the Register of Directors as on March 31, 2024 and verified that at least one independent
woman director was on the Board of Directors throughout the year;

iv. Obtained and read the minutes of the following committee meetings / other meetings held from April 01, 2023
to March 31, 2024:

a) Board of Directors;

o

)
) Audit Committee;

) Annual General Meeting (AGM);
)

)

o,

Nomination and Remuneration Committee;

T a5 T o

e) Stakeholders Relationship Committee;
(f) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
v. Obtained necessary declarations from the directors of the Company.

vi. Obtained and read the policy adopted by the Company for related party transactions.
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vii. Obtained the schedule of related party transactions during the year and balances at the year-end.

viii. Obtained and read the minutes of the audit committee meeting wherein such related party transactions have
been pre-approved by the audit committee.

ix. Performed necessary inquiries with the management and also obtained necessary specific representations
from management.

8. The above-mentioned procedures include examining evidence supporting the particulars in the Corporate
Governance Report on a test basis. Further, our scope of work under this report did not involve us performing audit
tests for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the fairness or accuracy of any of the financial information or
the financial statements of the Company taken as a whole.

Opinion

9. Based on the procedures performed by us, as referred in paragraph 7 above, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as specified in the Listing Regulations, as applicable for the year ended March 31, 2024, referred to in
paragraph 4 above.

Other matters and Restriction on Use

10. This report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

11. This report is addressed to and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose of enabling it to
comply with its obligations under the Listing Regulations with reference to compliance with the relevant regulations
of Corporate Governance and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do
not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care or for any other purpose or to any other party to whom it is
shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing. We have no responsibility to update
this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.

For D K Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 304138E

Neha Maheshwari

Partner

Place: Kolkata Membership No. 308616
Date: 22" May, 2024 UDIN: 24308616BKFVYY9138
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Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of Shyam Century Ferrous Limited

Reportonthe Auditofthefinancialstatements

Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial
statements of Shyam Century Ferrous Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet
as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Cash Flows and the Staterment of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of
material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended ("Ind AS") and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, its profit
and other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit of the financial statements
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those SAs are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the
‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the relevant provisions of
the Act and Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

4.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters:

the Financial Statements).

The Company recognizes revenue when the
Company performs its obligation and control
of the goods is transferred to the customer at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods. Delivery occurs when the product
has been dispatched to the specific location and the
risk of obsolescence / loss has been transferred and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
buyer's acceptance of the product as per the terms
of the contract and no significant uncertainty exists
regarding the amount of the consideration that will
be derived from the sale of goods.

Revenue is recognised based on the price and as per
terms specified in the contracts, net of the estimated
volume discounts. Revenue is only recognised to
the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal will not occur.
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S. | Description of Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

No.

1. Revenue Recognition Our principal audit procedures to assess the
(Refer Note no. 25 to the Financial Statements and | aPpropriateness of revenue recognised included the
Note 1.17 (A) of the material accounting policies of | following:

Obtained an understanding of and evaluated the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of the Company's key internal controls over the
revenue recognition process.

Evaluated the appropriateness of the Company's
accounting policy for revenue recognition as per
requirements of Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts
with Customers”.

End to end checking of sample sales transaction and
tracing the same to sales order, invoices, customers’
lorry receipts and collection from debtors to determine
whether these were recorded appropriately.

Read, analyzed and identified the distinct performance
obligations in selected sample contracts.

Obtained management's calculations for discounts
and rebates.
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Description of Key Audit Matters

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

The terms of sales arrangements, including
the timing of transfer of control, the nature of
discount and rebates arrangements and delivery
specifications, create complexity and judgment in
determining sales revenues and accordingly, it was
determined to be a key audit matter in our audit of
the financial statements of the Company.
Impairment assessment of Captive Power Plant

(Refer Note 1.4 of the material accounting policies of
the Financial Statements).

The Company has a material operational asset,
Captive Power Plant (CPP) relating to generation of
power.

The CPP has been non-operational for a substantial
period of time and the Company is meeting its power
requirements from Meghalaya Power Distribution
Corporation Limited and Instinct Infra and Power
Limited.

Asat31 March, 2024, the carrying amount of all assets
related to the CPP stands at Rs. 631 Lakhs which is
approx. 31.52 % of total PPE of Rs. 2002.16 Lakhs.

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any indication that the
Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) may be impaired
by considering internal and external sources of
information. The management assesses recoverable
amount of each of the assets where such indications
exist, based on the evaluation of the present market
value with reference to current replacement cost, life
span utilized and future expected life span.

Based on the valuation done by the management's
expert, the recoverable value of CPP is more than its
book value as at 31 March, 2024 and hence there is
no indication of impairment.

The management is contemplating a reoperation
plan aimed at restoring the CPP to its full capacity,
as part of which the Company had participated in a
coal auction and entitlement of coal is subject to the
execution of the Fuel Supply Agreement.

We consideredthisasakeyauditmatterasthe carrying
value of PPE requires impairment assessment based
on the recoverable value associated with the power
plant and it involves significant management
assumption and judgement.

Litigations, Claims and Contingent Liabilities
(Refer Note no. 42 to the Financial Statements and
Note 1.21 of the material accounting policies of the
Financial Statements).

The Company is subject to certain legal, regulatory
and tax cases for which final outcome cannot be
easily predicted and which could potentially result in
significant liabilities. The Company's management
has assessed that the probability of success of the
demand is remote and accordingly has not provided

for the disputed demandrsr.r

« Examined of significant contracts entered into close
to year end to ensure revenue recognition is made in
the correct period.

Our testing as described above showed that revenue has
been recorded in accordance with the terms of applicable
contracts and accounting policy in this area.

Our principal audit procedures to assess the
appropriateness of provisions and adequacy of
disclosures included the following:

 Obtained an understanding of the process, evaluated
the design, and tested the operating effectiveness
of the key internal controls over the management's
assessment of impairment indicators and where
impairment indicators exist, the control over the
management's estimate for the recoverability of these
assets.

» Assessment of the Company's accounting policy
with respect to impairment in accordance with Ind
AS 36 "Impairment of Assets”

 Obtained an understanding of the circumstances
and reasons for the CPP's inoperability, including
discussions with management and relevant
personnel.

« Examined the valuation of the net block of the CPP
as of 31 March, 2024, including reviewing the basis
for determining the carrying amount and assessing
its reasonableness.

e Assessedthevaluationreportregardingtherecoverable
amount of the CPP, issued by the independent valuer
engaged by the management including a review of
their methodology, assumptions, and calculations
and compared the recoverable amountto the carrying
value of the CPP as on 31 March, 2024.

e Examined the Board Resolution passed by the
Company for participation in the coal auction
process, the Scheme Document for auction of coal
linkages in the CPP sub-sector by Coal India Limited
and other relevant documents.

On the basis of the above procedures performed, we
considered the management's assessment of not
considering any impairment in respect of its CPP as
adequate and reasonable.

Our principal audit procedures to assess the
appropriateness of provisions and adequacy of
disclosures included the following:

e Gained an understanding of outstanding litigations
against the Company from the Company's in-house
legal counsel and other key managerial personnel
who have knowledge of these matters.

« Reviewed the outstanding litigations against the
Company for consistency with the previous years.
Enquired and obtained explanations for movement
during the year.
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Description of Key Audit Matters

No.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

The assessment of whether a liability is recognized
as a provision or disclosed as a contingent liability
in the financial statements is inherently subjective
and requires significant management judgement in
determination of the cash outflows from the business,
interpretation of applicable laws and regulations
and careful examination of pending assessments
at various levels of regulatory authorities. These
estimates could change significantly over time as
new facts emerge and each legal case progresses.

This has been considered a key audit matter in
view of the uncertain outcome of the litigations
and involvement of significant management
interpretations and judgement in assessing the
probability of outflow of economic resources.

* Read the correspondence from Court authorities and
considered legal opinion obtained by the Company
from legal counsel.

« Examined the Company's legal expenses and read
the minutes of the board meetings, in order to ensure
all cases have been identified.

« With respect to tax matters, discussed with the
Company's tax officers, their views and strategies
on significant cases, as well as the related technical
grounds relating to their conclusions based on
applicable tax laws.

« Considered the adequacy and completeness of the
Company's disclosures with regard to those matters
where management concluded that no provisions
should be recorded.

On the basis of the above procedures performed, we
considered the management's assessment in respect
of contingencies and provision for taxes and other
litigations and claims to be reasonable and disclosures to
be appropriate.

Information Other than the financial
statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

5.

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible
for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's
Report including Annexures to Board's Report,
Management Discussion Analysis, and Report on
Corporate Governance, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and
Those Charged with Governance for the
financial statements

6.

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible
for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the
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financial position, financial performance, including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with
relevant rules issued thereunder. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

7. In preparing the financial statements, management
is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for
overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
financial statements

8.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

Aspartof anauditin accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of
management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit

10.

11.

12.

Financial statements

Statutory reports

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with
governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements

13.

14.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 ('the Order’), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A’
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report
that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those
books except for the matters stated in paragraph
14 (h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11 (g) of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.
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The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement
of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements
comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
Specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
relevant rules issued thereunder.

On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors as on 31 March 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none
of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

The modification relating to the maintenance of
accounts and other matters connected therewith
asare stated in paragraph 14 (b) above on reporting
under section 143 (3) (b) of the Act and paragraph
14 (h)(vi) below on reporting under Rules 11 (g) of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Reportin "Annexure B” wherein we have
expressed an unmodified opinion.

With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of ..the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our .Information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements-Refer Note No.42
to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable
losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required
to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during
the year ended 31 March, 2024

iv. (@) The Management has represented that,
to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in Note No. 50 (i) to the
financial statements, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind
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of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in
writing orotherwise, thatthe Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(o) The Management has represented,
that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in Note No. 50(ii) to
the financial statements, no funds have
been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified
In any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures
performed as considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us tobelieve thatthe Management
representations under sub-clauses (i)
and (ii) of Rule(e), as provided under
(a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

The Board of Directors of the Company have
not proposed/ paid any dividend for the year
ended 31 March, 2024, hence, no compliance
of section 123 of the Act was required.

Based on our examination, which included
test checks, and other generally accepted
audit procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account
which has a feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility and the same has not
operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software except
for the period from 1% April, 2023 to 9" May,
2023. Further, during the course of our audit,
we did not come across any instance of audit
trail feature being tampered with.
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As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 1%
April, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the
statutory requirements for record retention
is not applicable for the financial year ended
31t March, 2024.

15. With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements
of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the current year is in

Financial statements

Statutory reports

accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the
Act.

For D K Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 304138E

Neha Maheshwari

Partner

Membership No. 308616
UDIN: 24308616BKFVYX5194

Place: Kolkata
Date: 22" May, 2024
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in Paragraph 13 under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our
Independent Auditors’ report of even date)

i

(@) (A) The Company has

maintained proper
records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property,
Plant and Equipment and relevant details of
right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations

given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Property, Plant
and Equipment are physically verified by the
Management according to a phased programme
designed to cover all the items over a period of
three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme,
certain Property, Plant and Equipment have been
physically verified by the Management during
the year and no material discrepancies have been
noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations

given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of
the immovable properties (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) disclosed in Note No. 2 on Property, Plant
and Equipment and Note No. 2.2 on Right-of-

ii.

use Assets to the financial statements, are held in
the name of the Company as at the balance sheet
date.

The Company has notrevalued its Property, Plant
and Equipment (including right-of-use assets)
or intangible assets or both during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i) (d) of the
Order is not applicable.

Based on the information and explanations
furnished to us, no proceedings have been
initiated on or are pending against the Company
for holding benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act,
1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988))
and Rules made thereunder and therefore the
question of our commenting on whether the
Company has appropriately disclosed the details
in the financial statements does not arise.

The inventory has been physically verified
by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification
is reasonable and procedure and coverage as
followed by management were appropriate. The
discrepancies noticed on physical verification of
inventory as compared to book records were less
than 10% in aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital facility from financial institutions. The Company

has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at various points of time
during the year from banks on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the quarterly returns or statements comprising stock and book
debt statements and statements on ageing analysis of the debtors filed by the Company with such banks are
materially in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective quarters other

than those as set out below:

Name of = Aggregate Nature of Quarter Amount Amount as | Difference = Reasons
the Bank working Current ended disclosed as | per Books (Rs.in for
(a) capital limits Asset (d) per Quarterly = of account Lakhs) difference
sanctioned | offered as Return/ (Rs. in g=(e) - (f) (h)
(b) Security Statement Lakhs)
(c) (Rs. in Lakhs) (f)
(e)
HDEC Rs. 2600 Refer Note | September 3,030.00 3,029.99 0.01 Note-2
Bank Lakhs 1 below 2023
December 3,956.45 3,993.05 (36.60) Note-2
2023
March 2024 3333.47 3333.48 (0.01) Note-2

Note-1: These include the Inventories and Trade Receivables net of Trade Payables. Also refer Note No.19 (iii)

to the financial statements.

Note-2: As stated by the management, the difference is due to variation in stock valuation rate as valuation is

based on previous month's cost sheet.
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Viii.

iX.

Business overview

According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made
any investments, provided guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or any other parties during the
year. Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii) (a) to 3(iii)
(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given
tous and based on the audit procedures conducted by
us, the Company has neither granted any loans nor
provided guarantees or securities in contravention of
provisions of Section 185 of the Act. The Company
has not made any investments or provided any
guarantees or securities to the parties covered under
Section 186 of the Act. In respect of loans made by
the Company, the provisions of Section 186 of the Act
have been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the
meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and
the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.
Accordingly, reporting under Clause (v) of the Order
is not applicable.

Vi.

Statutory reports

Financial statements

Pursuanttotherules made by the Central Government
of India, the Company is required to maintain cost
records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act
in respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed
the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.

vil. (a) According to the information and explanations

given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company
is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory
dues, including Goodsand Services Tax, provident
fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, cess and any other
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate
authorities. There were no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues
in arrears as at 31t March, 2024 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the Company examined
by us, the particulars of statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited on

account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the Statute Nature of dues

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Forum where the
dispute is pending

Period to which
the amount relates

Amount

Mines and Minerals Royalty, MEPRF,
Development and Regulation | GST/VAT

Act, Goods and Service tax /

Value-Added tax Act

Income-tax Act, 1961 7 Deihand Payéble

2,184.80 12014-15102018-19 | National Green
Tribunal
2021 |AY.2018-19& National Faceless
AY. 2021-22 Assessment Centre

(NFAC), Delhi

According to the records of the Company examined
by us and the information and explanation given
to us, there were no transactions surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43
of 1961) which were previously not recorded in the
books of account. Accordingly, reporting under
Clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.

(@) According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest to any lender during the
year.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, the Company
has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or
government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any money by way of term loans
during the year and did not have any term loans
outstanding at the beginning of the current year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix) (c) of
the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statement of the Company, funds raised
on short-term basis have not been used for long-
term purposes by the Company.
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xi.

During the year ended 31 March, 2024, the
Company did not have any subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures as defined under the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix) (e)
of the Order is not applicable.

During the year ended 31 March, 2024, the
Company did not have any subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures as defined under the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix) (f)
of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under Clause 3(x) (a) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partially or optionally convertible debentures
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
Clause 3(x) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on examination of the
books and records of the Company, we have
neither come across any instance of fraud by
the Company or on the Company, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the Management.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing
practices in India, a report under Section 143 (12)
of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under
Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 was not required to be filed by us with the
Central Government, during the year and up to
the date of this Report. Further, as informed by
the Company, the Cost Auditor as well as the
Secretarial Auditor of the Company have not
filed any report under Section 143(12) of the Act
with the Central Government in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, during the year and up
to the date of this report.

According to the information and explanations
given to us, no whistle blower complaints were
received by the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the

provisions of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under

clause 3(xii) (a) (b) & (c) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the transactions with related

parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188
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of the Act, where applicable, and the details of the
related party transactions have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements as required under
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24 "Related
Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the

Act.

Xiv. (a)

(b)

In our opinion and according to the information
and explanation given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system commensurate with
the size and nature of its business during the
year, and

The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period
under audit have been considered by us.

xv. In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with

its

Accordingly,

Directors or persons connected with them.
reporting on compliance with the

provisions of Section 192 of the Act under Clause
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi. (a)

The Company is not required to be registered
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under Clause
3(xvi) (a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not conducted any non-
banking financial / housing finance activities
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
Clause 3(xvi) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment
Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly,
reporting under Clause 3(xvi) (c) of the Order is
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations
providedtousduringthe course ofaudit, the Group
(as per the provisions of the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does
not have any CIC. Accordingly, reporting under
Clause 3(xvi) (d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvil.The Company has not incurred any cash losses in
the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

xviii'There has been no resignation of the statutory
auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

xix. According to the information and explanations
given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
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has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that the Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all the liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. (@) In our opinion and according to the information

and explanations given to us, in respect of other
than ongoing projects, there are no unspent
amounts that are required to be transferred to a
fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the Act), in compliance with second
proviso to sub section 5 of Section 135 of the Act.
Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(xx) (a) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has fully spent the required
amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) and there is no unspent CSR amount for

Statutory reports

Financial statements

the year requiring a transter to a special account
in compliance with the provisions of subsection
(6) of Section 135 of the Act. Accordingly,
reporting under Clause 3(xx) (b) of the Order is
not applicable.

xxi. The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is

not applicable in respect of audit of these financial
statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of
the said clause has been included in this report.

For D K Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 304138E

Neha Maheshwari

Partner

Membership No. 308616
UDIN: 24308616BKFVYX5194

Place: Kolkata
Date: 22" May, 2024
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in Paragraph 14(g) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our

Independent Auditors’ report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls
with reference to the financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“ the Act”)

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls with
reference to the financial statements of Shyam Century
Ferrous Limited ("the Company”) as at 31 March, 2024 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal
Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note")
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company's policies, the
safeqguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls with reference
to the financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI
and prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
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financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal controlbased on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
system with reference to the financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with
reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference
to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that: (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company,; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisation of the
management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial
Controls with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
respect to financial statements may become inadequate
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because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on
the criteria for internal financial control with reference
to financial statements established by the Company

Financial statements

Statutory reports

considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAIL

For D K Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 304138E

Neha Maheshwari

Partner

Membership No. 308616
UDIN: 24308616BKFVYX5194

Place: Kolkata
Date: 22" May, 2024
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Balance Sheet asatar March, 2024

(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars Notes 31st March, 2023
ASSETS
(1) Non current assets - | -
.(a) ) .Property plantand equipment 2 2,002.16 . 2,026.74
(b) Capital work-in-progress 21 - . - -
(c) Right-of-useassets 22 186.94 161.96
(d) Intangibleassets 235 209 160
(e) Financialassets - | -
() Other financialassets 3 1,625.72 59.13
(f) Non current tax assets (met) 4 201.11 82.18
(g) Other non-current assets 5 59.40 63.60
Total non current assets 4,077.42 2,395.21
(2) Current assets - | -
.(a) Inventones 77777777777777 6 3{533.48 |  3,266.32
(o) F1nanc1al assets | ) -
() Trade receivables 7 1,706.38 ~1,567.65
(i) Cashand cash equivalents 8 77383 ) 775
(iii) Bank balances other than (i) above °o 8 160 81 10, 462 78
(iv) Loans 10 255 00 255.00
~_(v) Otherfinancialassets 1 137 63 148.00
(c) Other currentassets 12 180.44 81.04
Total current assets 13,851.57 15,788.54
Tota1 assets 17,928.99 18,183.75
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equlty
(o) Eouity share capital o I 327
(b) Otherequity 14 14,001.15 13,934.89
Tota1 equlty 77777777777777 16,122.88 16,056.62
L1ab111t1es 77777777777777
(1) Non current liabilities
.(a) Plnanaat liabilities - |
) (i) Lease Liabilites 15 Gald | 73 96
.(b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 16 6257 70.09
(c) Provmons 77777777777777 17 78.64 65.23
Tota1 non current liabilites 236.15 209.28
(2) Current 11ab111t1es 77777777777777
.(a) ) .Plnranaal liabilites - ' | -
(i) LeaseLiabilites 18 ' 16.39 | 1 6.89
(i) Borrowings 19 '151 95 211.51
_(ili) Trade payables 20 | - -
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 84.86 -
- enterprises | . I
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 889.38 1,025.23
enterprises and small enterprises | -
) ”(IV) Other financial liabilittes 21 18987 187.43
(b) .Other current liabilites 22 251,12 | 404.79
(¢) Provisions 23 639 793
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 24 - 74.07
Total current liabilites 1,569.96 1,917.85
Total 11ab111t1es 77777777777777 1,806.11 2,127.13
Total equity and liabilities 17,928.99 18,183.75
Summary of Material accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our Report of even Date

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 304138E

Neha Maheshwari Uday Bahadur Chetri
Partner Chief Financial Officer
Membership No :308616

Ritu Agarwal

Place: Kolkata
Date: 227 May, 2024

Company Secretary
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal
Managing Director
DIN : 03330313

Rajesh Kumar Agarwal
Director
DIN : 00223718
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Statement Of PrOﬂt and LOSS for the year ended 315 March, 2024

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars

Notes March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

(I) Incqme

(@) Revenue from Operaﬁbns 25 13,809.30 ' 18,098.83

(b) Other income R 26 861.36 © 720.40
Totalincome ' 14,670.66 18,819.23
(I1) Expénses
(a) Cost of materials consumed 27 4,792.78 5,883.04
(b) (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 28 (249.72) (332.40)
(c) Embloyee benefit expensrer 29 557.34 52112
(d) Finance costs : 30 2880 34.58
(e) Depfeciation aﬁd amortisétion expehée 31 343.95 ' 335.30
(f) Power and fuel expenses B 698124 6,262.26
(g) Other expenses R 32 2,084.73 2,448.92
Total expenses ' 14,539.12 15,152.82
(I1I) Profit before exceptional items and tax 131.54 3,666.41
(iv) Exc'e'ptional iterns B B - -
(V) Profit before tax 131.54 3,666.41
(VI) Income tax exﬁense 33

- ”Current Taf “68.96 . '1,01'2.7'7

- Deferred Tax (537) © (1098)

- Income Tax for eaﬂief'years “(4.71) . 0.85
Total tax expense R R 58.88 1,002.64
(VII) Profit for the period 72.66 2,663.77
(VIII) Other compréhensive income
Items thét will not b'e redassiﬁéd to proﬁtrénd loss
Remeaéurements of postfembloymem béheﬁt obligétions “(8.55) ' (1.21)
Income tax relating'to these items R R ” 2.15 . 0.30
Other c”omprehenrsrive income for the péfiod, net of tax (6.40) (0.91)
(IX) Total comprehénsive income for the period R 66.26 2,662.86
(X) Earhings per écjuity share:(Face value of Rs.1/- each ) i .
Basic % per Share) “ 0.03 . 1.26
Diluted (X per Share) 0.03 1.26
Summary of Material accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our Report of even Date

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 304138E

Neha Maheshwari
Partner
Membership No :308616

Place: Kolkata
Date: 227 May, 2024

Uday Bahadur Chetri
Chief Financial Officer

Ritu Agarwal
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal
Managing Director
DIN : 03330313

Rajesh Kumar Agarwal
Director
DIN : 00223718
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Statement Of ChangeS |n EQUIty for the year ended 315 March, 2024

A. Equity share capital

% in Lakhs)
Particulars Amount
As at 1t April, 2022 2,221.73
Equity Share extinguished on Buy back [Refer Note No.13(b)] 7 (100.00)
As at 31% March, 2023 2,121.73
Changes in equity share capital during the year 7 o
As at 31 March, 2024 2,121.73
B. Other equity
% in Lakhs)
Particulars Reserve and surplus Total other
Capital Capital Retained equity
Redemption Reserve Earning
Reserve
Balance as at 1%t April, 2022 - 6,087.78 9,179.76 15,267.54
Addition during the year 1000 - - 10000
Profit for the year ] - 266377 | 2,663.77
Payment of Interim Dividend (FY 2021-22) - - (66652) | (666.52)
Less : 'Buy back of Shares (Iﬁcludirtcj buybébk tax) - - '(3,42849'9)7 . (3,428199)
Other compi’ehenéi{/e incorne/(loss) for the yéar - - - (091 | ©(091)
Remeasurement gain/(loss) of post-employment
benefit obligations (net of tax)
Balance as at 31t March, 2023 100.00 6,087.78 7,747.11 13,934.89
Balance as at 1¥ April, 2023 100.00 6,087.78 7747 11 13,934.89
Profit for the year : - - 7266 7266
Other compfehenéi{/e incorne/(loss) for the yéar - - - (6.40) | (6.40)
Remeasurement gain/(loss) of post-employment
benefit obligations (net of tax)
Balance as at 31t March, 2024 100.00 6,087.78 7,813.37 14,001.15

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our Report of even Date

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 304138E
Neha Maheshwari

Partner

Membership No :308616

Place: Kolkata

Date: 22" May, 2024

Uday Bahadur Chetri
Chief Financial Officer

Ritu Agarwal
Company Secretary
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Managing Director
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Director
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Statement Of CaSh FlOWS for the year ended 315 March, 2024

Sl. | Particulars
No.

A | Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit before Tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation/Amortisation
(Profit)/Loss on sale of investment
Sundry Balances written back
Finance Cost
Interest Income
Allowance for Expected Credit Loss

Adjustments for:

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories

(Increase)/Decrease in Other receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in Other assets

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables
Increase/(Decrease) in Other liabilities and provisions

Cash Generated from Operations
Income Tax Paid (Net of Refunds)

B Cash Flow From Investing Activities
(Purchase)/Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
Advance given for purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment
(Purchase)/Sale of Investment
Redemption/(Investment) in Fixed Deposits
Advance for investment in equity shares
Interest Received

C  Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Proceeds from /(Repayment) of Short Term Borrowing
Payment of Lease Liability
Payment of Interim dividend
Buyback of Equity Shares
Interest Paid

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the closing of the year

(% in Lakhs)

315 March, 2023
13154 366641
34395 33530
- (033

(383  (995)
2880 3458
(819200  (671.82)
- 22530
(318.74) 3,579.49
(138.73) 3,241.56
67.16) (799.67)
(99.39) ©261.00
(56.35) (63.24)
(5098) 3212
(238.16) 141.45
(969.51) 6,392.71
(18443)  (952.38)
(1,153.94) 5,440.33
(24352)  (432.93)
(5940)  (6360)
- 033
230197  (1,812.97)
(1,50899) -
82956 82920
1,319.62 (1,479.97)
(59.56) 16827
(1683  (11.99)
- (66652

- (342899
(1921)  (2877)
(95.60) (3,968.00)
70.08 (7.64)
7.75 15.39
7783 775

Notes :

1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian Accounting

Standard 7 (Ind AS 7) "Statement of Cash Flows"
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Statement Of CaSh FlOWS for the year ended 315 March, 2024

2

For the purpose of Statement of Cash Flow, Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise the following :

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March, 2023
Cash on hand 2.46 1.43
Cheques in hand a3 B o
e i L -
-Incurrent accounts 3406 B 632
Total 77.83 7.75

As per Ind AS 7, the Company is required to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changesin liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes. The Company did not have any material impact on the Statement of Cash Flows therefore reconciliation
has not been given.

Income taxes paid are treated as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investing and
financing activities.

Figures of the previous year have been regrouped wherever necessary.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our Report of even Date

For D. K. Chhajer & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 304138E

Neha Maheshwari Uday Bahadur Chetri Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal
Partner Chiet Financial Officer Managing Director
Membership No :308616 DIN : 03330313

Ritu Agarwal Rajesh Kumar Agarwal
Place: Kolkata Company Secretary Director
Date: 22" May, 2024 DIN : 00223718
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Note 1: Material Accounting Policies

Corporate Information

Shyam Century Ferrous Limited (the Company) is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated on 12" April,
2011. under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Its shares are listed on National Stock Exchange and Bombay
Stock Exchange in India. The Company is engaged in manufacturing of Ferro Alloys and generation of Power. The
manufacturing unit is located at Byrnihat, Meghalaya. The company is selling its product across India.

1.
11

12

Material Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation
(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, amendments thereto and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of
Directors on 227 May, 2024.

The accounting policies are consistently followed by the Company and changes in accounting policy are
separately disclosed.

(ii) Historical Cost Convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

. Net defined benefit asset/liability which is fair value of plan assets less present value of defined
benefit obligations

. Certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value.

(iii) Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating
cycle (twelve months) and other criteria set out in the Schedule I1I to the Act.

(iv) Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs as
per the requirement of Schedule II1, unless otherwise stated.

Use of Estimates and critical accounting judgements

The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles which
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations
during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current
events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future period, if the revision affects current and future period. Revisions in estimates
are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are summarised below:
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1.3

1.4

(i) Classification of legal matters and tax litigation (Refer Note No 42)
(i) Defined benefit obligations (Refer Note No 35)

(i11) Useful life of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note No 2)

(iv) Lease Accounting as per Ind AS 116 (Refer Note No 2.2 & 38)

(vil) Allowance for expected credit losses (Refer Note No 40 (A) (iii))
(viii) Taxes (Refer Note No 33)

Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances
i) Functional and presentation currency

Items reported in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The financial statements of the Company
are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.) which is the functional and presentation currency of the Company.

ii)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency at the reporting date using the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition, installation or construction (net of any
recoverable amount, wherever applicable) less accumulated depreciation, amortization and impairment losses if
any, except freehold land which is carried at cost. Cost comprises the purchase price, installation and attributable
cost of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.

Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. When significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred.

Capital Work in Progress

Capitalwork in Progress is carried at cost comprising direct cost and includes any directly attributable cost incurred
during construction period.

Property, plant and equipment not ready for their intended use as on the balance sheet date are disclosed as
"Capital work-in-progress”. Such items are classified to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for their intended use. Advances given towards acquisition/ construction of property,
plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed as Capital Advances under “Other non-
current assets”.

Intangible Asset

An intangible asset is recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to
the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The depreciable amount
of an intangible asset is allocated over its estimated useful life. Expenditure on purchased software and IT related
expenditure are written off over a period of three years.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on written down value method in accordance with the
provisions of Schedule II to the Act, 2013 and considering the useful lives for computing depreciation specified in
Part 'C’, thereof. Depreciation is provided on components that have homogenous useful lives by using the WDV
method so as to depreciate the initial cost down to the residual value over the estimated useful lives. Useful lives,
components and residual amounts are reviewed annually.
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1.5

1.6

In respect of an asset for which impairment loss is recognized, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying
amount of the assets over its remaining useful life.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any indication of impairment
based on internal / external factors. An impairment loss will be recognized wherever the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is greater of the asset's net selling price and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to the present value by
using weighted average cost of capital. A previously recognized impairment loss is further provided or reversed
depending on changes in circumstances.

Research and Development Expenditure

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense when itis incurred. Development costs are capitalised only after
the technical and commercial feasibility of the asset for sale or use has been established. Thereafter, all directly
attributable expenditure incurred to prepare the asset for its intended use are recognised as the cost of such assets.

Lease
As a Lessee:

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (ie, the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, an estimate of costs to be
incurred in dismantling and removing or restoring the underlying asset and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives received. After the commencement date, the Right of use
assets are measured applying the Cost model. They are subsequently measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation, adjustments for any remeasurement of the lease liabilities and impairment losses. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of
the assets.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

As a Lessor:

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the Balance
Sheet based on their nature.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are transterred
from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at
the Company's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease. Operating
lease payments are recognised as an income in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term, unless the receipt from lessee is structured to increase in line with expected general inflation and
compensate for the lessor's expected inflation cost increase.

Annual Report 2023-24 1 59



NOteS tO F|nanC|a| Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024

1.7 Government Grants and subsidies

Government grants / subsidies are recognized when there is reasonable certainty that the same will be received.
Revenue grants, if any, granted by way of recoupment / reimbursement of any item of expenditure are recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss by way of deduction from related item of expenses. Grants related to assets
which are recognized in the Balance Sheet as deferred income, are recognized to the Statement of Profit and Loss
on a systematic basis over the useful life of the related assets by netting off with the related expense.

1.8 Inventories
Raw materials, stores and spare parts, fuel and packing material:

Raw materials, stores and spares and fuel and packing material are valued at lower of cost or netrealisable value. Cost
includes purchase price, other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition,
and taxes for which credit is not available. However, materials and other items held for use in the production
of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are
expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on FIFO basis.

Work-in-progress and finished goods:

Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes direct
materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity, but
excluding borrowing costs. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

1.9 Investments and other financial assets
Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

. those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income or through
profit or loss), and

. those measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the company's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of cash flows.

Measurement

Atinitial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its debt instruments into the following
categories:

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interestincome from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

. Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collections of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Interest
income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

. Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) : Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI
are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
other income.

Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments (except subsidiary, associate and joint venture) at fair
value through profit or loss. However, where the Company's management makes an irrevocable choice on initial
recognition to present fair value gains and losses on specific equity investrments in other comprehensive income,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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1.10

1.11

1.12

1.13

Impairment of financial assets

The Company measures the expected credit loss assoclated with its assets based on historical trend, industry
practices and the business environment in which the entity operates or any other appropriate basis. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when

. The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset, or

. Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial
asset.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank, cash on hand, demand deposits with
Banks and other short-term highly liquid investments / deposits that are readily convertible into cash which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value with an original maturity of three months or less.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

The Company recognises all the financial liabilities on initial recognition at fair value minus, in the case of a
financial liability not at fair value through Profit or Loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial liability.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement

All the financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for those measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire.

Borrowing

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a
long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes
payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed,
after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as
a consequence of the breach.
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1.14 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs thatare attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying assetis capitalized
as part of cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset that
necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are
recognized as expense in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing cost includes exchange differences
arising from relevant foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to the
interest cost.

1.15 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial
year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and
other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

1.16 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
the Company or the counterparty.

1.17 (A) Revenue Recognition

Sales are recognised when control of the goods has been transferred. Sales are accounted when the products are
delivered to the customers. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped or delivered to the specific
location as the case may be, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred and either the customer
has accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract or the acceptance provisions have lapsed or the
Company has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied

Revenue from these sales are recognised based on the price specified in the contract, which is generally fixed, net
of the estimated volume discount. No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are generally made with
a credit term of 30 days or against receipt of advance which is consistent with market practice. The Company does
not have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer
and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company is not required to adjust any
of the transaction prices for the time value of money. Revenue includes consideration received or receivable but
excludes Goods and Service Taxes, and are net of discounts and rebates.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

(B) Other Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income is recognised when right to receive is established (provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

1.18 Employee benefits
(i)  Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised
in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

(ii) Defined Contribution Plan

Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and is charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due.
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1.19

1.20

1.21

(iii) Defined Benefit Plan

Cratuity liability, being a defined benefit obligation, is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on
projected unit credit method as at the date of the Balance Sheet.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included
in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the Balance Sheet.

(iv) Other Long-term benefits

Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long term compensated absences
are provided for based on actuarial valuation which is done as per projected unit credit method as at the date
of the Balance Sheet.

Taxation

Tax expenses comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to
be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates and interest in joint arrangements where it is not probable
that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which originate during the tax holiday period and is likely to
reverse during the tax holiday period, is not recognized to the extent income is subject to deduction during the tax
holiday period as per the requirements of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Earnings per Share

Basic Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
(after deductible preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effect
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions and Contingencies

A Provision is recognized for a present obligation as a result of past events if it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions
are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense. Liabilities which are
material and whose future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty are treated as contingent and
disclosed by way of notes to the accounts.

Annual Report 2023-24 1 63



NOteS tO F|nanC|a| Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024

1.22 Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company's Chief Operating
Decision Maker ("CODM") to make decisions for which discrete financial information is available. Based on the
management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the CODM evaluates the Company's performance and allocates
resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments.

1.23 Dividends

Dividends paid (including dividend distribution tax thereon) is recognized in the period in which the interim
dividends are approved by the Board of Directors, orinrespect of the final dividend when approved by shareholders.
The amount is recognised directly in equity.

1.24 Recent pronouncements

A

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 31 March, 2023, MCA
amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

i)

i)

iii)

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their
significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April, 2023. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

This amendment has introduced a definition of accounting estimates' and included amendments
to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting
estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after
1st April, 2023. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its
financial staterments.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not
apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1% April, 2023. The Company does
not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year ended 31
March, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to existing standard to the Company.
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(R in Lakhs)
Note: 2.2 - Right-of-use assets Non-Factory Lease hold Total
Buildings land
Gross Carrying Value
Asat 1% April, 2022 5748 | 13493 | 19241
Addiion | . -
Disposal/Deduction/Adjustment 155 | B 155
As at 31 March, 2023 - 55.93 134.93 190.86
Addition B - 37.72 37.72
Disposal/Deduction/Adjustment - . -
As at 31 March, 2024 - 55.93 172.65 228.58
Accumulated Depféciation -
Asat 1 April, 2022 1897 | S 1897
Charge for theyear 837 | 1.56 993
Disposal/Deduction/Adjustment o - -
As at 31 March, 2023 27.34 1.56 28.90
Charge for the year 764 510 12.74
Disposal/Deduction/Adjustment o - .
As at 31 March, 2024 - 34.98 6.66 41.64
Net Carrying Value
Asat31*March, 2023 2860 13337  161.96
As at 31 March, 2024 20.95 165.99 186.94
(% in Lakhs)

Note: 2.3 - Intangible assets

Computer Software

Gross Carrying Value

As at 1t April, 2022 3.66
Additon 1.75
Disposal/ Déduction/Adjﬁé{ment 777777777777777777777777777 -
Asat31%March, 2023 5.41
Additon 1.08
Disposal/ Déduction/Adjﬁé{ment 777777777777777777777777777 -
Asat31%March, 2024 6.49
Accumulated Depreciatioh 77777777777777777777777777

Asat1%April, 2022 3.66
Charge for the year 0.15
Disposal/ Déduction/Adjﬁéfment """""""""""""" -
Asat31*March,2022 3.81
Charge fortheyear 0.59
Disposal/ Déduction/Adjﬁéfment """""""""""""" -
Asat31*March, 2024 4.40
Net Carrying Value

Asat31%March, 2023 1.60
As at 31 March, 2024 2.09

Notes

(i) The Company is not having any intangible assets under development during the current year ended 31 March,

2024 and also during the previous year ended 31t March, 2023.
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(R in Lakhs)
Note: 3 - Other financial assets (At Amortised cost) SIRNVUEVC W EZ 31 March, 2023
Unsecured, Considered Good .
Security Deposits 116.73 | 59.13
Advance for investment in equity shares 1,508.99 -
Total 1,625.72 59.13
(R in Lakhs)
Note: 4 - Non-current tax assets (net) KISV PP Z 315 March, 2023
Advance income tax (Net of provision for tax Rs. 68.96 Lakhs as at 31t March, 201.11 82.18
2024)
Total 201.11 82.18
(R in Lakhs)
Note: 5 - Other non-current assets KIRDVUEV( W22 31 March, 2023
Capital Advances against Property, Plant & Equipment 59.40 63.60
Total 59.40 63.60
% in Lakhs)

Note: 6 - Inventories KFERVEVC PP 315t March, 2023

(Valued at Lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value)

Raw materials 196197 210173
Finished goods (Including goods in transit Rs. Nil as at 31 March, 2024, 954.28 [ 704.55
Rs. 292.47 Lakhs as at 31 March, 2023)

Fuels, packing materials, etc. 21.35 [ 1224
Stores & spare parts ( Net of allowance for non-moving/obselete items 39588 44780
Rs. 23.46 Lakhs as at 31% March, 2024, Rs.12.54 Lakhs as at 31 March, 2023 )

Total 3333.48 3266.32

6.1 Inventories are pledged against the cash credit limit obtained by the Company.

(R in Lakhs)
Note: 7 - Trade receivables 31 March, 2023
Unsecured, Considered good 1,706.38 1,567.65
Total 1,706.38 1,567.65

7.1 Ageing of outstanding trade receivables as on 31t March, 2024 from due date of payment is as
follows:

% in Lakhs)
Particulars Less than ‘ 6 months 1-2 2 -3 | More than ‘ Total
6 months - lyear | years | years 3 years
Undisputed
- Considered Good 23076 | 143651 | 3941 - | - | 1,70638

- which have significant increase in = = = = = = =
credit risk

- credit impaired o - = - - - _ _

Dispgted

- Considered Good e : I N N : :

- which have significant increase in = = = = = - -
credit risk

- creditimpaired o - = - - - _ -
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7.2 Ageing of outstanding trade receivables as on 31t March, 2023 from due date of payment is as

follows:

(R in Lakhs)

Particulars Not Due Lessthan 6 months 1-2
6 months -lyear years

2 -3  Morethan Total

years

3 years

Undisput

- Which have significant increase in - - - -
credit risk

Disputed

- Which have significant increase in - - - -
credit risk

- creditimpaired | ' ' ' S S N

" considered good 120572 | 36193 | - |

- credit impaired - - - _

- considered good - -

| 1,567.65

7.3 Trade Receivables are pledged against the cash credit limit obtained by the Company.

7.4 No debts are due from directors or other officers of the Company.

Note: 8 - Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand

Cheques in hand

Balance with banks:

- In current accounts

KIRNVEV (Pl 31 March, 2023

(R in Lakhs)

1.43

6.32

Total

7.75

(i) Cheques in hand are cleared subsequent to the year end.

(1) There are no restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at 315 March, 2024 and 31 March, 2023.

Unsecured, Considered Good

Repayable on Demand

Note: 10 - Loans (At Amortised cost)

% in Lakhs)
Note: 9 - Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents [EISRVENC WP ELE 315 March, 2023
Fixed Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 8,159.00 10,460.97
2months 7
Unpaid Dividend Account 1.81 1.81
Total 8,160.81 10,462.78

% in Lakhs)

31st March, 2023

Loans to Body Corporate (related party)

Suhag Overseas Trading Private Limited

Type of Borrower 31t March, 2024

Loans to Body Corporate [(Related Party) Refer Note No.40] 30.00 B0.0Q

Loans to Body Corporate (Other than related party) 225.00 225.00

Total 255.00 255.00
R in Lakhs)

Percentage of
total loan (%)

11.76
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% in Lakhs)
Note: 11 - Other financial assets - current 31 March, 2023
Unsecured, Considered Good
Interestaccured
Fixed Deposits 13765 12734
Loans N 20.66
Total 137.63 148.00
(% in Lakhs)
Note: 12 - Other current assets 31t March, 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Advance for goods and services 3456 527
Advanceto employees 198 -
Prepaid Expenses 2509 3714
Balances with/ Receivable from Statutory/ Government Authorities 11881 3863
Unsecured, considered doubtfwd T
Advance for goods and services -~ 27875 27575
Less : Allowance for expe”c't'e'd' creditloss. (275.75)  (275.75)
Total 180.44 81.04
(% in Lakhs)
Note: 13 - Equity share capital 31t March, 2023
Authorised .
22,27,00,000 (22,27,00,000 as at 315 March 2023) Equity Shares of ¥1/- each 2,227.00 2,227.00
Total 222700  2,227.00
Issued o N
21,21,72,990 (21,21,72,990 as at 31 March 2023) Equity Shares of ¥1/- each 2,121.73 2,121.73
Total 212173 212173
Supscribedandpaidup N
21,21,72,990 (21,21,72,990 as at 31% March 2023) Equity Shares of ¥1/- each 2,121.73 2,121.73
Total 212173 212173

(a) Terms/Rights attached to the Equity Shares & Notes

(1)

(ii)

(iii

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ¥1/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed
by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting
except in case of interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets
of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number
of equity shares held by the shareholders.

The Company does not have any Holding/ Ultimate Holding Company. As such, no shares are held by them or their
Subsidiaries/Associates.

Buy Back of Equity Shares

Aggregate number of shares bought back during the period of five years immediately preceeding the reporting date

Particulars As at 31+t As at 31 As at 31 As at 31t As at 31
March, 2024 March, 2023 March, 2022 March, 2021 March, 2020
Equity Shares of%1/- each - 1,00,00,000 - - -
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(iv) There are NIL (Previous year NIL) securities convertible into Equity/ Preference Shares.

(v) There are NIL (Previous year NIL) calls unpaid including calls unpaid by Directors and Officers as on the balance
sheet date.

(b) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity shares 31st March, 2024 Amount 31st March, 2023 Amount

No. of shares No. of shares
At the beginning of the year 21,21,72,990 21,21,72,990 22,21,72,990 22,21,72,990
Issued during the period | 7 . . 7 . -
Buyback of Shares during the year | ' . ~ (1,0000,0000  (1,00,00,000)
Outstanding at the end of the period 21,21,72,990 21,21,72,990 21,21,72,990 22,21,72,990

(c) Terms of issue of shares other than cash

Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement (“the scheme”) between Star Ferro and Cement Limited (SFCL), the Company
and their respective shareholders as approved by the Hon'ble High Court of Meghalaya at Shillong vide its order dated 31
March, 2015 with effect from 1% April, 2014 being the appointed date, the company had issued and alloted 21,21,72,990
Equity Shares to the shareholders of SFCL in ratio of 1 (one) Equity share of ¥1/- each of the Company as fully paid-up
for every 1 (one) Equity Share of ¥1/- each held by them in SFCL.

(d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
I[N ISIAETI R Malol(sbigle @ No. of Shares % holding

Equity Shares of *1/- each fully paid-up

Shri Sajjan Bhajanka | ' 10690871 10690871
| '  504% 5.04%
Smt Santosh Bhajanka | ' 14321274 14321274
| ' - 675% 6.75%
Shri Sanjay Agarwal | ' 13525229 13525229
| ' 637% 6.37%
St Divya Agarwal | ' 13787658 13787658
| '  650% 6.50%
Subham Buildwell Pvt. Ltd. | ' 29565809 29596532
| ' 13093% 13.95%
Brijdham Merchants Pvt. Ltd. | ' 17349767 17349767
| '  818% 8.18%

Note : As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members, the above shareholdong
represent legal ownership.

(e) The following table shows the promoter holding change during the FY 2023-24:

Promoter Name FY 2023-24 % Change during

No. of Shares as | % of Total Shares the FY 2023-24
on 31.03.2024

Sanjay Agarwal | 13525229 | 7 637 -
Sajjan Bhajanka 10690871 - 5.04 =
Rajesh Kumar Agarwal 29,53,562 1.39 =

The following table shows the promoter holding change during the FY 2022-23:

Promoter Name FY 2022-23 % Change during

No. of Shares as @ % of Total Shares the FY 2022-23
on 31.03.2023

Sanjay Agarwal . 1,35,25,229 . 6.37 | (0.03)
Sajjan Bhajanka | 1,06,90,871 . 5.04 | (0.02)
Rajesh Kumar Agarwal 30,27,062 1.43 (0.01)
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(R in Lakhs)
Note: 14 - Other equity 31% March, 2023
Capital Reserve 6,087.78 6,087.78
Capital Redemption Reserve ib0.00 | 100.00
Retained Earnings 7,8“‘13.37 - ' '7,74'7.1'1
Total 14,001.15 13,934.89
(i) Capital Reserve (% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31% March, 2023
Opening balance 6,087.78 6,087.78
Addition/(Deduction) during the period .
Closing balance 6,087.78 6,087.78

(1) Thisreserve was created pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement betweem Star Ferro and Cement Limited and the
Company during the financial year 2014-2015.

(ii) Capital Redemption Reserve (% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31 March, 2023
Opening balance 100.00 -
Addition/(Deduction) during the period - 10000
Closing balance 100.00 100.00

(i) This reserve was created upon buy back of equity shares by the Company during the financial year 2022-2023.

(ii) Retained Earnings % in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March, 2023
Opening balance 7,747.11 9,179.76
Add: Net profit/(loss) for the penod 7777777777 7266 72,6673.777
Less : Appropriations - o o
Payment of Interim Dividend FY 2021-22 . (666.52)
Buy back of Equity Shares (Includmg Buyback Tax) . (3,428.99)
Other comprehensive incorﬁé """""""" - - -
Remeasurements of post—erﬁﬁéﬁﬁéﬁt benefit obligation (net of tax) "'(‘6.40) | (0491)
Closing balance 7,813.37 7,747.11

(i)  Amount of retained earnings represents accumulated profit and losses of the Company as on reporting date. Such
profits and losses are after adjustment of payment of dividend, transfer to any reserves as statutorily required and
adjustment for remeasurement gain loss on defined benefit plan.

% in Lakhs)
Note: 15 - Lease Liabilities 31% March, 2023
Lease Liabilities ( Refer Note no. 38) 94.94 73.96
Total 94.94 73.96
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% in Lakhs)
Note: 16 - Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 31* March, 2023
Deferred tax assets
Expenditure allowable for tax purposes on payment basis "'.21.40 | 1841
Total deferred tax assets 21.40 18.41
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plantand equipméﬁf 1mpact ofdifference between taxdepreciation 6494 8850
and depreciation/ amortization charged for financial reporting
Others 1903 -
Total deferred tax liabilities 83.97 88.50
Net Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (62.57) (70.09)
Note 16.1 - Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities:- (zin Lakhs)
Particulars As at 1% | Recognized in | Recognized |As at 31% | Recognized in | Recognized R:GEIIAS
April, Statement of in OCI March, Statement of in OCI March,
2022 Profit & loss 2023 Profit & loss 2024
Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liablities)
Expenditure allowable for tax, 1870 | (059) | 030 | 1841 | 084 | 215 2140
purposes upon payment
oy ST NS, B - SRR OSSR NS O
- 18.70 (0.59) 030 1841 0.84 215 2140
Property, Plant & Equipment: | (100.07) 11.57 - | (8850 23.56 - (6494)

Impact of difference between tax
depreciation and depreciation/
amortisation charged for the
financial reporting

Others - - o o 909 | - (1903)
Deferred tax Liabilities (Net) (81.37) 10.98 0.30 = (70.09) 5.37 2.15  (62.57)
% in Lakhs)
Note: 17 - Provisions 31%t March, 2023
Provision for employee benefits
Leave encashment ""15.16 [ o '9.4'4
Cratuity [Refer Note no. SS(H)(a)] """" 6348 5579
Total 78.64 65.23
R in Lakhs)
Note: 18 - Lease Liabilities 31% March, 2023
Lease Liabilities (Refer Note no. 38) 16.39 6.89
Total 16.39 6.89
% in Lakhs)
Note: 19 - Borrowings 31+ March, 2023
Secured
Cash Credit from bank (repé&éﬁé Vdﬁrdemand) 15195 21151
Total 151.95 211.51
Note :

(i) Cash Credit from bank amounting to¥151.95 Lakhs (211.51 Lakhs as at 31t March, 2023) is secured by an exclusive
charge on the current assets of the Company (Refer Note No.36)

(i) The Cash credit is repayable on demand and carries interest at 8.77% p.a. (315 March, 2023 - 7.72% p.a.)
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(iii) The Company has filed quarterly returns or statements with the banks in lieu of the sanctioned working capital
facility, which are in agreement with the books of account other than those as set out below :

% in Lakhs)
Name of the Aggregate Quarter ended Amount @ Amountas Difference  Reason for variance
Bank working disclosed as | per books of
capital limits per quarterly account
sanctioned return/
statement*

3,000.00 30" June, 2022 3,046.40 3,081.18 (34.78) | The difference is due to
variation in stock valuation
rate as valuation is based on
previous month's cost sheet.

2,600.00 | 30t“ June, 2023 | 324048 324048 -

3,000.00 | 30" September, 2022 4,182.89 4,185.39 (2.50) | The difference is due to

variation in stock valuation
rate as valuation is based on
previous month's cost sheet.
2,600.00 | 30" September, 2023 3,030.00 3,029.99 0.01 | The difference is due to
variation in stock valuation
rate as valuation is based on
previous month's cost sheet.

3,000.00 | 31t December, 2022 2,721.52 2,708.58 1294 | The difference is due to
variation in stock valuation
rate as valuation is based on
previous month's cost sheet.

HDFC L . . I
2,600.00 | 31t December, 2023 3,956.45 3,993.05 (36.60) | The difference is due to

variation in stock valuation
rate as valuation is based on
previous month's cost sheet.

3,000.00 31st March, 2023 4,703.58 3,825.26 878.32 | Impact on inventory for sales
reversal wherein risk/rewards
were not transferred to the
customers  within  period
end was not considered in
returns/statement submitted
to the Bank.

2,600.00 31% March, 2024 | 3,333.47 333348 | (001) The difference is due to
variation in stock valuation
rate as valuation is based on

previous month's cost sheet.

* Represents Working Capital sanctioned calculated as :- Inventory + Trade Reveivables - Trade Payables
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% in Lakhs)
Note: 20 - Trade payables 31* March, 2023
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 84.86 -
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and | 889.38 | 1,025.23
small enterprises
Total 974.24 1,025.23

20.1 Ageing of outstanding Trade Payables as on 31t March, 2024 from due date of payment is as follows:

R in Lakhs)

Particulars Not Due | Lessthan | 1-2years | 2 - 3years | More than Total
1 year 3 years
(i) MSME 84.86 = = = = 84.86
(ii) Other than MSME 68419 1856 - 1863 - 88938
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME | I o o o B
(iv) Disputed dues - Other than | I o o o B
MSME

Total 769.05 186.56 - 18.63 - 974.24

20.2 Ageing of outstanding Trade Payables as on 31 March, 2023 from due date of payment is as follows:

R in Lakhs)
Particulars NotDue | Lessthan 1-2years 2-3years Morethan Total
1 year 3 years
(i) MSME - - ; B
(if) Other than MSME . 70212 | 30056 1863 | - 392 102523
(iti) Disputed dues - MSME ' - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Other than ' - = - - - -
MSME
Total 702.12 300.56 - - 3.92 1,025.23

20.3 Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Based on the information/documents available with the Company, information as per the requirement of Section 22 of
The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are as under:

R in Lakhs)
Particulars 31 March, 2023
(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the 84.86 -
accounting year
(ii) Interest due on above - -
Total of (i) & (ii) . 8486 -
(iii) Amount of interest paid by the Company to the suppliers in terms of | . 2.61
Section 16 of the Act.
(iv) Amount paid to the suppliers beyond the respective appointed date. — 86.84

(v) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in payments = -
(which have been paid but beyond the due date during the year) but
without adding the interest specified under the Act.

(vi) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of = -
accounting year.

(vii) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the = -
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under Section 23 of this Act.
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Financial statements

(R in Lakhs)
Note: 21 - Other financial liabilities KIRNVEV(S M0l 315 March, 2023
Employee related liabilities "’56.92 | 46.85
Cessoncoal 1"31.14 | 138.77
Unpaid Dividend (to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund 1.81 1.81
as and when due)
Total 189.87 187.43

(T in Lakhs)
Note: 22 - Other current liabilities KYRRVETC 2l 31 March, 2023
Other Payables | -
Statutory Liabilites %14.5‘4 | 7 352.67
Advances taken from customers 16.58 52.12
Total 231.12 404.79

(% in Lakhs)

Note: 23 - Provisions 31st March, 2024

31st March, 2023

Provision for employee benefits

Leave encashment 1.24 | '1.1'9
Gratuity[Refer Note no.35(I(a)] 515 6.74
Total 6.39 7.93
(R in Lakhs)
Note: 24 - Current tax liabilities (net) 31% March, 2023
Provision for taxation (Net of Advance Tax of ¥952.38 lacs as at 31 March, = 74.07
2023)
Total - 74.07
% in Lakhs)
Note: 25 - Revenue from Operations 31 March, 2023
Sale of products 13,809.30 18,098.83
Total 13,809.30 18,098.83
Note:
Reconciliation of revenue as per contract price and as recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss:
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March, 2023
Revenue as per contract price 13,863.16 18,157.78
Less: Discounts and incentix}éé 7777777777 "'53.86 | ' 58.95
Revenue as per Statement of Profit and Loss 13,809.30 18,098.83
(% in Lakhs)
Note: 26 - Other income 31 March, 2023
Interest income
- OnFixed Deposit 796.25 64887
- onloan 2295 2295
Profit on sale of investmenf 77777777777777 N 70.373
Liabilities no longer required written back 383 9.95
Miscellaneous receipts ""38.33 | 38.30
Total 861.36 720.40
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% in Lakhs)
Note: 27 - Cost of materials consumed 31 March, 2023
Inventories at the beginning of the year 2,101.73 1,422.16
Add: Purchases 4,653.02 6,562.61
6,754.75 7,984.77
Less: Inventories at the endr of the year 1,9"6197 '2,1071.7'3
Total 4,792.78 5,883.04
% in Lakhs)
Details of Raw Materials Consumed KIRNVEN PP 31t March, 2023
Quartz 591.39 583.36
LamCoke 3,218.02 4,260.58
Millscale 51261  571.54
Others 470.76 46756
Total 4,792.78 5,883.04
Note: 28 - (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 31 March, 2023
Inventory at the beginning of the year 704.56 372.15
Inventory at the end of the'p”err'ibd' """" H 954.28 704.55
Total (249.72) (332.40)
R in Lakhs)
Note: 29 - Employee benefit expense 31+ March, 2023
Salaries & Wages 505.57 467 .24
Contribution to Provident Fundand 'cr>rtrher Funds H ";‘21.46 ' 19.46
Employee Weltare Expensés 777777777777777 ""30.31 34.42
Total 557.34 521.12
R in Lakhs)
Note: 30 - Finance costs 31+ March, 2023
Interest expenses 15.24 24.55
Intereston lease H 970 5.81
Bank Charges & Commission 386 422
Total 28.80 34.58
R in Lakhs)
Note: 31 - Depreciation and amortisation expense 31*t March, 2023
Depreciation/Amortisation on Property Plant & Equipment 330.62 325.22
Amortisation on right of usrer assets 777777 H ""12‘74 79.973
Amortisation on intangiblé assets 7777777 0.59 VO. 15
Total 343.95 335.30
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(% in Lakhs)
Note: 32 - Other expenses 31 March, 2023
Consumption of Stores & Spares 839.80 1,084.78
Packing Materials 6069 6907
Repairs & Maintenance [ o o
- Buiding 1821 3339
- Plant& Machinery 80.96 [ o 108.14
- Others 460 735
Insurance 37.84 [ 3994
Rent 086 014
Rates & Taxes 645 899
Traveling and Conveyance 7.64 [ o '5.270
Heavy Vehicle / Equipment Runnmg Expenses 6580 8347
Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note No.43) 7683 5340
Miscellaneous expenses (Includiﬁg payment to Auditors, Refer Note No.32. 1) ' 481.90 [ 49289
Outward Freight Charges 307.66 [ o 216.11
Commission, Discount & Incentives on Sale 84.77 [ o 821
Allowances for expected credif loss N o 225.30
Allowances for Non- moving/bﬁéélete items of Stores and spares parts 10.72 [ 1254
Total 2,084.73 2,448.92
Note: 32.1 Payment to Auditor
% in Lakhs)
Nature of Expenditure 31st March, 2023
As Auditor
Statutory Audit Fees 2.00 . 1.00
Fees for Review of quarterly financial results 160 100
Certification Fees 0.25 [ o 'O.4VO
Reimbursement of Expenses 057 032
Total 4.42 2.72
Note: 33 - Tax expenses
(a) Tax expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31 March, 2023
Current income tax 68.96 1,012.77
Deferredtax (537  (10.98)
Income Vtrar>r<rér>r<pense for earlier years (4.71) | 0.85
Total Income tax expenses reported in the Statement of Profit & Loss 58.88 1,002.64
(b) Tax expenses recorded in the Other Comprehensive Income:
(R in Lakhs)
Particulars 31 March, 2023
Tax on netloss / (gain) on remeasurement of defined benefit plan 2.15 0.30
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(c) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate:

% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31 March, 2023
Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 131.54 3,666.41
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25.17% 3311 922.77
Expenseé not deductible for tax purposes 35.85 [ 9000
Reversal of deferred tax 537 (1098
Income tax for earlier yearsreversed (4.71) 085
Income tax expense 58.88 1,002.64

(d) The tax rate used for the financial year 2023-24 and 2022-23 reconciliation above is the Corporate Tax Rate of 25.17%
(22% + Surcharge 10% + Education Cess 4%) and 25.17% (22% + Surcharge 10% + Education Cess 4%) respectively
payable on taxable profit under Income Tax Act, 1961.

(e) There is no undisclosed income under the Income Tax Act, 1961 for the year ending 31% March, 2023 and 31%
March, 2022 which needs to be recorded in the books of accounts.

Note: 34 - Earnings per share

Particulars IR EN( W02 315t March, 2023

Profit after Tax (% in Lakhs) 72.66 | 2,663.77

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 21,21,72,990 7 21,82,82,579

Earnings per share: | - -
Basic and Diluted (in %) 0.03 1.26

Note :35 - Employees Benefit obligations

(I) Leave obligations

The Company extends benefit of compensated absences to the employees, whereby they are eligible to carry
forward their entitlement of earned leave for encashment upon retirement/separation.

(IT) Post-employment obligations

a) Gratuity
The company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service
is entitled to gratuity on terms not less than the provisions of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

(i) Theamountsrecognised inthefinancial statements and the movement in the net defined benefit obligation
over the year are as follows:

R in Lakhs)

Particulars Present | Fair value Net

value of of plan amount

obligation assets

Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation as at 1%t April, 2022 61.86 - 61.86
Currenﬁ éervice coéf R R R R | 7:00 | T 7 7.00
Interest éxpense/(iﬁcome) R R R R | 4.40 | I 4.40
Total amount recognised in Sféféinent of Profit and Loss 11.40 - 11.40
Remeasurements
Actuarial (gain)/losrsr from chaﬁge in financial assumptions : L 064 | - (064
Actuarial (gain)/losrsr from unekpected expérience R R | 185 | . 185
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 1.21 - 1.21
Benefitspaid (11.94) - (11.94)
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation as at 315t March, 2023 62.53 - 62.53
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(R in Lakhs)

Particulars Present | Fair value Net

value of of plan Amount

obligation assets

Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation as at 1* April, 2023 [ 62.53 - 6253
Current service cost 7.67 - 7.67
Interest éxpense/(iﬁcome) B B B B [ 463 | o 463
Total amount recognised in proﬁt :or loss 12.30 - 12.30
Remeasurements
Actuarial (gain)/los's' from chaﬁge in financial assumptions R [ 747 - 747
Actuarial (gain)/los's' from une}@pepted expérience B B [ 109 | o 109
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 8.56 - 8.56
Benefitspaid (14.75) - (14.75)
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation as at 31t March, 2024 68.63 - 68.63
Net asset/(liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet % in Lakhs)
Particulars 31 March, 2023
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligations (68.63) (62.53)
FairValﬁeofPlanAésets B B B B ‘ “ - [
Net Asset/(Liability) in the Balance Sheet - (68.63) (62.53)
Current Asset/(liability) (5.15) (6.74)
Non-Current Assef/(liabﬂity) R R R R ‘ (63.48) - (35.79)

(ii) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Particulars 315t March, 2023
Discount rate 7.10% 7.40%
Salary gfowth rate B B B B ‘ 700%  600%
Withdrawalrate R B R B . 1%t08% 1% to8%
Expectéd rate of return on plaﬁ assets R R ‘ NA  NA
Mortality rate - B - B - IALM (2012-14)  IALM (2012-14)

Table Ultimate Table Ultimate

(iii) Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Particulars Impact on defined benefit obligation
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Increase | Decrease
Discount rate (-/+ 1%) 63.15 75.25 57.73 68.32
Shygownme(+ 10 7si8 e ee 5%
Withdrawal rate (-/+ 1%) 68.68 68.87 63.11 62.16

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated.
When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same
method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the
end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the
balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitvity analysis did not change compared to
the prior period.

(iv) The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets

Particulars KYENVET( W0l 315t March, 2023

Funds managed by Insurer Nil Nil
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(v) Risk exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which
are detailed below:

Interest risk:
A decrease in the interest rate on plan assets will increase the plan liability.

Life expectancy:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the
mortality of plan participants both during and at the end of the employment. An increase in the life expectancy
of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

Salary growth risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan
participants. An increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

(vi) Contribution to Defined benefit plan
Expected contributions to post-employment benefits plans for the year ending 31 March, 2025 is Rs. 18.31
Lakhs ( 31 March,2023, Rs.17.91).

(vii)Maturity profile of Defined Benefit Obligations
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 5.46 years (31 March, 2023 : 5.98 years). The
expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity is as follows:

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31% March, 2023
Year 1 5.15 6.74
Year2 240 227
Year3 22
Year4  3:%2 242
Year5 119 403
Next5Years 1460 1904

(I11) Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution towards provident fund are treated as expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Under the
defined contribution plan, provident fund is contributed to the Government administered provident fund. The
Company has no further contractual on constructive obligation, other than the contribution payable to the
provident fund. The expense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plan is ¥15.81 Lakhs (as
at 315 March, 2023 : %19.46 Lakhs)

Note: 36 - Assets pledged as security
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current borrowings are:

% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31 March, 2023
Current Assets
Exclusive charge

Inventory 333348 326632

Trade receivables 1,706.38 | 71,5677.675

Loans 25500 25500

Cash & Cash Equivalents 778 775

Bank balances other than above 8,i"60.81 | 10,462.78

Other financial assets 13763 14800

Other current assets i'80.44 [ . 8104
Total current assets pledged as security 13,851.57 15,788.54
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Note: 37 - Financial instruments by category

% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31 March, 2023
FVPL FVOCI Amortised FVPL FVOCI Amortised
cost cost

Non-Current Financial assets
Security Deposits - - 11673 - - 59.13
Advance for investment in equity . - ' 1 150899
shares
Current financial assets
Loans to Body Corporate (Other = - 255.00 | - - 255.00
than related parties)
Trade Receivable - - 170638 - - | 1,567.65
Cash and cash equivalents . ' S 7783 - - 7.75
Bank balances other than above - ' 1 816081 | - - 10,462.78
Other financial assets o 13763 - - 148.00

= = 11,963.37 - - 12,500.31
Non-Current Financial liabilities
Lease Liabilities 9494 73.96
Current financial liabilities ]
Borrowings - - 15195 - - 211.51
Trade Payables 7—7 ' - 97424 - - 1,025.23
Lease Liabilities - - 1639 - - 6.89
Other financial liabilities - - 18987 - - 187.43

- - 1,427.39 - - 1,505.02

(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments
that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are
disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining
fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting
standard.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included
in level 3.

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

(iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

The carrying amountof financial assets and financial liabilities measured atamortised costin the financial statements
are reasonable approximations of their fair values since the Company does not anticipate that the carrying amounts
would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled.

(iv) Significant estimates

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation
techniques. The Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.
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Note: 38 - Lease Liabilities

(@) The Company has lease contracts for land. The Company'’s obligations under leases are secured by the lessor's title

to the leased assets.

(b) The Company has elected to apply Ind AS 116 to its leases with modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the company has recognised lease liabilities and corresponding right of use assets. In the Statement of
Profitand Loss for the year ended, depreciation expenses on right of use assets and finance cost for interest accrued

on such lease liability has been recognized.

(c) Movementin lease liabilities

(R in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March, 2023
Opening balance 80.85 42.99
Additons 3772 4574
Deletons B (1.70)
Add: Interest recognised during the year 960 581
Less: Payments made during the year ("1"6,84) | (11.99)
Closing balance B B B 111.33 80.85
Current B B B 16.39 6.89
Non-Current 94.94 73.96
Notes:

(i) The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are

sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

d) Amountrecognized in Statement of Profit and Loss:

% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March, 2023
Interest expense on lease liabilities 9.60 581
Deprec'i'a'ﬁ'c')ﬁ' ékpense ofright-of-use assets 1274 093
Total 22.34 15.74

Note: 39 - Capital Management
The Company's objectives when managing capital are to:

e safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders

and benefits for other stakeholders, and

e maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to

shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The amount mentioned under total equity in balance sheet is considered as Capital.

No changes were made to the objective, policies or process for managing capital during the year ended 31 March, 2024

and 31t March, 2023.
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Note: 40 - Financial Risk Management

The Company's activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (i.e. foreign
currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk).

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk:

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade | Aging analysis Diversification of customer base
receivables and financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

Liquidity risk Financial liabilities that are settled | Cash flow forecasts | Projecting cash flows and considering
by delivering cash or another the level of liquid assets necessary to
financial asset. meet the liabilities.

Market risk - Long-term borrowings at fixed | Sensitivity analysis | Portfolio of loan contains fixed interest

interest rate rates loans from banks.

Market risk — Future commercial transactions| Cash flow Projecting cash flows and considering

Foreign Exchange ' and recognised financial assets|forecasting the forcast of fluctuaion in exchange

risk & liabilities not denominated in Sensitivity Analysis | rates

Indian National Rupee %)

Market risk — Price  Investments in equity securities | Sensitivity Analysis | Continous monitoring the performance
Risk of investments

(A) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financialloss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables).

(i) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally
carrying 30 days credit terms. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The Company has no
concentration of creditrisk as the customer base is widely distributed both economically and geographically. The ageing
of trade receivables as of balance sheet date is given below. The age analysis have been considered from the due date:

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars Not due | Less than 6 months | 6 months - 1 year | > 1 year Total
Trade receivable as on 31 March, 2024 230.76 1,436.51 39.11 - 1,706.38
Trade receivable as on 31% March, 2023 | 1,205.72 | 361.93 - -] 156765

(ii) Financial instruments and deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's finance department. For
banks and financial institutions, only high rated banks/institutions are accepted.

Financial assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no significant credit risk.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 315t March, 2024 and 31
March, 2023 is the carrying amounts as illustrated in Note No. 37

(iii) The movement of Advances to suppliers for goods and services and Allowance for Expected Credit Loss thereto
are as follows:

% in Lakhs)
Particulars Note No. 31st March, 2023
Advances to suppliers for goods and services 12 310.30 281.02
Less: Allowances for Expected'Credit loss 12 (2&575) | (275.75)
Advances to éﬁppliers for goods and services (Net) | ' "'34.55 527
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(iv) Reconciliation of Allowance for Expected Credit Loss:

% in Lakhs)
Particulars Advances to suppliers
for goods and services
Allowance for Expected Credit Loss as on 1% April, 2023 275.75
Add: Loss Allowance provided during the year ' 7 7 7 -
Allowance for Expected Credit Loss as on 31 March, 2024 [ ' 27575

(B) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of
the underlying business, the Company maintains sufficient cash and liquid investments available to meet its obligation.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing
facilities below) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The management also considers
the cash flows projection and level of liquid assets necessary to meet these on a regular basis.

(i) Financing arrangements
The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

(R in Lakhs)

Particulars IR EN( e 0 315t March, 2023

FloatingRate - ‘ . | - -
Expiring within one year (Cash Credit) 2,448.05 2,788.49
2,448.05 2,788.49

The Cash Credit facility may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice. Subject to the
continuance of satisfactory credit ratings, the bank loan facilities may be drawn at any time in Indian Rupees.
Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual
maturities for all financial liabilities.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal
their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

% in Lakhs)
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities Less than Between Between | More than Total
- 31st March, 2024 1year | 1 and 2 years | 2 and 5 years 5 years
Trade payables 974.24 = = 974.24
Horromings S 15195 _ e e 15195
Interest payab'l‘éu&{ above borrowing";é """""" - = S - -
Lease Liabilites . 1684 16.84 2930 | 157.36  220.34
Other financial liabilities | 18987 = S T 18987
Total financial liabilities 1,332.90 16.84 29.30 157.36 @ 1,536.40

(R in Lakhs)
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities | Less than Between 1 Between 2 = More than Total
- 31st March, 2023 1 year and 2 years and 5 years 5 years
Trade payables 1,025.23 - - - 1,02523
Borrowings Coo21181 - - - 21151
Interest payable on above borrowings ' 7 1 7 T 7 - 7 - -
Lease Liabilities . 1684 1684 | 3368 169.83 | 237.19
Other financial liabilities . 18743 - . ' - | 18743
Total financial liabilities 1,441.01 16.85 33.68 169.83 | 1,661.36
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(C) Market risk — Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily
to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company's main interest rate risk arises from borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash
flow interest rate risk. During 315 March 2024, the Company's borrowings at variable rate were denominated in Indian
Rupees.

(a) Interest rate risk exposure
On Financial Liabilities:

The exposure of the Company's financial liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows:

% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March, 2023
Variable rate borrowings 151.95 21151
Fixed rate borrowings . - .
Total borrowings 151.95 211.51

(b) Sensitivity
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates as
below:

% in Lakhs)
Particulars Impact on profit before tax
31 March, 2023
Interest expense rates — increase by 50 basis points (2023: 50 bps)* (0.76) (1.06)
Interest expense rates — decrease by 50 basis points (2023: 50 bps)* 0.76 | 1.06

* Holding all other variables constant

(D) Market risk — Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates.

Further foreign exchange risk also arises from future cash flow against foreign currency loan. The risk is measured
through a forecast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows.

(E) Market risk — Price risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments
traded in the market.
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Note 41 - Related Party Disclosures

I. Name of the related parties and related party relationship:

No. exists

Sl.  Names of the related parties where control

Nature of relationship

A | Star Cement Limited

Mr. Sumanta Kumar Patra

Mr. Rajesh Agarwal
Mr.Nirmalya Bhattacharyya
Mr.Pramod Kumar Shah
Mrs. Plistina Dkhar

Mr. Uday Bahadur Chetri
Mrs. Ritu Agarwal

Mrs. Neha Agarwal

. Suhag Overseas Trading Private Limited
B | Key Management Personnel
Mr Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal

Enterprise Owned/Influences by Key Managerial Personnel

' Enterprise Owned/Influences by Key Managerial Personnel
Nature of Relationship
Managing Director

Chief Executive Officer & Whole Time Director
(resigned w.e.f 315 March, 2024)

Non - Executive Director

Independent Director

: Independent Director

Independent Director

| Chief Financial Officer
| Company Secretary (w.e.f. 27" May, 2022)

Company Secretary (upto 26™ May, 2022)

II. Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and the status of outstanding
balance as at 31t March, 2024 and 31t March, 2023 are given hereunder:

Sl. | Type of Transactions
No.

1 ' Loan Given

Suhag Overseas Trading Private Limited
2 | Interest Received

Suhag Overseas Trading Private Limited
3 ' Remuneration Paid

Mr. Sumanta Kumar Patra

Provident Fund for the current year -Rs. 0.22 lacs and for
the previous year - Rs. 0.22 lacs )

Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal
Ms. Ritu Agarwal

4 Dividend Paid
Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal
Mr. Rajesh Agarwal

5 ' Director Sitting Fees
Mr.Nirmalya Bhattacharyya
Mr Pramod Kumar Shah
Mrs Plistina Dkhar

6 ' Reimbursement
Ms. Ritu Agarwal

7 Outstanding Balances
Suhag Overseas Trading Private Limited
Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal

Provident Fund for the current year -Rs. 0.22 lacs and for
the previous year - Rs. 0.22 lacs )

Ms. Ritu Agarwal

Mr. Uday Bahadur Chetri (including contribution towards |

Mr. Uday Bahadur Chetri (including contribution towards |

% in Lakhs)

Key Management Enterprise Owned/

Personnel Influences by KMP
2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
- - 270 2.70
2ass 2z :
11.88 11.40 - -
00 soo0 :
2l | 684 NN : :
: 1200 - -

= 954 -

e s -
195 160 : -
025 010 : :
o2 o -
- - 30.00 32.43
2,67 -
= - 0.99 -
- - 067 -
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III. (% in Lakhs)
Key management personnel compensation KRN ENC 0Pl 315t March, 2023
Short-term employee benefits ""96.02 9260

Post-employment benefits (refer i below) - . - -

Long-term employee benefits (refer i below) - -
Total compensation 96.02 92.60

(i) Post-employment benefits and long-term employee benefits are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation for
the Company as a whole and hence segregarion is not available.

Note :42 - Contingent Liabilities & Commitments

(i) Capital and Other Commitments

R in Lakhs)
Particulars KRR EN( 0Pl 315t March, 2023
Commitment for Acquisition of Property, plant & Equipement (Net of 138.6 1484
Advance)

R in Lakhs)

Particulars KIRNVEV Pl 31 March, 2023

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts-

Royalty, MEPRE, GST/VAT 218480 218480
Incorme Tax 2021 2021
Excise Duty - 11204
Total 2,205.01 2,317.05

Note : Based on legal opinion / decisions in similar cases, the Management believes that the Company has a fair chance
of favorable decisions in cases mentioned here-in-above and hence no provision is considered necessary.

a) Inrespectofdemand notice dated 19% February, 2020 received by the Company from Director of Mineral Resources,
Meghalaya, for payment of royalty, MEPRF, VAT/GST for %1,739 Lacs (approx) in pursuance to the National Green
Tribunal (NGT) Order dated 17" January, 2020 passed in O.A. No. 110(TCH)/2012 for alleged illegal coal procurement.
By passing the said order NGT has accepted the Recommendation of the 5% Interimm Report of the Independent
Committee set up by NGT, which has suggested imposition of penalty on Cement Companies and Thermal Power
Plants in Meghalaya.

The Company has not purchased any illegal coal and has complied with all disclosure requirements of the various
Government Departments. The Report of NGT Committee has been founded on the basis of assumptions and
views of the Committee and not on hard facts. Further to note that the Company has neither been issued a show-
cause nor any opportunity of being heard was given to the Company before submitting the Interim reports by
the Independent Committee to NGT. Even NGT has not served any notice on the Company before passing the
impugned order dated 17" January, 2020 which is clear violation of principles of natural justice. In addition, the
Committee also recommended that an amount of Rs. 400/MT of coal to be utilized by the Company (and other
plants) on or after the date of the order shall be directed to be deposited in the MEPRF, which comes to Rs. 446 Lakhs
(approx).

Accordingly, the Company had preferred an appeal, being C.A. No.4144 of 2020, before the Apex Court. The Apex
court vide it's order dated 02.05.2023 restored the proceeding in relation to the Company back to the file of the NGT,
at the stage, at which they stood prior to the passing of the judgement dated 17.01.2020.

On 274 Nov, 2023, the Company filed an application for impleadment which was allowed by the NGT, Eastern
Zone Bench, Kolkata. Further, the Company has also filed a counter affidavit before the NGT, Eastern Zone Bench
which was taken on record on 9" Feb, 2024 and the said case is now listed for hearing before the NGT, Kolkata on
02.08.2024. And hence, no provision has been made in the books of account.
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Note: 43 - Corporate Social Responsibility

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at
least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility
(CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting education,art and
culture healthcare,destitute care and rehabilitation, environment sustainability, disaster relief and rural developments
projects.

43.1 A CSR Committee has been formed by Company as per the Companies Act, 2013. The funds were primarily
utilized through the year on these activities which are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

a) Gross Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year is ¥76.83 Lakhs (as at 31 March, 2023, 351.74
Lakhs)

b) Amount spent during the year :
% in Lakhs)

Sl. | Nature of Expenditure KIRNENCI 0Pl 315t March, 2023
No.

A Construction/Acquisition of any asset = -

B On Purposes other than above : - _

(i) | Education ‘ 7683 3087
(i) | Animal Welfare ) ' ) ' ) ‘ - 2200
(iii) |Health and Sanitation ' ) ' ) ‘ - 053
Total 76.83 53.40
(R in Lakhs)
Pending Balance of Amount required to be | Amount spent during the Closing Balance of
(Excess)/ Shortfall spends | spent during the year year (Excess)/ Shortfall spends
as on 1st April, 2023 as on 31st March, 2024
(1.66) 76.29 (76.83) (2.20)

c) Total of previous years shortfall and reason thereof : Not Applicable

% in Lakhs)
Sl Particulars 31st March, 2023
No.
(i) | Amount required to be spent by the group during the year ‘ i - N 3174
(ii) Amount of expenditure incurred 76.83 53.40
(iii) 1 Shortfall at the end of the year ‘ ” -
(iv): Total of prev1ous years shortfall = —
() Reason for shortfall Not Applicable Not Applicable
(vi) ' Nature o'f CSR activities Eduéation, Animal.vv\'/élvfa'rve”éﬁdv Health
and Sanitation

(Vii)' Details of related party transactions, e.g. Contribution to a trust Not Appﬁcable FFFFFFF Not Apphcable

controlled by the Company in relation to CSR expenditure as per

relevant Accounting Standard
(Viiﬁ) Where a”p'r”o'\'/ision is made with respect to a liability incurred Not Appﬁcable  Not Appliéablé

by entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in the

provision
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44 The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank/financial institution/government/any
government authority.

45 The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current year or previous
year.

46 The borrowings obtained by the company from banks have been applied for the purposes for which such loans
were taken.

47 The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangements which has an accounting impact on current or
previous financial years.

48 No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) [formerly the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)] and Rules made thereunder.

49 The Company did not have any transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act,
2013 during the current financial year and previous financial year.

50 (i) The Company hasnotadvanced orloaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or security premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entities, including foreign entities (Funding
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: (a) directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries

51 There are no charges or satisfaction of charges which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies
beyond the statutory period.
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Note: 53 The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacture and sale of ferro silicon. There are no separate
reportable segments as per Ind AS 108, 'Operating Segments'.

Note: 54 Previous year's figures have been rearranged and/or regrouped,whenever necessary

Note: 55 The financial staterments have been approved by the Audit Committee at its meeting held on 22" May, 2024
and by the Board of Directors on the same date.

For D. K. Chhajer & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 304138E

Neha Maheshwari Uday Bahadur Chetri Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal
Partner Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
Membership No :308616 DIN : 03330313

Ritu Agarwal Rajesh Kumar Agarwal
Place: Kolkata Company Secretary Director
Date: 22" May, 2024 DIN : 00223718
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SHYAM CENTURY FERROUS LIMITED

CIN: L27310ML2011PLC0O08578
Regd. Office: Vill: Lumshnong, P.O.: Khaliehriat, Dist.: East Jaintia Hills, Meghalaya - 793210
Corporate Office: ‘Century House', 2@ Floor, P 15/1, Taratala Main Road, Kolkata - 700 088
Tel: 033- 24015555, Email: investors@shyamcenturyferrous.com
Website: www.shyamcenturyferrous.com

Notice to the Shareholders

NOTICE is hereby given that the THIRTEENTH ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING of the Members of Shyam
Century Ferrous Limited will be held on Thursday,
26" September, 2024 at 02:00 P.M. (IST) through Video
Conferencing ("VC")/ Other Audio-Visual Means ("OAVM")
facility to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the Financial Year
ended 31 March, 2024 and the Reports of Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajesh Kumar
Agarwal (DIN: 00223718), who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. Re-apppointment of Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar

Agrawal (DIN: 03330313) as Managing Director of
the Company

To consider and if, thought fit, to pass with or without
modification(s) the following Resolution as a Special
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to recommendation of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
approval of the Board and pursuant to the provisions
of Sections 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule
V and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force)
and applicable provisions of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘'Listing
Regulations’) (including any statutory modification(s)
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force),
the Articles of Association of the Company, the
consent of the members be and is hereby accorded
for the re-appointment of Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar
Agrawal (DIN: 03330313) as the Managing Director of
the Company for a further period of 3 (three) years
with effect from 315t October, 2024 to 30" October,
2027 on the revised terms and conditions including
remuneration of ¥65,00,000 per annum effective from
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15t November, 2024 with an annual increment of 10%
as set out in the explanatory statement and draft
agreement to be entered between the Company and
Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal and as available for
the inspection of the members;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors
of the Company (hereinafter referred to as "the Board”
which term shall be deemed to include Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of the Board) be and
is hereby authorized to alter, vary and amend the
terms and conditions of re-appointment and/or
remuneration of Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal in
such manner as may be agreed to between the Board
and Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal, within the limits
hereby sanctioned and within the overall ceiling of
managerial remuneration provided under Section
197 of the Companies Act, 2013 or such other limits
as may be prescribed from time to time;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the consent of the
Members of the Company be and is hereby also
accorded that where in any financial year the
Company has no profits or inadequate profits,
Managing Director of the Company be paid
remuneration within the overall applicable limit as set
out in the provisions of Schedule V to the Companies
Act, 2013;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving
effect to this resolution, the Board of Directors of the
Company be and are hereby authorized to take such
steps and actions and give such directions as may be,
in its absolute discretion, deemed necessary and to
settle any question that may arise in this regards.”

Re-appointment of Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah as an
Independent Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following Resolution as a Special
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 149, 150, 152, and any other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act")
read with Schedule IV to the Act (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof,
for the time being in force) and the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time and
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applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended
and Articles of Association of the Company and
pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and approval of the
Board of Directors, Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah (DIN:
00343256), Aged about 73 years, who holds office of
Independent Director up to 315t March, 2025, and who
has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria
for independence as provided under Section 149(6)
of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Securities
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and
in respect of whom the Company has received a
notice in writing under Section 160(1) of the Act
from a Member, signifying his intention to propose
Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah's candidature for the office
of Director, be and is hereby re-appointed as an
Independent Director of the Company, not liable
to retire by rotation, for a second term of 5 (Five)
consecutive years commencing from 15t April,
2025 upto 31 March, 2030 and that approval be
and is hereby accorded for his continuation as an
Independent Director even after his attaining the age
of 75 years;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors
of the Company (including its Committee thereof)
and/or Company Secretary of the Company, be and
are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts,
deeds, matters and things as may be considered
necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this
resolution.”

Ratification of Remuneration payable to the Cost
Auditors for the Financial Year ending March
31,2025

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following Resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and the Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof, for the time being in force), the consent
of the Members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to ratify and confirm the remuneration of
¥60,000 (Rupees Sixty thousand only) plus applicable
taxes and re-imbursement of out of pocket expenses
incurred, if any to be paid to M/s. B. G. Chowdhury
& Co., Cost Accountants, (Firm Registration Number:
000064), appointed by the Board of Directors on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee as the
Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records
of the Company for the Financial Year ending 31
March, 2025;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors
of the Company and/or Company Secretary of the
Company, be and are hereby severally authorized to
do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary,
proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

Approval for Material Related Party Transactions

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following Resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 188 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Meeting of Board and
its Powers) Rules, 2014 and in terms of Regulation
23 and other applicable provisions of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as
amended from time to time (including any statutory
modification(s) or enactment thereof for the time
being in force) ("Listing Regulations”), and pursuant
to the consent of the Audit Committee and the Board
of Directors obtained at their respective meetings,
consentand approval of the Members of the Company
be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors
(which term shall include any Committee constituted
by the Board or any person(s) authorized by the Board
to exercise its power, including the powers conferred
by this Resolution) to enter into the arrangements/
transactions/ contracts (including any other transfer
of resources, giving and taking loans, advances,
securities, services or obligations etc,) upto an
amount of 20 crores in a Financial Year entered or
to be entered into by the Company with Star Cement
Limited, a related party within the meaning of Section
2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 2(1)
(zb) of the Listing Regulations as applicable, in the
ordinary course of business and on arms'’ length basis
as set out in the explanatory statement annexed to
the notice convening this meeting, for the Financial
Year 2024-25 & 2025-26;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT THAT the consent
of the Members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company,
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as
may be necessary, expedient or desirable including
any negotiation/ renegotiation/ modification/
ratification/ amendments to or termination thereof, of
the subsisting arrangements/ transactions/ contracts
or any future arrangements/ transactions/ contracts
and to make or receive/ pay monies or to perform
all other obligations in terms of such arrangements/
transactions/ contracts with the Related parties.”

Approval for Material Related Party Transactions

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following Resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:
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"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 188 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Meeting of Board and
its Powers) Rules, 2014 and in terms of Regulation
23 and other applicable provisions of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as
amended from time to time (including any statutory
modification(s) or enactment thereof for the time
being in force) ("Listing Regulations”), and pursuant
to the consent of the Audit Committee and the Board
of Directors obtained at their respective meetings,
consentand approval of the Members of the Company
be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors
(which term shall include any Committee constituted
by the Board or any person(s) authorized by the Board
to exercise its power, including the powers conferred
by this Resolution) to enter into the arrangements/
transactions/ contracts (including any other transfer
of resources, giving and taking loans, advances,
securities, services or obligations etc,) upto an
amount of 10 crores in a Financial Year entered or to
be entered into by the Company with Star Cement (I)
Limited, a related party within the meaning of Section
2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 2(1)
(zb) of the Listing Regulations as applicable, in the
ordinary course of business and on arms' length basis
as set out in the explanatory statement annexed to
the notice convening this meeting, for Financial Year
2024-25 & 2025-26;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the consent of the
Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded
to the Board of Directors of the Company, to do
all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may
be necessary, expedient or desirable including
any negotiation/ renegotiation/ modification/
ratification/ amendments to or termination thereof, of
the subsisting arrangements/ transactions/ contracts
or any future arrangements/ transactions/ contracts
and to make or receive/ pay monies or to perform
all other obligations in terms of such arrangements/
transactions/ contracts with the Related parties.”

8. Approval for Material Related Party Transactions

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following Resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

Registered Office:

Vill: Lumshnong, P.O.: Khaliehriat
Dist.: East Jaintia Hills

Meghalaya - 793210

Date: 09" August, 2024
Place: Kolkata
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"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 188 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Meeting of Board and
its Powers) Rules, 2014 and in terms of Regulation
23 and other applicable provisions of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as
amended from time to time (including any statutory
modification(s) or enactment thereof for the time
being in force) ("Listing Regulations”), and pursuant
to the consent of the Audit Committee and the Board
of Directors obtained at their respective meetings,
consent and approval of the Members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of
Directors (which term shall include any Committee
constituted by the Board or any person(s) authorized
by the Board to exercise its power, including the
powers conferred by this Resolution) to enter into the
arrangements/ transactions/ contracts (including any
other transfer of resources, giving and taking loans,
advances, securities, services or obligations etc.,) upto
an amount of %10 crores in a Financial Year entered
or to be entered into by the Company with Star
Cement North East Limited, a related party within the
meaning of Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013
and Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing Regulations as
applicable, in the ordinary course of business and
on arms' length basis as set out in the explanatory
statement annexed to the notice convening this
meeting, for Financial Year 2024-25 & 2025-26;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the consent of the
Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded
to the Board of Directors of the Company, to do
all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may
be necessary, expedient or desirable including
any negotiation/ renegotiation/ modification/
ratification/ amendments to or termination thereof, of
the subsisting arrangements/ transactions/ contracts
or any future arrangements/ transactions/ contracts
and to make or receive/ pay monies or to perform
all other obligations in terms of such arrangements/
transactions/ contracts with the Related parties.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Shyam Century Ferrous Limited

Ritu Agarwal
Company Secretary
Membership No.: A39155



NOTES:

1.

AN EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT
TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 RELATING TO THE SPECIAL BUSINESS
TO BE TRANSACTED AT THE MEETING IS
ANNEXED HERETO.

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting
held on 9" August, 2024 considered that the special
businesses as specified in the Notice convening the
meeting under Item Nos. 3 to 8 being considered
unavoidable, be transacted at the thirteenth Annual
General Meeting.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide
its General Circular No. 09/2023 dated September
25, 2023 and the Securities and Exchange Board of
India ('SEBI') vide its circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-
PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated October 7, 2023 and
other circulars issued from time to time (hereinafter
collectively referred to as 'Circulars’) permitted the
holding of the Annual General Meeting ("AGM")
through VC / OAVM facility, without the physical
presence of the Members at a common venue. In
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 ("Act"), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing
Regulations”) read with MCA and SEBI Circulars, the
13" AGM of the Company is being held through VC
/ OAVM on Thursday, 26™ September, 2024 at 02:00
P.MIST. The deemed venue for the thirteenth Annual
General Meeting shall be the Registered office of the
Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member
entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf
and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company.
Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA
Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of
Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the
facility for appointment of proxies by the Members
will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy
Form, Attendance Slip and Route Map of the AGM
venue are not annexed to this Notice.

Pursuant to Section 113 of the Act, Institutional /
Corporate Shareholders (i.e., other than individuals
/ HUF, NRI, etc) are required to send a scanned
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or Governing
body Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its
representative to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM
on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting.
The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to
the Scrutinizer by email through its registered email
address to scrutinizermkb@gmail.com with a copy
marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in

Institutional/Corporate shareholders (i.e., other than
individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board
Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc.
by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority
Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login.

10.

Pursuant to the MCA circulars, Members attending
the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the
purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103
of the Act.

Details as required in Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, Companies Act, 2013 and
Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (SS-2) of ICSI
in respect of the Director seeking appointment/ re-
appointment at the Annual General Meeting, forms
an integral part of the Notice. Requisite declarations
have been received from the Directors for seeking
appointment/ re-appointment.

The Board has not recommended any dividend for
the year ended 315t March, 2024

Members are requested to note that dividends if not
encashed for a consecutive period of 7 years from the
date of transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the
Company, are liable to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). The shares in
respect of which dividends have not been encashed
consecutively for a period of 7 years, are also liable
to be transferred to the demat account of the [EPF
Authority. In view of this, Members are requested to
claim their dividends from the Company, within the
stipulated timeline.

Pursuant to Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the unpaid dividends that are due to transfer to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) are as
follows:

Financial Year Date of Tentative Date for
Declaration @ transfer to IEPF
2021-22 (Interim) 11.08.2022 17.09.2029

Members who have not encashed their dividend
warrants/drafts pertaining to the aforesaid years may
approach the Company/its Registrar, for obtaining
payments thereof atleast 30 days before they are due
for transfer to the said fund.

Pursuant to Regulation 12 of SEBI (LODR) payment
of dividend, will be made only by electronic mode
directly into the bank account of Members and no
dividend warrants or demand drafts will be issued
without bank particulars. Please submit bank details
along with an original cancelled cheque or Xerox
copy of the cheque to our Registrars in case you
hold shares in physical form and to your Depository
Participants in case shares held in demat. This will
facilitate to make payment of dividend as per aforesaid
Regulation as and when declared. Members holding
shares in the physical form are requested to notify
changes in address, email id, bank mandate and
bank particulars, if any, under their signatures to M/s.
Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd,, 23 R. N. Mukherjee
Road, 5" Floor, Kolkata — 700001, the Registrars and
Share Transfer Agents (RTA) of the Company, quoting
their Folio numbers. Members holding shares in
electronic form may update such information with
their respective Depository Participants.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

SEBI, vide its Master Circular dated May 7, 2024, has
also mandated that the Members whose folio(s)/
demat account(s) do not have PAN, Contact details
(Postal Address with PIN and Mobile Number),
Bank A/c details, Specimen signature for their
corresponding folio numbers and other KYC details
updated, shall be eligible for any payment including
dividend, interest or redemption in respect of such
folios/demat accounts, only through electronic mode
with effect from April 1, 2024, upon their furnishing all
the aforesaid details in entirety. If a Member updates
the above-mentioned details after April 1, 2024, then
such Member would receive all the dividends, etc,,
declared during that period (from April 1, 2024, till the
date of updation) pertaining to the shares held after
the said updation automatically.

Members are also informed that pursuant to Circular
No. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/131
dated July 31, 2023, read with a Corrigendum No.
SEBI/HO/OIAE/ OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/135 dated
August 4, 2023, Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/OIAE/
OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/145 dated July 31, 2023
(updated as on August 11, 2023), and Circular No.
SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-3/P/CIR/2023/191 dated
December 20, 2023, SEBI has introduced a common
Online Dispute Resolution ("ODR"') mechanism to
facilitate the online resolution of all kinds of disputes
arising In the Indian securities market. Members
can access the SEBI Circulars on the website of SEBI
at https://www.sebi.gov.in/ and the same are also
available on the website of the Company at https://
shyamcenturyferrous.com/investors/investors-
informations.php

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and
SEBI Circular, the facility for making nomination is
available for the Members in respect of the shares
held by them. Members who have not yet registered
their nomination are requested to register the same
by submitting Form No. SH-13. If a member desires
to opt out or cancel the earlier nomination and record
a fresh nomination, he/she may submit the same in
ISR-3 or SH-14 as the case may be. The said forms can
be downloaded from the Company's website under
Investor information at https://shyamcenturyferrous.
com/investors/investors-informations.php and is
also available on the website of the RTA at https://
www.mdplin/ .Members are requested to submit the
said details to their Depository Participants in case the
shares are held by them in dematerialized form and
to the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
(‘RTA') in case the shares are held by them in physical
form, quoting their folio number.

Members holding shares in physical form, in identical
order of names, in more than one folio are requested
to send to the Company's RTA, the details of such
folios together with the share certificates alongwith
the requisite KYC documents for consolidating their
holdings in one folio. Requests for consolidation of
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15.

16.

17.

share certificates shall be processed in dematerialized
form.

To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are
advised to exercise due diligence and notify the
Company of any change in address or demise of
any Member as soon as possible. Members are also
advised to not leave their demat account(s) dormant
for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be
obtained from the concerned Depository Participant
and holdings should be verified from time to time.

Members are requested to intimate changes, if any,
pertaining to their name, postal address, e-mail
address, telephone/mobile numbers, Permanent
Account Number (‘PAN’), mandates, nominations,
power of attorney, bank details such as, name of
the bank and branch details, bank account number,
MICR code, IES code, etc.,

For shares held in electronic form: To their
Depository Participant only and not to the Company's
RTA. Changes intimated to the Depository Participant
will then be automatically reflected in the Company's
records which will help the Company and its RTA
provide efficient and better service to the Members.

e For shares held in physical form: to the
Company's RTA in prescribed Form.

Form for registration of PAN, Form ISR -1
email address, bank account
details, mobile number,
registered address and other
KYC details or changes/update
thereof

Update signature of securities Form ISR -2
holder

For nomination as provided in
the Rule 19(1) of Companies
(Share Capital and Debentures)
Rules, 2014

Declaration to opt-out from
nomination

Form SHfB

Form ISR-3
Cancellation of nomination by Form SH-14
the holder(s) (along with ISR-

3)/ Change of Nominee

The above forms can be downloaded from the
Investors Information - KYC Details & Nomination
available on the Company's website at https://
shyamcenturyferrous.com/investors/investors-
informations.php and is also available on the website
of the RTA at https://www.mdpl.in/ .

SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-
PoD-1/P/CIR/2023/37, dated March 16, 2023 has
simplified the process for servicing investor requests
Accordingly, the companies shall process the
following service requests viz. issue of duplicate
securities certificate; renewal/exchange of securities
certificate; endorsement; sub division/ splitting of
securities certificate; consolidation of securities
certificates/folios; transmission and transposition
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18.

19.

20.

in dematerialised form only. In view of the same
and to eliminate all risks associated with physical
shares and avail various benefits of dematerialisation,
Members are advised to dematerialise the shares held
by them in physical form. Members can contact the
Company or RTA, for assistance in this regard. As per
the aforesaid circulars SEBI has mandated all listed
Companies to record/update the KYC detailsi.e., PAN,
Nomination and Bank Account details of the first
holder for the shares held in physical mode. Members
holding shares in physical form are requested to
ensure the aforesaid KYC details are updated with
the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agents,
M/s. Maheswari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. ('RTA"). The said
folios shall be frozen. In case, the folios continue to
remain frozen, till December 31, 2025, the same shall
be referred to the Administering Authority under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 and
Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002.

Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular
No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/ MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8
dated January 25, 2022 has mandated the listed
companies to issue securities in dematerialized form
only while processing service requests, viz., Issue of
duplicate securities certificate; claim from unclaimed
suspense account; renewal/ exchange of securities
certificate; endorsement; sub-division/splitting of
securities certificate; consolidation of securities
certificates/folios; transmission and transposition.
Accordingly, Members are requested to make service
requests by submitting a duly filled and signed Form
ISR-4. The said form can be downloaded from the
Investors Information available on the Company's
website at https://shyamcenturyferrous.com/
investors/investors-informations.php and is also
available on the website of the RTA at https://www.
mdplin/. It may be noted that any service request can
be processed only after the folio is KYC Compliant.

SEBI vide its notification dated January 24, 2022
has amended Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations and has mandated that all requests for
transfer of securities including transmission and
transposition requests shall be processed only in
dematerialised form. In view of the same and to
eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and
avail various benefits of dematerialization, Members
are advised to dematerialize the shares held by them
in physical form. Members can contact the Company
or RTA, for assistance in this regard. A guidance notes
on procedure for dematerialization of shares held in
physical form is also placed on the website of the
Company under 'Investors’ section.

Members seeking any information with regard to the
financial statements or any other matter to be placed
at the 13" AGM, can send the same at Company's
email address at investors@shyamcenturyferrous.
com from their registered email address, mentioning
their name, DP ID and Client ID number/folio number

21

22.

23.

and mobile number on or before 18" September,
2024 by 05:00 p.m. (IST). The same will be replied by
the Company suitably.

Electronic copies of the documents referred to in
the Notice of the 13% AGM of the Company and
the Explanatory Statement shall be available for
inspection by the members in electronic mode.
Members may inspect the same by sending an email
to investors@shyamcenturyferrous.com.

In compliance with the MCA Circular and SEBI
Circular issued from time to time, the Notice of the
AGM along with the Annual Report for 2023-24 is
being sent only through electronic mode to those
Members whose email addresses are registered with
the Company/Depositories. Members may note that
the Notice of the AGM and the Annual Report will
also be available on the Company's website at www.
shyamcenturyferrous.com and may also be accessed
from the relevant section of the websites of the Stock
Exchanges ie, BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange Limited for their download. The Notice
will also be available on the website of NSDL at www.
evoting.nsdl.com.

e For Members whose Email ID's are not registered : -

a) Members holding shares in physical mode and
who have not registered / updated their email
address with the Company are requested to
register / update the same by writing to the
Company with details of folio number and
attaching a self-attested scanned copy of
PAN card, self-attested scanned copy of any
document (such as/Aadhar card/latest Electricity
Bill/latest Telephone/Mobile Bill/Driving
License/Passport/Voter ID Card/Bank Passbook
particulars) at investors@shyamcenturyferrous.
com or to M/s. Maheswari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. at
mdpldc@yahoo.com or members may send the
"E-communication registration form" enclosed
with this Notice to the Company or to the RTA.

b) Members holding shares in dematerialized
mode are requested to register / update their
email addresses with the relevant Depository
Participant.

Members holding shares in physical form, in identical
order of names, in more than one folio are requested
to send to the Company or its RTA, the details of
such folios together with the share certificates and
self-attested copies of the PAN for consolidating
their holdings in one folio. A consolidated share
certificate will be issued to such Members after
making requisite changes. Members holding shares
in physical form are requested to consider converting
their holdings to dematerialized form to eliminate all
risks associated with physical shares and for ease of
portfolio management. Members can contact the
Company or its RTA for assistance in this regard.
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24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books
of the Company will remain closed from Friday, 20™
September, 2024 to Thursday, 26" September, 2024
(both days inclusive).

During the 13® AGM, Members may access the
scanned copies of Register of Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel and their shareholding
maintained under Section 170 of the Act, the Register
of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors
are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the
Act and the Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company, upon Log-in to NSDL e-Voting
system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com.

In compliance with the provision of Section 108
of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 20 of
the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014, as amended, read with relevant MCA
and SEBI circulars and Regulation 44 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 as amended, and the Circulars
issued by the Ministry of Corporate, the Company
is pleased to provide the facility of remote e-voting
and e-voting during the AGM to all the Members
to enable them to cast their vote electronically in
respect of business to be transacted at the Meeting,
for which the Company has engaged the services
of National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL).
The Members holding shares either in physical form
or in dematerialized form, desiring to vote through
electronic mode may refer to the detailed procedure
on e-voting given hereinafter.

The Members, whose names appear in the Register
of Members / list of Beneficial Owners as on 19%
day of September, 2024 are entitled to vote on the
Resolutions set forth in this Notice and a person who
is not a Member as on cut-off date should treat this
notice for information purpose only. The Members
may cast their votes on electronic voting system from
place other than the venue of the meeting (remote
e-voting). Members who have acquired shares after
the dispatch of the Notice of Annual General Meeting
and before the cut-off date may approach the
Company for issuance of the User ID and Password
for exercising their right to vote by electronic means.

The Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014, as amended provides that the electronic
voting period shall remain open for atleast three days
and shall close at 5.00 pm. on the date preceding
the date of the AGM. Accordingly, the remote
e-voting period will commence at 9.00 a.m. on
Sunday, 22" September, 2024 and will end at 5.00
p.m. on Wednesday, 25" September, 2024. The
Company has appointed M/s MKB & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretary (Firm Registration
No.- P2010WB042700), to act as the Scrutinizer,
for conducting the scrutiny of the votes cast. The
Members desiring to vote through electronic mode
may refer to the detailed procedure on e-voting.

98 1 SHYAM CENTURY FERROUS LIMITED

29.

30.

1.

The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of Annual
General Meeting, first download the votes cast at the
meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through
remote e-voting and shall submit the consolidated
scrutinizer's report, within 2 (two) working days of
conclusion of General Meeting to the Managing
Director or any other person authorized by the Board.
The results declared along with the consolidated
scrutinizer's report shall be placed on the website of
the Company ie., www.shyamcenturyferrous.com
and also be displayed on the Notice board of the
Company at its registered office and on the website
of NSDL ie. www.nsdlcoin immediately after the
results are declared. The results shall simultaneously
be communicated to the Stock Exchanges.

Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the
Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date
of the Meeting i.e, Thursday, 26" September 2024.

PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING

The Company has entered into an arrangement with

National

Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for

facilitating e-voting for AGM. The instructions for remote
e-voting are as under:

1.

In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be followed
and pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April
08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by
Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and Circular
No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and all other
relevant circulars issued from time to time, physical
attendance of the Members to the AGM venue is
not required and general meeting be held through
video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means
(OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate
in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM.

Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08,
2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the
facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the
members is not available for this AGM. However, the
Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised
representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM
and participate there at and cast their votes through
e-voting.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM
mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time
of the commencement of the Meeting by following
the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility
of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be
made available for 1000 members on first come first
served basis. This will not include large Shareholders
(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding),
Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the
Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend
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the AGM without restriction on account of first come
first served basis.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM
through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose
of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations
2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April
13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing
facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect
of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this
purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement
with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)
for facilitating voting through electronic means, as
the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by
a member using remote e-Voting system as well as

venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided
by NSDL.

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)
Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice
calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website
of the Company at www.shyamcenturyferrous.com.
The Notice can also be accessed from the websites
of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.
com and www.nseindia.com respectively and the
AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL
(agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility)
ie. www.evoting.nsdl.com.

AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in
compliance with applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No.
14/2020 dated April 08, 2020 and MCA Circular No.
17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, MCA Circular No.
20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, MCA Circular No.
2/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and further extension
provided in the latest MCA General Circular No.

9/2023 dated September 25, 2023.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL
MEETING ARE AS UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on Sunday, September, 22, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on Wednesday,
September 25, 2024 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The
Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date)
i.e. 19" September, 2024 may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion
to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 19 September, 2024.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in
their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of Login Method

shareholders

Individual 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.
Shareholders com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click

holding securities
in demat mode
with NSDL.

on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under 'IDeAS’ section,
this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services.
Click on "Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you
will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://
eservices.nsdl.com. Select "Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.
nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg jsp
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Type of
shareholders

Login Method

Individual
Shareholders
holding securities
in demat mode
with CDSL

Individual
Shareholders
(holding securities
in demat mode)
login through
their depository
participants

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available
under ‘Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your
User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by
scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

‘App Store P Google Play

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing
user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without
any further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL
website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then
use your existing my easi username & password.

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for
eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by
company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of
the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit
the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL website
www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on
registration option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account
Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page.
The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see
the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you
will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/
CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature.
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

100 1 SHYAM CENTURY FERROUS LIMITED



https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com
http://www.cdslindia.com
http://www.cdslindia.com

B)

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to

login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type

Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with NSDL

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk
by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk
by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll
free no. 1800-21-09911

Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.
com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login” which is available under

‘Shareholder/Member' section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as

shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/
with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on
e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

Your User ID is:

account with NSDL.

account with CDSL.

Form.

a) For Members who hold shares in demat

b) For Members who hold shares in demat

c) For Members holding shares in Physical

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12******
then your user ID is IN300*** ] 2******

16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12*¥*x*¥kkxxxxi* then
your user ID IS 12**************

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with th
company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456
then user ID is 101456001 ***

5. Password details for shareholders other than

Individual shareholders are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting,
then you can use your existing password to

login and cast your vote.

b) Ifyouareusing NSDL e-Voting system for the
first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial
password’ which was communicated to you.
Once you retrieve your ‘initial password,

to you on your email ID. Trace the
email sent to you from NSDL from your
mailbox. Open the email and open the
attachment ie. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf
file. The password to open the .pdf file is
your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account,
last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account
or folio number for shares held in
physical form. The .pdf file contains your
‘User ID" and your ‘initial password’.

you need to enter the 'initial password’ and

the system will force you to change your

password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password"?

(1) If your email ID is registered in your 6.
demat account or with the company,
your ‘initial password' is communicated

(i) If your email ID is not registered, please
follow steps mentioned below in process
for those shareholders whose email ids
are not registered.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received
the "Initial password” or have forgotten your
password:

Annual Report 2023-24 1 101


mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/

a) Click on "Forgot User Details/Password?"(If
you are holding shares in your demat
account with NSDL or CDSL) option available
on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?" (If you are
holding shares in physical mode) option
available on www.evoting nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password
by aforesaid two options, you can send a
request at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning
your demat account number/folio number,
your PAN, your name and your registered
address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time
Password) based login for casting the votes
on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to
"Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check
box.

8. Now, you will have to click on "Login” button.

9. After you click on the "Login’ button, Home page
of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join
General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join
General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see
all the companies "EVEN" in which you are holding
shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting
is in active status.

2. Select "EVEN" of company for which you wish to cast
your vote during the remote e-Voting period and
casting your vote during the General Meeting. For
joining virtual meeting, you need to click on "VC/
OAVM" link placed under "Join Meeting"”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page
opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e.
assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares
for which you wish to cast your vote and click on
"Submit” and also "Confirm" when prompted.

5  Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast
successtully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you
by clicking on the print option on the confirmation
page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you
will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals,
HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/
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Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature
of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are
authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to
scrutinizermkb@gmail.com with a copy marked to
evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e.
other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload
their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority
Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution /
Authority Letter" displayed under 'e-Voting" tab in
their login.

It is strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential. Login
to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password.
In such an event, you will need to go through the
‘Forgot User Details/Password?” or "Physical User
Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.
nsdl.com to reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently
Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and
e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the
download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call
on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Ms. Pallavi
Mhatre, Senior Manager at evoting@nsdl.com

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not
registered with the depositories for procuring user id
and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting
for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1.

In case shares are held in physical mode please
provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN
(self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR
(self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email
to investors@shyamcenturyferrous.com

In case shares are held in demat mode, please
provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy
of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to investors@
shyamcenturyferrous.com. If you are an Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you
are requested to refer to the login method explained
at step 1 (A) ie. Login method for e-Voting and
joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode.

Alternatively shareholder/members may send a
request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user
id and password for e-voting by providing above
mentioned documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020
on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode are allowed to vote through their
demat account maintained with Depositories and
Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to
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update their mobile number and email ID correctly
in their demat account in order to access e-Voting
facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING
ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1.

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is
same as the instructions mentioned above for remote
e-voting.

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be
present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through
remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from
doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting
system in the AGM.

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting
will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will
not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

The details of the person who may be contacted
for any grievances connected with the facility for
e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same
person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE
AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1.

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the
AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting
system. Members may access by following the steps
mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting
system. After successful login, you can see link of
"VC/OAVM" placed under "Join meeting” menu
against company name. You are requested to click on
VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The
link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/
Member login where the EVEN of Company will be
displayed. Please note that the members who do not
have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have
forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the
same by following the remote e-Voting instructions
mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through
Laptops for better experience.

Registered Office:

Vill: Lumshnong, P.O.: Khaliehriat
Dist.: East Jaintia Hills

Meghalaya - 793210

Date: 09" August, 2024
Place: Kolkata

Further Members will be required to allow Camera
and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile
Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss
due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN
Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/
have questions may send their questions in advance
by 18" September, 2024 mentioning their name
demat account number/folio number, email id,
mobile number at investors@ shyamcenturyferrous.
com. The same will be replied by the company
suitably.

Members, who would like to express their views as
a speaker at the Meeting are requested to register
themselves by sending their request from their
registered email address mentioning their name,
DP ID and Client ID number/folio number and
mobile number, to reach the Company's email
address investors@shyamcenturyferrous.com by
2319 September, 2024 by 05:00 p.m. (IST). Only
those Members who have registered themselves
as a speaker shall be allowed to express their views
during the 13* AGM. The Company reserves the right
to restrict the number of questions and number of
speakers depending on the availability of time for
smooth conduct of the AGM.

When a registered speaker is invited to speak at the
meeting but he / she does not respond, the next
speaker will be invited to speak. Accordingly, all
speakers are requested to get connected to a device
with a video/ camera along with good internet speed.

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, the
Members whose name appears as the first holder in
the order of the names as per the Register of Members
of the Company will be entitled to vote electronically
at the AGM.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Shyam Century Ferrous Limited

Ritu Agarwal
Company Secretary
Membership No.: A39155
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Explanatory Statement

(Pursuant to section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013)

Item No. 3:

As per sections 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V and
all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force) Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal
(DIN: 03330313), Managing Director of the Company will
be completing his terms on 30" October, 2024.

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 9"
August, 2024, as per recommendation of the Nomination
& Remuneration Committee re-appointed Mr. Aditya
Vimalkumar Agrawal (DIN: 03330313), as the Managing
Director of the Company for a further period of 3 (three)
years effective from 315 October, 2024 upto 30" October,
2027 on the revised terms and conditions including
remuneration of 65,00,000 per annum effective from 1%
November, 2024 with an annual increment of 10% subject
to the approval of Members.

Proviso to section 196(2) of the Companies Act, 2013,
inter-alia, provides that no re-appointment shall be made
earlier than one year before the expiry of his term and
Regulation 17(1C) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 states that
the listed entity shall ensure that approval of shareholders
for appointment or re-appointment of a person on
the Board of Directors or as a Manager is taken at the
next general meeting or within a time period of three
months from the date of appointment/re-appointment,
whichever is earlier. Hence, the Board recommends
the re-appointment of Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal
as Managing Director, be approved by way of special
resolution.

Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal satisfies all conditions set
out in subsection (3) of Section 196 and Part-1 of Schedule
V of the Companies Act, 2013 for being eligible for his re-
appointment. He is not disqualified from being appointed
as Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act. Your
Directors believe that continued association of him as
Director would be immensely beneficial to the Company.

The draft agreement to be entered with the Managing
Director shall be available for inspection by the members
on all weekdays during office hours upto the date of the
meeting.

Except Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal none of the
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives
are in any way concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise in the resolution set out at Item No. 3.

The Board of Directors recommends the Special
Resolution set out at Item No. 3 for your approval as a
Special Resolutions.

Statement pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
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2015, Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standard on
General Meeting and Statement pursuant to provisions of
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 are annexed with
this notice.

Item-4:

Pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the
Company at its Board Meeting held on 6" February, 2020
appointed Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah (DIN: 00343256) as
an Additional Director (Category — Independent) of the
Company for a period of 5 (five) years with effect from
15 April, 2020 upto 315 March, 2025, whose appointment
was approved by the Shareholders of the Company at
the Annual General Meeting held on 29" September,
2020. His office as Independent Director of the Company
comes to an end on 31 March, 2025 ('first term") in line
with the explanation to Sections 149(10) and 149(11) of
the Companies Act, 2013).

The Board, based on the performance evaluation of
Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah and as per the recommendation
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
considers that, given his background and experience
and contributions made by him during his tenure, the
continued association of Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah as
an Independent Director on the Board of the Company
would be beneficial to the Company and it is desirable
to continue to avail his services as Independent Director.
Accordingly, it is proposed to re-appoint Mr. Pramod
Kumar Shah as an Independent Director of the Company,
not liable to retire by rotation and to hold office for a
second term of 5 (five) consecutive year on the Board
of the Company effective from 1% April, 2025 upto 31¢
March, 2030. Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah meets the criteria
of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the
Act read with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended.

Further, as per Section 149(11) provides that an
independent director may hold office for up to two
consecutive terms provided that re-appointment shall be
done on passing of a special resolution by the company
and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors on recommendation
of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, in
their meeting held on August 9, 2024 has re-appointed
Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah as an Independent Director of
the Company. However, such re-appointment is subject
to approval of the shareholders by way of a special
resolution.

Details of Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah whose re-appointment
as Independent Director is proposed at Item No. 4 is
provided in the "Annexure” to the Notice pursuant to
the provisions of (i) the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and (i)



Secretarial Standard on General Meetings ("SS-2"), issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

The Company has received from Mr. Pramod Kumar
Shah (i) consent in writing to act as director in Form
DIR 2 pursuant to Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment
& Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, (ii) intimation
in Form DIR 8 in terms of Companies (Appointment &
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, to the effect that
he is not disqualified under sub-section (2) of Section
164 of the Companies Act, 2013 and (iii) a declaration
to the effect that he meets the criteria of independence
as provided in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended.

Further, Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah is currently 73 years of
age and he will attained the age of 75 years during the
continuation of his tenure. As per Regulation 17(1A) of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Amendment) Regulations, 2018 notified on May 09,
2018, no listed entity shall appoint a person or continue
the directorship of any person as a non-executive
director who has attained the age of 75 years unless a
special resolution is passed to that effect. Considering
the vast expertise and knowledge of Mr. Pramod Kumar
Shah the Board proposed his re-appointment by way of
special resolution

Notice under Section 160(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
along with requisite deposit has been received from
a Member, signifying his intention to propose the re-
appointment of Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah as Independent
Director of the Company.

Copy of the draft appointment letter of Mr. Pramod
Kumar Shah as an Independent Director of the Company
setting out the terms and conditions of appointment are
available for inspection by the members at the Registered
Office as well as Corporate Office of the Company on all
working days between 11:00 A.M. to 1:.00 P.M. till the date
of the Annual General Meeting (AGM).

The Board, based on the recommendation of Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and considering benefits
of the expertise of Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah, has
recommended the resolution for approval of shareholders
by way of special resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company and their relatives, other than Mr. Pramod
Kumar Shah for his re-appointment, are concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in Resolutions set out
atitemno. 4.

Item-5:

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of Audit
Committee, has approved at their meeting held on 22
May, 2024, the re-appointment of M/s. B. G. Chowdhury &
Co., Cost Accountants, (Firm Registration number 000064)
as the Cost Auditor of the Company to conduct the Cost

Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 at
a remuneration of 260,000 (Rupees Sixty Thousand only)
plus applicable taxes and re-imbursement of out of pocket
expenses incurred in connection with cost audit, if any.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of
the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Cost Records and Audit)
Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modification(s) or
re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be
ratified by the shareholders of the Company.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives are, in any way, concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed
resolution.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at
Item No. 5 of the Notice for approval by the Shareholders.

Item No. 6

Pursuant to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the
Act), read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and
its Powers) Rules, 2014 (‘Rules’), the Company is required
to obtain consent of the Board of Directors and prior
approval of the Members by way of ordinary resolution,
in case certain transactions with related parties exceeds
such sum as is specified in the Rules. The aforesaid
provisions are not applicable in respect of transactions
which are in the ordinary course of business and onarm'’s
length basis.

Pursuant to Regulation 23 of the Securities Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('Listing Regulations’),
prior approval of the Members through ordinary
resolution is required for all related party transactions
which are material, even if they are entered into, in the
ordinary course of business and on arm's length basis.
For this purpose, a transaction with a Related Party shall
be considered material, if such transaction(s) to be
entered into individually or taken together with previous
transactions during a financial year, exceed 1,000
crores or 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the
Company as per the last audited financial statements of
the Company, whichever is lower.

All the Related Party Transactions entered into by the
Company are at arm'’s length basis and in the ordinary
course of business and approval of the Audit Committee /
Board is obtained, wherever required. In accordance with
the change in materiality threshold and the Company's
revised 'Policy on Related Party Transactions, the
transactions proposed to be entered into by the Company
with Star Cement Limited for the FY 2024-25 & 2025-26,
may qualify to be a Material Related Party transaction
under Listing Regulations, hence approval of the
Members by way of ordinary resolution is being sought.
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The key details as required under Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, including
the information required to be disclosed in the Explanatory Statement pursuant to the SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/
CMD1/CIR/P/2021/662 dated November 22, 2021, are as below:

Name of the Related Party

Nature of relationship with the company or its
subsidiary, including nature of its concern or interest
(financial or otherwise)

Type, material terms and particulars of the contract or
arrangement/Proposed RPTs

Tenure of the Proposed Transaction

Estimated Value of the Proposed Transaction

Percentage of the Company's annual consolidated
turnover (including other income) for the immediately
preceding financial year that is represented by the
value of the proposed transaction

Details of the source of funds in connection with the
proposed transaction

Where any financial indebtedness is incurred to make
or give loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or
investments

¢ nature of indebtedness;

e cost of funds; and

e tenure;

Applicable terms, including covenants, tenure, interest
rate, repayment schedule, whether secured (nature of
security) or unsecured

Purpose for which funds will be utilized

Justification as to why the RPT is in the interest of the
Company

Statement that the valuation or other external report,
if any, relied upon by the listed entity in relation to the
proposed transaction will be made available through
registered email address of the shareholder.

Name of the Director or KMP who is related, if any

Any other information

Star Cement Limited
Common Directors

Sale, purchase or Supply of Goods including Capital Goods
or Materials and availing and rendering of any services
from time to time and to enter into the arrangements/
transactions/ contracts (including any other transfer of
resources, giving and taking loans, advances, securities,
services or obligations etc,) by the Company in its
ordinary course of business and on arm's length basis.
Recurring Transactions commencing from FY 2024-25 &
2025-26.

%20 crores for each Financial Year

13.63%

NOT APPLICABLE

The transactions are aimed at achieving synergies and
economies of scale; reduce operational costs; strengthen
sustainability; and conserve natural resources.

NA

Mrs. Plistina Dkhar and Mr. Nirmalya Bhattacharyya
may deemed to be related by virtue of being common
Directors.

NIL

ExceptMrs. Plistina Dkharand Mr. Nirmalya Bhattacharyya
and their respective relatives none of the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives
are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise, in the proposed resolution.

The Members may note that in terms of the provisions of
the SEBI Listing Regulations, no Related Party shall vote
to approve the Ordinary Resolution set forth at Item No. 6
of the Notice, whether the entity is a Related Party to the
particular transaction or not.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at
Item No. 6 of the Notice for approval of the shareholders.
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Item No. 7

Pursuant to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
Act’), read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and
its Powers) Rules, 2014 (‘Rules’), the Company is required
to obtain consent of the Board of Directors and prior
approval of the Members by way of ordinary resolution,
in case certain transactions with related parties exceeds
such sum as is specified in the Rules. The aforesaid
provisions are not applicable in respect of transactions
which are in the ordinary course of business and on arm's
length basis.



Pursuant to Regulation 23 of the Securities Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('Listing Regulations’),
prior approval of the Members through ordinary
resolution is required for all related party transactions
which are material, even if they are entered into, in the
ordinary course of business and on arm'’s length basis.
For this purpose, a transaction with a Related Party shall
be considered ‘material, if such transaction(s) to be
entered into individually or taken together with previous
transactions during a financial year, exceed 1,000
crores or 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the
Company as per the last audited financial statements of
the Company, whichever is lower.

All the Related Party Transactions entered into by the
Company are at arm'’s length basis and in the ordinary

course of business and approval of the Audit Committee /
Board is obtained, wherever required. In accordance with
the change in materiality threshold and the Company's
revised ‘Policy on Related Party Transactions, the
transactions proposed to be entered into by the Company
with Star Cement (I) Limited, may qualify to be a Material
Related Party transaction under Listing Regulations,
hence approval of the Members by way of ordinary
resolution is being sought.

The key details as required under Rule 15 of the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules,
2014, including the information required to be disclosed
in the Explanatory Statement pursuant to the SEBI
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2021/662 dated
November 22, 2021, are as below:

Name of the Related Party

Nature of relationship with the company or its
subsidiary, including nature of its concern or interest
(financial or otherwise)

Type, material terms and particulars of the contract or
arrangement/Proposed RPTs

Tenure of the Proposed Transaction

Estimated Value of the Proposed Transaction
Percentage of the Company's annual consolidated
turnover (including other income) for the immediately
preceding financial year that is represented by the
value of the proposed transaction

proposed transaction

Where any financial indebtedness is incurred to make
or give loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or
investments

¢ nature of indebtedness;

e cost of funds; and

e tenure;

Applicable terms, including covenants, tenure, interest
rate, repayment schedule, whether secured (nature of
security) or unsecured

Purpose for which funds will be utilized

Company

Statement that the valuation or other external report,
if any, relied upon by the listed entity in relation to the
proposed transaction will be made available through
registered email address of the shareholder.

Name of the Director or KMP who is related, if any
Any other information

Details of the source of funds in cohnection with the '

Justification as to why the RPT is in the interest of the |

Star Cement (I) Limited
Common Promoter and Promoter group

Sale, purchase or Supply of Goods including Capital Goods
or Materials and availing and rendering of any services
from time to time and to enter into the arrangements/
transactions/ contracts (including any other transfer of
resources, giving and taking loans, advances, securities,
services or obligations etc,) by the Company in its
ordinary course of business and on arm'’s length basis.
Recurring Transactions commencing from FY 2024-25 &
2025-26.

%10 crores for each Financial Year

6.82%

NOT APPLICABLE

The transactions are aimed at achieving synergies and
economies of scale; reduce operational costs; strengthen
sustainability; and conserve natural resources.

NA

NA
NIL
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None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives are, in any way, concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed
resolution.

The Members may note that in terms of the provisions of
the SEBI Listing Regulations, no Related Party shall vote
to approve the Ordinary Resolution set forth at Item No. 7
of the Notice, whether the entity is a Related Party to the
particular transaction or not.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at
Item No. 7 of the Notice for approval of the shareholders.

Item No. 8

Pursuant to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the
Act’), read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and
its Powers) Rules, 2014 (‘Rules’), the Company is required
to obtain consent of the Board of Directors and prior
approval of the Members by way of ordinary resolution,
in case certain transactions with related parties exceeds
such sum as is specified in the Rules. The aforesaid
provisions are not applicable in respect of transactions
which are in the ordinary course of business and on arm's
length basis.

Pursuant to Regulation 23 of the Securities Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('Listing Regulations’),
prior approval of the Members through ordinary

resolution is required for all related party transactions
which are material, even if they are entered into, in the
ordinary course of business and on arm'’s length basis.
For this purpose, a transaction with a Related Party shall
be considered ‘material, if such transaction(s) to be
entered into individually or taken together with previous
transactions during a financial year, exceed 1,000
crores or 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the
Company as per the last audited financial statements of
the Company, whichever is lower.

All the Related Party Transactions entered into by the
Company are at arm's length basis and in the ordinary
course of business and approval of the Audit Committee /
Board is obtained, wherever required. In accordance with
the change in materiality threshold and the Company’s
revised ‘Policy on Related Party Transactions, the
transactions proposed to be entered into by the Company
with Star Cement North East Limited, may qualify to
be a Material Related Party transaction under Listing
Regulations, hence approval of the Members by way of
ordinary resolution is being sought.

The key details as required under Rule 15 of the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules,
2014, including the information required to be disclosed
in the Explanatory Statement pursuant to the SEBI
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2021/662 dated
November 22, 2021, are as below:

Name of the Related Party

Nature (rarfm'relationship with the company or its
subsidiary, including nature of its concern or interest
(financial or otherwise)

Type, material terms and particulars of the contract or
arrangement/Proposed RPTs

Percentage of the Company's annual consolidated
turnover (including other income) for the immediately
preceding financial year that is represented by the
value of the proposed transaction

proposed transaction
Where any financial indebtedness is incurred to make
or give loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or

investments

¢ nature of indebtedness;
e cost of funds; and
Applicabié férms, including covenants, tenure, interest
rate, repayment schedule, whether secured (nature of
security) or unsecured

Purpose for which funds will be utilized
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Details of the source of funds in cdﬁnection with the '

Star Cement North East Limited

Sale, purchase or Supply of Goods including Capital Goods
or Materials and availing and rendering of any services
from time to time and to enter into the arrangements/
transactions/ contracts (including any other transfer of
resources, giving and taking loans, advances, securities,
services or obligations etc,) by the Company in its
ordinary course of business and on arm's length basis.

Recurring Transactions commencing from FY 2024-25 &
2025-26.

6.82%

NOT APPLICABLE




Company

Statement that the valuation or other external report,
if any, relied upon by the listed entity in relation to the
proposed transaction will be made available through
registered email address of the shareholder.

Any other information

Justification as to why' the RPT is in the interest of the |

The transactions are aimed at achieving synergies and
economies of scale; reduce operational costs; strengthen
sustainability; and conserve natural resources.

NA

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives are, in any way, concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed
resolution.

The Members may note that in terms of the provisions of
the SEBI Listing Regulations, no Related Party shall vote

Registered Office:

Vill: Lumshnong, P.O.: Khaliehriat
Dist.: East Jaintia Hills

Meghalaya - 793210

Date: 09" August, 2024
Place: Kolkata

to approve the Ordinary Resolution set forth at Item No. 8
of the Notice, whether the entity is a Related Party to the
particular transaction or not.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at
Item No. 8 of the Notice for approval of the shareholders.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Shyam Century Ferrous Limited

Ritu Agarwal
Company Secretary
Membership No.: A39155
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Statement pursuant to provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to
Item No. 3 of the Notice

I. General Information

Sl. | Particulars Remarks
No.

1 Nature of industry B | FerroSilicon
2. Date of certificate of commencement of busmess - 26‘h April, 2011
3 In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of Not Apphcable

activities as per project approved by financial institutions appearing in
| the prospectus

4, Financial performance based on given indicators For the Financial Year
(% in Lakhs)
Revenues PAPKErZe  2022-23 @ 2021-22
| 1467066 1881923 | 21,25046
Net Profit/ (Loss) before Tax | 13154 366641 | 763821
~|Dividend% NIL 30% NIL
5. | Export performance and net foreign exchange collaborations, ifany Nit
6. Foreign investments or collaborators if any Nil

a. Information about the Appointee

Sl. | Particulars Mr. Aditya Vimakumar Agrawal

No.

1. Background details Mr Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal is a Commerce Graduate
and Master's in Business Administration having 12 years of
experience.

Heishaving expertise in Administration, Production, Technical,
7777777777777777 Logistics, Sales, General Management etc.,
. |Pastremuneration Remuneration paid for FY 2023-24- 350,00,000 Lakhs
3. Job profile and his suitability as Director | Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal was appointed as Managing
Director of the Company. He possess multiple skills in various
fields like Administration, Production, Technical, Logistics,
e Sales, General Management etc,,

4. | Remuneration proposed ¥65,00,000 per annum effective from 015 November, 2024 with

] ~anannual increment of 10%.

5. | Comparative remuneration profile | The salary payable to Mr. Aditya Vimalkumar Agrawal is in line
with respect to industry, size of the with current industry standards.
company, profile of the position and
person (in case of expatriates the
reverent details would be wrt the

~|country of his origin) e

6. Pecumary relatlonshlp with  the Apart from receiving managerial remuneration, Mr. Aditya
managerial personnel, if any Vimalkumar Agrawal is not having any pecuniary relationship

with the Company.

II. Other Information

Sl. | Particulars Remarks

No.

1. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits Increase in raw material prices & power costs, low demand of stee],
VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV fall in market prices. -

2. Steps taken during the vyear for| The Company is taking the following measures for improvement:
improvement

Expansion of capacity

Optimum cost savings

Quality Control

State-of-the-art technology and infrastructure

Strong Human Resources

] ] Strong Management Team

3. Expected increase in productivity and The Company has taken initiatives to 1mprove ‘the posmon of
profits in measurable terms the Company as against its competitors and will continue in its

endeavor to improve profitability.

S
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E-COMMUNICATION REGISTRATION FORM

(Only for members holding shares in physical form)

To,

MAHESHWARI DATAMATICS PRIVATE LIMITED
UNIT: Shyam Century Ferrous Limited

23, R N Mukherjee Road, 5% Floor,

Kolkata - 700 001.

Phone No. 033- 22435029/2248-2248

Email: mdpldc@yahoo.com

Dear Sir / Madam,

I hereby register / update my email address provided below for receiving all communication from the Company through
electronic mode:

Folio No. /DP ID & Client ID

Date:

Notes:

1. Onregistration/ updation, all the communications will be sent to the registered e-mail ID.

2. The form is also available on the website of the Company www.shyamcenturyferrous.com under the “Investors”
section.

3. Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to ensure to keep their e-mail ID updated with the
Depository Participants with whom they are holding their Demat Account.

4. Members are requested to keep their depository participants / Company's Registrar- Maheshwari Datamatics
Private Limited informed as and when there is any change in the e-mail ID. Unless, the email ID given hereunder
is changed by you by sending another communication in writing, the Company will continue to send all the
communication to you on the above mentioned email ID.

5. Members are requested to attach a self-attested scanned copy of PAN card, self-attested scanned copy of any
document (such as /Aadhar card/latest Electricity Bill/latest Telephone/Mobile Bill/Driving License/Passport/Voter
ID Card/Bank Passbook particulars) along with this form.
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SHYAM CENTURY FERROUS LIMITED
CIN: L27310ML2011PLC0O08578

Registered Office:

Village- Lumshnong, P.O. Khaliehriat,
District: East Jaintia Hills, Meghalaya- 793210
Phone: +91-33-24015555
www.shyamcenturyferrous.com

Works:
EPIP Rajabagan, District- Ri-Bhoi
Byrnihat, Meghalaya- 793101
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